
 

Agenda compiled by: 
Maria Lipzith 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
Telephone No: 247 4353 
 

 
 

Principal Scrutiny Advisor: 
Steven Courtney 
Tel: 247 4707 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 
A 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH ) 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on 
Tuesday, 30th June, 2009 at 10.00 am 

 
(A pre-meeting will be held for ALL Members of the Board at 9.30 a.m.) 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
J Chapman - Weetwood; 

D Congreve - Beeston and Holbeck; 

M Dobson (Chair) - Garforth and Swillington; 

J Illingworth - Kirkstall; 

M Iqbal - City and Hunslet; 

G Kirkland - Otley and Yeadon; 

A Lamb - Wetherby; 

G Latty - Guiseley and Rawdon; 

L Rhodes-Clayton - Hyde Park and Woodhouse; 

C Townsley - Horsforth; 

L Yeadon - Kirkstall; 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded). 
 
(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of 
an appeal must be received in writing by the Chief 
Democratic Services Officer at least 24 hours 
before the meeting).  
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

 
 
 

 



 

 
C 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration. 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.) 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To declare any personal / prejudicial interests for 
the purpose of Section 81 (3) of the Local 
Government Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of 
the Members Code of Conduct. 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD 
ON 28TH APRIL 2009 
 
To receive and approve the minutes of the 
previous meeting held on 28th April 2009. 
 
 

1 - 4 

7   
 

  CO-OPTED MEMBERS 
 
To receive and consider a report of the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development on the 
appointment of Co-opted Members. 
 
 

5 - 10 

8   
 

  LEGISLATION AND CONSTITUTIONAL 
CHANGES 
 
To receive and consider a report of the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development on proposed 
changes to the Council’s Constitution in relation to 
Scrutiny. 
 
 

11 - 
32 



 

 
D 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

9   
 

  INPUT INTO THE WORK PROGRAMME 
2009/2010 - SOURCES OF WORK AND 
ESTABLISHING THE BOARD'S PRIORITIES 
 
To receive and consider a report by the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development on various 
inputs to inform the development of the Scrutiny 
Board’s work programme for 2009/2010. 
 
 

33 - 
48 

10   
 

  KPMG AUDIT REPORT 
 
To receive and consider a report of the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development on a scrutiny 
review by KPMG as at May 2009. 
 
 

49 - 
88 

11   
 

  LEEDS LOCAL INVOLVEMENT NETWORK 
(LINK) - ANNUAL REPORT 
 
To receive and consider a report of the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development on the first 
annual report of Leeds Local Involvement Network 
(LINk). 
 
 

89 - 
90 

12   
 

  DETERMINING THE WORK PROGRAMME 
2009/2010 
 
To receive and consider a report by the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development to identify the 
Scrutiny Board’s priorities and determine its work 
programme for 2009/2010. 
 
 

91 - 
134 

13   
 

  DATE & TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
Tuesday, 28th July 2009 at 10.00 a.m. (Pre-
Meeting at 9.30 a.m.) 
 
 

 

 



Draft minutes to be approved at the next  
meeting of the Scrutiny Board (Health) 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH ) 
 

TUESDAY, 28TH APRIL, 2009 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor P Grahame in the Chair 

 
 
 
 
 
CO_OPTEES 

Councillors A Blackburn, J Chapman, 
D Congreve, M Iqbal, G Kirkland, A Lamb, 
G Latty, A McKenna, J Monaghan and 
L Yeadon 
 
E Mack 

 
 
 

86 Apologies for Absence  
 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Illingworth. 
 

87 Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 24 March 2009, be 
confirmed as a correct record subject to the inclusion of Councillor Iqbal and E 
Mack under those present. 
 

88 Mental Health Provision  
 

The report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development reminded the 
Board of their request to have an item to discuss a range of issues relating to 
mental health.  Accordingly  officers from Leeds Partnership Foundation NHS 
Trust had been invited to engage with Members in a general question and 
answer session around mental health issues. 
 
The Chair welcomed the following to the meeting: 
 

• Debbie Ward, Associate Director Specialist Services and Lead 
Associate Director 

• Gary Hostick, Associate Director Older People’s Services 

• Lynn Parkinson – Associate Director Adult’s Services 
 
In response to Members comments and questions, the following issues were 
discussed: 
 

• Closure of hospital wards for mental health patients across the city.  It 
was reported that redesigned services had provided more opportunity 
to provide care in community settings.  Services, including those 
developed under the POPPs programme, had provided more support 
at home and other alternate care to hospital admission. 

• Issues relating to dementia – diagnosis, treatment of and other service 
provision. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



Draft minutes to be approved at the next  
meeting of the Scrutiny Board (Health) 

 

• How to access Leeds Partnership Foundation NHS Trust services. 

• Provision for young people – it was reported that there was specialist 
provision for children and young people and NHS partners worked in 
close conjunction with Education Leeds where necessary. 

• Provision at the Becklin Centre and the Mount. 

• Developing future provision and community engagement in the 
consultation process. 

• The increased need for services due to people living longer. 

• How to access care from home. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report and discussion be noted. 
 

89 Hospital Discharges  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report regarding 
the Board’s Inquiry into Hospital Discharges.  This session of the Inquiry was 
to consider a report of Leeds Partnership Foundation NHS Trust (LPFT). 
 
It was reported that LPFT’s main provision was through hospital admissions, 
but there was an emphasis on ensuring that patients did not remain in hospital 
longer than necessary.  In response to concerns that patients may be 
discharged without appropriate care packages, it was reported that a patient’s 
discharge plan was commenced upon admission and that this should take 
care of any further care requirements.  Other issues discussed that affected 
discharges included a patient’s choice for after care when discharged and 
attention was brought to the number of delayed discharges which had shown 
a recent decline in numbers. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report and discussion be noted. 
 

90 GP-Led Health Centre  
 

The report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development reminded the 
Board of the recent Inquiry into the provision of a GP-led Health Centre in 
Burmantofts. 
 
The Chair welcomed Doctor Damien Riley, NHS Leeds to the meeting. 
 
In response to Member’s comments and questions, the following issues were 
discussed: 
 

• There had been 128 new patients registered at the centre and 368 
people had accessed the walk-in service. 

• Patients had been asked where they had come from and usage times 
had been monitored.  The service had been used outside normal GP 
opening hours and on a weekend and patients had visited from as far 
as Morley. 

• In response to a question regarding provision of Sexual Health 
services, it was reported that there had been a shift to the use of 

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the next  
meeting of the Scrutiny Board (Health) 

 

specialist clinics and also direct provision of treatments from 
pharmacies. 

• Further issues discussed included improvements to the building, 
problems with car parking and when it was anticipated that there would 
be a need to employ more GP’s at the centre.  It was reported that the 
average number of patients registered to each GP was 1,700 and this 
was acknowledged as a longer term concern for the centre. 

 
RESOLVED –  
 

(1) That the report be noted 
(2) That a further progress report be brought to the Board in six 

months. 
 

91 Improving Young People's Sexual Health  
 

The report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development outlined the 
draft final report following the Board’s Inquiry into Improving Sexual Health for 
Young People.  Members were invited to comment on the draft report. 
 
In brief summary, the following issues were discussed: 
 

• Sex education and at what age this should be introduced. 

• Comparisons across different religious and cultural groups and their 
differing views on sex education. 

• Availability of sexual health advice and care at walk in centres and at 
Contraceptive and Sexual Health Clinics.. 

 
RESOLVED – That subject to the minor amendments discussed, the draft 
report be agreed. 
 

92 Health Proposals Working Group  
 

The report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development gave the Board 
an update of the Health Proposals Working Group and detailed minutes of its 
last meeting. 
 
Discussion took place regarding the current format of the group and how to 
improve Elected Member attendance.  It was suggested that the Group could 
meet on the same day as the Board. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

93 Annual Report  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a copy of the 
Board’s draft Annual Report.  The Board’s report would form part of the 
composite report which would be submitted to Full Council. 
 

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the next  
meeting of the Scrutiny Board (Health) 

 

RESOLVED – That the Board’s contribution to the composite report be 
agreed. 
 

94 Recommendation Tracking  
 

The report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development detailed 
progress made on previous recommendations made by the Board.  The Board 
was asked to decide which items no longer required monitoring as indicated in 
the report. 
 
RESOLVED – That the tracking stages as outlined in the report on the 
Board’s previous recommendations be agreed. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



 
 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board:  Scrutiny Board (Health) 
 
Date:    30 June 2009 
 
Subject:  Appointment of Co-opted Members 
 

        
 
 
1.0 Purpose of the report 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek the Scrutiny Board’s formal consideration for 

the appointment of co-opted members to the Board. 
 
2.0 Background 
 

2.1 For a number of years the Council’s Constitution has made provision for the 
appointment of co-opted members to individual Scrutiny Boards.  For those Scrutiny 
Boards where co-opted members have previously been appointed, such 
arrangements have tended to be reviewed on an annual basis, usually at the 
beginning of a new municipal year.  However, the appointment of co-opted 
members has not been considered consistently across all Scrutiny Boards. 

 
Leeds City Council Scrutiny Review (May 2009) 

 

2.2 As part of their 2008/09 Audit and Inspection Plan, KPMG (the Council’s external 
auditors) carried out a review of the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny function.  The 
outcome of that review is presented elsewhere on the agenda, however a specific 
aspect relates to the appointment of co-opted members to Scrutiny Boards. 

 
2.3 The relevant extract and associated recommendation from the KPMG report is 

detailed below: 
 

Having attended Scrutiny meetings at LCC that had both co-opted Members 
on the Board and no co-opted Members there appeared to be a greater level 
of participation by all when the Boards contained co-opted Members. In 
addition the contribution made by the co-opted Members was very valuable 
as these Members were able to draw upon their experiences and provide a 
different perspective. 
 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Steven Courtney 
 
Tel: 247 4707 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 5



Currently the constitution of LCC does allow all Scrutiny Boards to have co-
opted members it is just something that is not widely exercised. This is almost 
the opposite at Bristol City Council where there are a large number of 
Scrutiny Boards with co-opted Members. The Scrutiny Support Unit has 
however been proactive in this area and have recently taken a paper to the 
Scrutiny Advisory Group highlighting the benefits of having co-opted 
Members on Scrutiny Boards. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.4 In response to this recommendation, it was agreed that each Scrutiny Board would 

be formally asked to consider the potential involvement of co-opted members 
throughout the year. 

 
3.0 Arrangements for appointing co-opted members 
 

General arrangements 
 

3.1 It is widely recognised that in some circumstances, in particular where there is some 
specialist knowledge or skill, co-opted members can significantly aid the work 
Scrutiny Boards.  This is currently reflected in Article 6 (Scrutiny Boards) of the 
Council’s Constitution, which outlines the options available to Scrutiny Boards in 
relation to appointing co-opted members.  In general terms, Scrutiny Boards can 
appoint: 

 

• Up to five non-voting co-opted members for a term of office that does not go 
beyond the next Annual Meeting of Council ; and/or, 

• Up to two non-voting co-opted members for a term of office that relates to the 
duration of a particular and specific scrutiny inquiry. 

 
Specific arrangements 

 

3.2 In the majority of cases the appointment of co-opted members is optional and is 
determined by the relevant Scrutiny Board, however, there are some particular 
legislative exceptions.  Such cases are also set out in Article 6 (Scrutiny Boards) of 
the Council’s Constitution and summarised below: 

 
Education Representatives 
 

3.3 In addition to elected Members appointed by Council, the Local Government Act 
2000 states that the relevant Scrutiny Board dealing with education matters shall 
include in its membership the following voting representatives in accordance with 
statutory requirements: 

 

• One Church of England diocese representative1  

• One Roman Catholic diocese representative1 

• Three parent governor representatives2  
 

Where the Scrutiny Board deals with other non-educational matters the co-opted 
members may participate in any discussion but shall not be entitled to vote on those 
matters. 

                                                
1
  Article 6 states this appointment shall be for a term of office that does not go beyond the next Annual 
Meeting of Council 

2
  Article 6 states these appointments shall be for a four-year term of office 

Recommendation Six 
 

Each of the Scrutiny Boards should assess more formally whether co-opted 
Members should be invited to participate in their Board so to allow them to 
draw from the benefits of their involvement. 

Page 6



 
Crime and Disorder Representatives  
 

3.4 In accordance with the requirements of the Police and Justice Act 2006, the Council 
has designated the Scrutiny Board (Environment and Neighbourhoods) to act as the 
Council’s crime and disorder committee.   

 
3.5 The overall implications of this designation are detailed elsewhere on the agenda, 

however there are specific powers relating to the appointment of additional 
members detailed in Article 6.  In this regard the Scrutiny Board (Environment and 
Neighbourhoods) may co-opt additional members to serve on the Board, providing 
they are: 

 

• An employee, officer or member of a responsible authority3 or of a co-
operating person or body4; and,   

• Not an Executive Member 
 
3.6 The Scrutiny Board (Environment and Neighbourhoods) may limit the co-opted 

member’s participation to those matters where the Scrutiny Board is acting as the 
Council’s crime and disorder committee. 

 
3.7 As Leeds does not have a formal scheme to allow a co-opted member to have 

voting rights, any co-opted member will not have voting rights and the Board may 
withdraw the co-opted membership at any time.  

 
4.0 Issue to consider when seeking to appoint co-opted members 
 

4.1 Currently, there is no overarching national guidance or criteria that should be 
considered when seeking to appoint co-opted members.  As a result, there is a 
plethora of methods employed within Councils for the appointment of co-optees to 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees (Scrutiny Boards).  For example, some 
Council’s use “job descriptions”, some carry out formal interviews and some 
advertise for co-optees in the local press, with individuals completing a simple 
application form which is then considered by Members.   

 
4.2 In considering or seeking the appointment of co-opted members, Scrutiny Boards 

may find it useful to consider that co-opted members should: 

• Add value to the work of the Scrutiny Board and/or specific inquiry, by having 
some specialist skill or knowledge 

• Be considered as representatives of wider groups of people.  For example, 
service user representatives, voluntary or community groups etc. 

• Not be seen as a replacement to professional advice from officers; 

• Be mindful about the extent of any potential conflicts of interest; 
 
4.3 Despite the lack of any national guidance, what is clear is that any process for 

appointing co-opted members should be open, effective and carried out in a manner 
which seeks to strengthen the work of Scrutiny Boards. 

 
4.4 In addition, when considering the issue of co-opted members, Scrutiny Boards 

should also be mindful of the role of expert witnesses and seeking information / 

                                                
3
  These are the authorities responsible for crime and disorder strategies, as detailed in the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998, Section 5.  In Leeds, Safer Leeds is the city’s Crime and Disorder Reduction 
Partnership, therefore the ‘responsible authorities’ are those bodies represented on the Safer Leeds 
Partnership Executive. 

4
  People or bodies with whom the responsible authorities have a duty to co-operate as set out in the Police 
and Justice Act 2006, Section 19(2)(b). 

Page 7



evidence from a variety of different sources to help fulfill the objectives of the work 
programme and/or a specific inquiry. 

 
5.0 Scrutiny Board (Health) 
 
5.1 During 2008/09, Scrutiny Board (Health) made the following non-voting co-opted 

appointments: 
 

• A representative of Leeds Voice (Health Forum) – Mr. Eddie Mack 

• A representative of Touchstone – Ms Samoud Saqfelhait 
 
5.2 The term of office for these appointments has now come to an end and the 

nominating bodies have been advised accordingly.  In addition, should the Scrutiny 
Board (Health) decide to appoint co-opted members for 2009/10, the nominating 
bodies have also been asked to indicate whether or not they would wish the Board 
to consider re-appointing representatives from their organisation.  The Board will be 
advised of any response received at the meeting.   

 
Leeds Local Involvement Networks (LINk) 

 

5.3 Furthermore, this year the Scrutiny Board is advised to consider the role of the new 
Leeds Local Involvement Network (LINk).  Further details about the LINk are set out 
later in the Board’s agenda.  In summary, the LINk will act as the successor to the 
Patient and Public Involvement Forums, but with an extended remit covering social 
care.  Run by local people and groups, the role of a LINk is to promote involvement; 
to find out what people like and dislike about local services; monitor the care 
provided by services; and use LINk powers to hold services to account. 

 
5.4 Under provisions in the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 

2007, the local LINk has the right to refer both health and social care matters to the 
relevant Scrutiny Board.  In turn, this places responsibility on the appropriate 
Scrutiny Board to acknowledge any such referrals and keep the LINk informed 
about what actions, if any, will be taken. 

 
5.5 Locally, in August 2008, the Shaw Trust was appointed as the host organisation to 

support the work of the Leeds LINk.  Since that time it has been working with the 
LINk Preparatory Group to get a wide range of people and organisations involved in 
the LINk. In addition, an Interim Steering Group (the membership of which was 
drawn from the LINk Preparatory Group) was established to act as a provisional 
decision-making body, pending the establishment of a formal steering group 
following appropriate elections.   

 
5.6 Leeds’ LINk is set for an official launch on 9 June 2009.  This will include the formal 

opening of the election process to establish a LINk Steering Group (also referred to 
as the ‘core group’).  It is anticipated that the LINk Steering Group will be in place in 
August 2009, but until that time the Interim Steering Group will continue to act as the 
decision-making body. 

 
Leeds LINk – Annual Report 

 

5.7 LINks are accountable to the public and to the Secretary of State for Health.  As 
such,  every year all LINks are required to publish an annual report, which will also 
be sent to the Care Quality Commission, to relevant Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees (Scrutiny Boards),  Primary Care Trusts (NHS Leeds) and the Strategic 
Health Authoritys (NHS Yorkshire and the Humber).   

 
Page 8



5.8 The Annual Report (2008/09) for the Leeds LINk, covering the period 1 April 2008 to 
31 March 2009, is currently being prepared and will be agreed by the Interim 
Steering Group. The deadline for the completion of the  Annual Report (2008/09) is 
30 June 2009 and, in line with the requirements of legislation, will be made available 
to the Scrutiny Board as soon as practicable. 

 
Leeds LINk representatives as co-opted members 

 

5.9 Given the role and function of LINks, the relationship between the Leeds LINk and 
the Council’s Scrutiny Boards will be key. The Board may therefore wish to give 
consideration to seeking nominations from Leeds LINk for representatives to act as 
non-voting co-opted members on the Board this year. 

 
5.10 The Board may also wish to consider a similar approach if/when seeking to identify 

any non-voting co-opted members for the duration of a particular and specific 
scrutiny inquiry (as indicated in paragraph 3.1 above). 

 
6.0 Recommendation  
 

6.1 In line with the options available outlined in this report, Members are asked to 
consider the appointment of co-opted members to the Scrutiny Board. 

 
 
Background Papers 

 

• The Council’s Constitution 

• Police and Justice Act 2006 

• KPMG Scrutiny Review May 2009 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board:  Scrutiny Board (Health) 
 
Date:    30 June 2009 
 
Subject:  Constitutional Amendments 
 

        
 
 
1.0 Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 This report provides the Board with information and guidance reflecting recent 

amendments of the Council’s Constitution, as agreed by Council on 21 May 2009, 
which directly relate to and/or impact on the work of Scrutiny Boards. 

 
2.0 Background 
 
2.1 The Local Government Act 2000 introduced new models of governance and 

decision-making arrangements for local authorities in England and Wales.  This 
included putting in place executive arrangements for decision-making through a 
smaller, more prominent, number of local Councillors (the Executive Board).  Within 
the new arrangements, the overview and scrutiny function was established to hold 
the Executive Board to account for its decisions and to contribute to evidence-based 
policy development across the Council.   

 
2.2 Through a number of legislative changes, for example the Health and Social Care 

Act 2001 which introduced local health scrutiny, the role and responsibilities of 
overview and scrutiny have expanded significantly; with the function now responsible 
for investigating the delivery of services provided by a wide range of public, private 
and third-sector partners.   

 
2.3 This report seeks to reflect on recent legislative changes, its impact on the scrutiny 

function and the subsequent amendments to the Council’s Constitution, through 
changes to both the Scrutiny Board Procedural Rules and supportive guidance 
notes. 

 
 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Steven Courtney 
 
Tel: 247 4707 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 11



3.0 Constitutional amendments 
 
3.1 Two recent Acts of Parliament, namely the Local Government and Public 

Involvement in Health Act 2007 and the Police and Justice Act 2006, have had a 
direct impact on the scrutiny function and required amendments to the Council’s 
Constitution.  Such amendments were agreed at the Council meeting in May 2009 
and summarised below. 

 
Councillor Call for Action (CCfA) Provisions 
 

3.2 The Local Government Act 2000 included provisions to allow Elected Members to 
raise matters for consideration by the Council’s Scrutiny Boards.  This was reflected 
in the Council’s Constitution, Scrutiny Board Procedure Rule 12 which made 
provision for dealing with such requests. 

 
3.3 To supplement and strengthen the provisions set out in the Local Government Act 

2000, the Government recently enacted provisions at Section 119 of the Local 
Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007.  Referred to as ‘Councillor 
Call for Action’, these provisions give Councillors the opportunity to ask for 
discussions at Scrutiny Boards where local problems have arisen and where other 
methods of resolution have been exhausted. 

 
3.4 Specific guidance on the process for administering a CCfA is set out in Annex 1 of 

the attached Guidance Note: Requests for Scrutiny, Including Councillor Call for 
Action (CCfA), Local Crime and Disorder Matters, and Health and Social Care 
Matters. 

 
Arrangements for the Scrutiny of Crime and Disorder Functions and Local Crime and 
Disorder Matters 

 

3.5 The Police and Justice Act 2006 extends the remit of local authorities to scrutinise 
crime and disorder functions1, with Part 3 of the Act stating that every local authority 
shall ensure it has a ‘Crime and Disorder Committee’ to fulfill this role.  At the Council 
meeting in May 2009, the Environment and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Board was 
assigned to undertake this role. 

 
3.6 Overall, in its capacity as a crime and disorder committee,  the Scrutiny Board 

(Environment and Neighbourhoods) has powers to: 
 

(a) Review or scrutinise decisions made (or action taken), in connection with the 
discharge of crime and disorder functions by the ‘responsible authorities2’; 

(b) Review or scrutinise any Member referred local crime and disorder matter; 
(c) Make reports and/or recommendations to the Council or the Executive;  
(d) Call an officer from a responsible authority to attend its meetings in order to 

answer questions or otherwise to provide information and to respond to reports 
or recommendations made by the Scrutiny Board; 

(e) Co-opt additional members to serve on the committee, either with or without 
voting rights3 

 

These additional powers are reflected in the revised terms of reference for the 
Scrutiny Board (Environment and Neighbourhoods). 

                                                
1
  Set out in Sections 19, 20 and 21 of the Police and Justice Act 2006 
2
  These are the authorities responsible for crime and disorder strategies, as detailed in the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998, Section 5.  In Leeds, Safer Leeds is the city’s Crime and Disorder Reduction 
Partnership, therefore the ‘responsible authorities’ are those bodies represented on the Safer Leeds 
Partnership Executive 

3
  Details are set out in Article 6 (Scrutiny Boards: Co-opted Members) 

Page 12



 
3.7 Alongside the additional scrutiny powers, in its capacity as the Council’s crime and 

disorder committee,  the Scrutiny Board (Environment and Neighbourhoods) must 
meet at least once each year to fulfill its role in relation to the responsible authorities. 

 
3.8 The Police and Justice Act 2006 also makes provision for elected members to refer 

local crime and disorder matters to the Council’s designated Crime and Disorder 
Committee.   

 
3.9 For this purpose, local crime and disorder matters should be considered to 

encompass all community safety issues that affect all or part of the ward for which 
the member is elected or any person who lives or works in that area, including:  

 

• Antisocial behaviour; 

• Other behaviour adversely affecting the local environment; 

• The misuse of drugs, alcohol or other substances 
 
3.10 While the Police and Justice Act 2006 clearly provides separate provision for the 

referral of local crime and disorder matters, in practice the principles and processes 
involved are essentially the same as for any Councillor Call for Action (CCfA) referral, 
however any crime and disorder referrals will be considered by the Scrutiny Board 
(Environment and Neighbourhoods), in its capacity as the Council’s crime and 
disorder committee. 

 
3.11 Specific guidance on the process for administering a Local Crime and Disorder 

referral is set out in Annex 2 of the attached Guidance Note: Requests for Scrutiny, 
Including Councillor Call for Action (CCfA), Local Crime and Disorder Matters, and 
Health and Social Care Matters. 

 
Local Involvement Networks (LINkS) 

 

3.12 The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 gave a duty to all 
150 local authorities in England with social services responsibilities, to enable the 
formation of a Local Involvement Network (LINk), to act as the successor to the 
Patient and Public Involvement Forums (PPIF) but with an extended remit covering 
social care. 

 
3.13 Under provisions in the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 

2007, the local LINk has the right to refer both health and social care matters to the 
relevant Scrutiny Board. In turn, this places responsibility on the appropriate Scrutiny 
Board to acknowledge any such referrals keep the LINk informed about what actions, 
if any, will be taken. 

 
3.14 Specific guidance on the process for administering a Health and Social Care referral 

is set out in Annex 3 of the attached Guidance Note: Requests for Scrutiny, Including 
Councillor Call for Action (CCfA), Local Crime and Disorder Matters, and Health and 
Social Care Matters. 

 
Responding to inquiry report and recommendations 
 

3.15 The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 also places a duty 
on the Council or Executive to consider and respond to any Scrutiny Board report 
and/or recommendations within two months of receipt of the report/ 
recommendations.  In referring any report / recommendations, a Scrutiny Board can 
require the Council or Executive to: 

   

• Consider its report or recommendations; 

Page 13



• Respond, outlining any proposed action; 

• Publish the response (if the Scrutiny Board has published its report and/or 
recommendations); 

• Provide a copy of the response to the referring Member, where the matter 
originated from a “Councillor Call for Action”. 

 
3.16 Where a Scrutiny Board sends its report or recommendations to another body, the 

body in question will also be asked to send its response to the Scrutiny Board within 
two months4, setting out: 

 

• The views of the body 

• Details of any action already taken in response to the recommendations; 

• Proposed action and timescales; or 

• Any reasons for inaction. 
 
4.0 Other legislative changes 
 

Scrutiny of Partners  
 

4.1 Since its inception, it has been widely regarded as good practice for Scrutiny Boards 
to consider evidence/ information from a variety of sources, including partner and/or 
other outside organisations.   The ability for Scrutiny Boards to require information 
from some outside organisations (relevant partners) is already covered in other 
legislation (i.e. NHS Act 2006 at Section 44 relating to Local NHS bodies for Health 
Scrutiny and section 20(5) of the Police and Justice Act 2006 for Crime and Disorder 
issues). However, with Scrutiny Boards having limited powers to require outside 
bodies to provide information,  any requests for information have tended to be reliant 
on the cooperation or good will of the organisation involved.   

 
4.2 However, Section 121 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 

2007 places a requirement on certain partner organisations5 to provide information to 
a relevant scrutiny committee when requested to do so.   

 
4.3 While the information will relate to the partners responsibility for the delivery of LAA 

improvement targets, the Secretary of State has still to make regulations covering 
exactly what information relevant partner authorities must provide, and/or may not 
disclose to Scrutiny Boards. Clarity is also required on a number of issues including 
timescales and whether partners will be compelled to attend Scrutiny Board meetings 
or simply provide the information requested.  Once issued, such regulations are likely 
to require further amendment(s) to the Council’s Constitution and associated 
guidance notes. 

 
5.0 Recommendations  
 
5.1 In fulfilling the role and function of the Scrutiny Board, Members are requested to 

note the amendments to the Council’s Constitution outlined in the report.    
 
5.2 Members are also requested to note the likely changes resulting from the Secretary 

of State regulations regarding the provision of information from partner authorities. 
 

                                                
4
  For NHS dodies this time limit is 28 days (the Local Authority (Overview and Scrutiny Committee Health 
Scrutiny Functions) Regulations 2002. Where a Scrutiny Board has sent a report to a partnership the 
partnership is not required under these Rules to provide a response. Any partnership not otherwise 
required to provide a response will be invited to do so. 

5
  Set out in Part 5, Chapter 1 (Section 104). 

 

Page 14



6.0 Background Paper 
 

The Council’s Constitution 
Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 
Police and Justice Act 2006 

 
 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



 
GUIDANCE NOTE 

 
REQUESTS FOR SCRUTINY, INCLUDING COUNCILLOR CALL FOR  

ACTION (CCfA), LOCAL CRIME AND DISORDER MATTERS  
AND HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE MATTERS 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1. The Local Government Act 2000 introduced new models of governance and 

decision-making arrangements for local authorities in England and Wales.  This 
included putting in place executive arrangements for decision-making through 
a smaller, more prominent, number of local councillors (the Executive Board).  
The overview and scrutiny function was established to hold the Executive 
Board to account for its decisions and to contribute to evidence-based policy 
development in the council. 

 
1.2. In recent years, the role and responsibilities of overview and scrutiny have 

expanded significantly, with the function now responsible for investigating the 
delivery of services provided by a wide range of public, private and third-sector 
partners. Scrutiny’s unique remit and enhanced public profile means that it can 
be the focus of many requests and suggestions for detailed investigations/ 
inquiries.    

 
1.3. Currently, there are a number of avenues for making a request for scrutiny, 

some of which are specifically set out in legislation.  The Council’s Constitution, 
through its Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules, makes provision for dealing with 
requests for scrutiny from a number of different sources and/or relating to 
different areas, including: 

 

• The Executive or Council; 

• Members of a Scrutiny Board; 

• Councillor Calls for Action (CCfA); 

• Local Crime and Disorder Matters; 

• Health and Social Care Matters; 

• Other sources, such as individual Members of Council, 
community groups and individual members of the public. 

 
1.4. This guidance note seeks to provide general advice for Scrutiny Boards and 

Officers dealing with requests for scrutiny, along with more specific advice on:  
 

• Councillor Calls for Action (CCfA)1; 

• Local Crime and Disorder Matters2; 

• Health and Social Care Matters; 
    
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1. Scrutiny’s unique remit means that it is often in an excellent position to 

examine the links between organisations and see where working 
collaboratively could deliver enhanced services for local people.  As such, 
Scrutiny Boards are often well placed to: 

 

• Use a variety of tools to identify areas for review; 

                                            
1
  As set out in Section 119 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 
2
  As set out in Section 19 of the Police and Criminal Justice Act 2006 

Page 17



 

• Obtain all the information required to identify any shortcomings in 
specific areas; 

• Discuss matters of concern with those both in receipt of services 
and those responsible for service delivery; 

• Produce reports and make appropriate recommendations for 
improvement. 

 
2.2. As such, where areas for improvement have been identified and/or where 

matters remain unresolved, the ability to give an issue wider consideration by 
referring it to one or more of the Council’s Scrutiny Boards should be regarded 
as a useful additional tool. 

 
3. REQUESTS FOR SCRUTINY 
 

General requests for scrutiny 
 
3.1. Requests for scrutiny can emerge from a variety of sources and/or relate to a 

range of different areas (as set out in paragraph 1.3).   
 
3.2. In broad terms, the Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules provide details of how 

requests for scrutiny from different sources should be administered.  This can 
be summarised as follows: 

 

• All requests for scrutiny received will be added to the agenda of the next 
ordinary meeting of the relevant Scrutiny Board;   

• Interested parties will be notified of the date, time and location of the 
Scrutiny Board meeting where a request for scrutiny will be considered; 

• At that meeting, the Scrutiny Board will determine whether or not to 
undertake a specific inquiry. 

 
3.3. When deciding whether or not to undertake a scrutiny inquiry, a Scrutiny Board 

may usefully wish to consider and confirm whether: 
 

• The matter raised relates The Board has considered a similar issue 
recently, and if so whether the circumstances and/or evidence has 
changed significantly. 

 

• The matter raised relates solely to an individual and is being or should be 
pursued via the Council’s and/or other existing complaints procedure. 

 

• A similar or related issue is already included on the Board’s current work 
programme, as it may be more appropriate to link the request for scrutiny 
to an existing work item.  

 

• The matter might more usefully be considered and referred to an 
alternative Scrutiny Board (i.e. as part of another inquiry and/or Scrutiny 
Board work programme). 

 

• The matter raised is of sufficient significance and has the potential for 
scrutiny to produce realistic recommendations that could be implemented 
and lead to tangible improvements. 

 
3.4. Where a Scrutiny Board is minded to undertake an inquiry as a result of a 

request for scrutiny, the Scrutiny Board will also consider: 
 

• How the request meets the inquiry selection criteria;  

Page 18



 

• The impact on the Board’s current work programme; 

• The time available to undertake an inquiry; and,  

• The level of resources required to carry out the work. 
 
3.5. The decision whether or not to further investigate matters raised by a request 

for scrutiny is the sole responsibility of the Scrutiny Board.  As such, any 
decision in this regard is final and there is no right of appeal. 

 
3.6. Notification of the Scrutiny Board’s decision (i.e. whether or not to investigate 

the matter(s) raised) will be provided based on the source of the original 
request, as follows: 

 

• The Executive or Council – a detailed minute of the Scrutiny 
Board decision; 

• Members of a Scrutiny Board – a detailed minute of the Scrutiny 
Board decision; 

• Individual Members of Council – a detailed minute of the Scrutiny 
Board decision, followed by a letter on behalf of the Scrutiny 
Board. 

• Community groups and individual members of the public – a 
detailed minute of the Scrutiny Board decision, followed by a 
letter on behalf of the Scrutiny Board. 

 
3.7. Where a Scrutiny Board decides not to investigate the matter(s) raised, the 

notification provided will include the reason(s) for that decision.   
 
3.8. Where a Scrutiny Board decides to investigate the matter(s) raised, the 

notification provided will include an outline of the agreed actions with an 
indicative timetable.  Notification of any significant deviation from this timetable 
will subsequently be provided.  

 
3.9. A copy of any final report agreed by the Scrutiny Board and/or any 

recommendations made to the Council or the Executive Board will be made 
publically available and provided to the relevant parties as soon as 
practicable3.   

 
Specific requests for scrutiny 

 
3.10. Guidance on specific types of requests for scrutiny are attached to this 

guidance note as follows: 
 

• Annex 1 – Councillor Calls for Action (CCfA); 

• Annex 2 – Local Crime and Disorder Matters; 

• Annex 3 – Health and Social Care Matters; 
 
 

                                            
3
  Subject to the provisions set out in the Local Government Act 2000 with regard to confidential 
and/or exempt information. 

Page 19



 
ANNEX 1 

 
REQUESTS FOR SCRUTINY: COUNCILLOR CALL FOR ACTION (CCfA) 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1. Resolving concerns of the local community is an important element of a local 

councillor’s role, and frequently these are resolved via a network of contacts 
within the organisation.  However, where matters remain unresolved, the ability 
to give an issue wider consideration by referring it to an Overview and Scrutiny 
Board should be regarded as a useful additional tool.  

 
1.2. In this regard, the Government has recently introduced provisions at Section 

119 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 
referred to as ‘Councillor Call for Action’, to allow Councillors the opportunity to 
ask for discussions at Scrutiny Boards where local problems have arisen and 
other methods of resolution have been exhausted and failed to deliver an 
appropriate outcome. 

 
1.3. This part of the guidance note relates to the process for administering a 

Councillor Call for Action (CCfA)4 and aims to provide guidance and assistance 
for Members, Scrutiny Boards and Officers in the management and 
consideration of such requests.   

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1. Under the provisions set out in Section 119 of the Local Government and 

Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, a local member may raise a matter 
which relates to the discharge of any function of the authority that affects all or 
part of the ward for which the member is elected or any person who lives or 
works in that area, subject to the following exclusions,: 

 

• a matter which is a local crime and disorder matter within the meaning of 
section 19 of the Police and Criminal Justice Act 20065;  
 

• individual complaints concerning personal grievances or commercial 
issues6;  

 

• any matter relating to a planning decision6; 
 

• any matter relating to a licensing decision6; 
 

• any matter relating to an individual or entity where a right of recourse, 
review or appeal already exists6; 

 

• any matter which is vexatious, discriminatory or not reasonable to be 
included on the agenda for, or to be discussed at, a Scrutiny Board 
meeting6; 

 

• any other matters specified in an order made by the Secretary of State from 
time to time. 

 

                                            
4
  As set out in Section 119 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 
5
  Guidance on Arrangements for the Scrutiny of Crime and Disorder Functions and Local Crime and 
Disorder Matters is provided in Annex B of this guidance note.   

6
  The Overview and Scrutiny (Reference by Councillors) (Excluded Matters) (England) Order 2008 
defines an ‘excluded matter’ and came into force on 1 April 2009. 

Page 20



 
2.2. There is also provision for any matter to be referred to Overview and Scrutiny 

that consists of an allegation of systematic failure within the Council, 
notwithstanding the fact that the allegation specifies matters which would 
otherwise be excluded. 

 
2.3. Best practice guidance on Councillor Call for Action (CCfA) has been published 

by the Centre for Public Scrutiny and the Improvement and Development 
Agency7.  Whilst this guidance is not prescriptive it provides case study 
examples of good practice and local authorities that piloted CCfA 
arrangements.  The key points emphasised in the guidance include: 
 

• CCfA is a means of last resort and should be aimed at seeking 
resolution where other techniques have failed; 

 

• senior level officer and Member commitment to resolving issues is 
necessary for maximum effort; 

 

• any local CCfA guidance to be light touch; 
 

• the CCfA process should be developed through a consultation 
process involving Members and other local partners; 

 

• CCfA is designed to assist Members in dealing with local ward 
issues – problems which affect the whole Council area should be 
dealt with in another way; 

 

• Members will need to discuss what exactly will constitute the 
successful resolution of the issue; 

 

• the forum for discussion is less important than the fact that the 
issue should be discussed together in its entirety. 

 
3. COUNCILLOR CALL FOR ACTION – THE LOCAL PROCESS 
 

Steps to be taken prior to making a Councillor Call for Action (CCfA) referral  
 

3.1. The CCfA should be considered as a mechanism of last resort, where all other 
methods of resolution have been exhausted and failed to deliver an appropriate 
outcome. 

 
3.2. In using the CCfA provisions, a ward member (the referring Member) must 

have regard to the guidance issued by the Secretary of State, outlined in 2.1 
above, paying particular attention to those matters deemed to be excluded.  

 
3.3. Prior to referring a CCfA to a Scrutiny Board, the referring Member must have 

made reasonable attempts to resolve the matter using all mechanisms and 
resources available to them as a ward councillor.    

 
3.4. As a minimum, it is expected that the referring Member will have satisfied  

themselves that the issue is not an excluded matter and will have made 
reasonable attempts to resolve the matter by approaching one or more of the 
following:  

 

• the relevant Director(s) and/or Chief Officer(s)  

• the relevant Executive Board member(s) 

• any relevant partnership bodies or local groups  

                                            
7
  Available from the Publications section of the Centre for Public Scrutiny website: www.cfps.org.uk 

Page 21



 
 

Making a Councillor Call for Action (CCfA) referral  
 

3.5. Any CCfA request should be made in writing to the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development and be accompanied with supporting evidence, 
including details of any meetings and/or discussions that have taken place in 
an attempt to resolve the matter, along with any associated conclusions.   

 
3.6. The purpose of providing such supporting evidence is to demonstrate that 

other appropriate methods of resolution have been explored and exhausted.  
As such, in providing any supporting evidence the referring Member should 
seek to demonstrate that: 

 

• All relevant internal routes of resolution have been followed, with sufficient 
time allowed to resolve the matter.   

 

• The matter should not be pursued via the Council’s complaints procedure.  
 

• All relevant partner organisations have been informed of the matter (for 
example,  through formal letters written on behalf of constituents), with 
sufficient time allowed to resolve the matter.  

 
3.7. Where the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development deems that there is 

insufficient evidence to demonstrate that other methods of resolution have 
been exhausted then the request will be deemed invalid.  In such 
circumstances, the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development will notify the 
referring Member in writing within 5 working days, detailing the reason(s) for 
the decision made. 

 
3.8. Where a CCfA request has been deemed invalid, the referring Member shall 

have the right to appeal the decision of the Head of Scrutiny and Member 
Development.  Any such appeals shall be made in writing to the Chief 
Democratic Services Officer within 5 working days of the original notification 
provided by the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development. 

 
3.9. On receipt of such an appeal, the Chief Democratic Services Officer shall 

provide notification of the judgement made in relation to the CCfA request 
within 5 working days, detailing the reason(s) for the decision made.  Such 
notification will be made in writing and provided to the referring Member and 
the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development.   

 
3.10. The decision of the Chief Democratic Services Officer shall be final and there 

will be no further right of appeal. 
 
Prior to the Scrutiny Board meeting  

 

3.11. Any valid CCfA request received will be included on the agenda of the next 
ordinary meeting of the appropriate Scrutiny Board.  This shall include all 
supporting evidence8 provided to demonstrate that other appropriate methods 
of resolution have been explored and exhausted. 

 

                                            
8
  Subject to the provisions set out in the Local Government Act 2000 with regard to confidential 
and/or exempt information. 

Page 22



 
3.12. The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development shall notify the referring 

Member of the date, time and location of the Scrutiny Board meeting where the 
request shall be considered. 

 
3.13. At the discretion of the relevant Scrutiny Board Chair, the relevant member of 

the Executive Board, Area Committee Chair and/or appropriate officer will be 
invited to attend and contribute to the discussion at the Scrutiny Board meeting 
where a CCfA request is being considered. 

 
3.14. In order to assist the Scrutiny Board in reaching a decision on a CCfA request, 

the Chair of the Scrutiny Board may also choose to invite other organisation(s) 
and/or individual(s) to attend and contribute to the discussion at the Scrutiny 
Board meeting. 

 
During the Scrutiny Board meeting 

 

3.15. All CCfA requests will to be looked at on their individual merits and on the basis 
of the evidence provided.  The referring Member will be entitled to address the 
meeting of the Scrutiny Board when a CCfA request is being considered. 

 
3.16. In considering whether or not to investigate the matter raised, the Scrutiny 

Board will have regard to: 
 

• any powers which the referring Member may exercise in relation to the 
matter under consideration (i.e. exercise of functions by local councillors 
under local delegated decision-making arrangements); 

 

• any representations made by the referring Member as to why the matter 
should be investigated. 

 
3.17. In order to assist the Scrutiny Board in deciding whether or not to investigate 

the matter(s) raised, the Chair of the Scrutiny Board may also choose to invite 
comments from any other organisation(s) or individual(s) deemed suitable. 

 
3.18. When deciding  whether or not to further investigate the CCfA, the Scrutiny 

Board may usefully wish to consider and confirm whether:  
 

• There is sufficient evidence to demonstrate that: 
o All reasonable attempts have been made to resolve the matter 

by the referring Member.  
o The matter raised is not being progressed and all relevant 

service areas or partner organisations have been informed and 
allowed sufficient time to resolve the matter. 

 

• The matter is being or should be pursued via the Council’s complaints 
procedure. 

 

• The Board has considered a similar issue recently, and if so whether the 
circumstances and/or evidence has changed significantly. 

 

• A similar or related issue is already included on the Board’s current work 
programme, as it may be more appropriate to link the CCfA request to an 
existing work item.  

 

• The matter might more usefully be considered and referred to an 
alternative Scrutiny Board (i.e. as part of another inquiry and/or Scrutiny 
Board work programme). 

 

Page 23



 

• The matter referred has the potential for scrutiny to produce realistic 
recommendations that could be implemented and lead to improvements 
for anyone living or working in the referring Member’s ward.  

 

3.19. Where a Scrutiny Board is minded to undertake an inquiry as a result of a 
CCfA, the Scrutiny Board will also consider: 

 

• How the referral meets the inquiry selection criteria;  

• The impact on the Board’s current work programme; 

• The time available to undertake an inquiry; and,  

• The level of resources required to carry out the work. 
 
3.20. The decision whether or not to further investigate the matter(s) raised is the 

sole responsibility of the Scrutiny Board.  As such, any decision in this regard is 
final and there is no right of appeal. 

 
After the Scrutiny Board meeting 

 

3.21. Where a Scrutiny Board has considered a CCfA request, the Head of Scrutiny 
and Member Development will provide written notification of the outcome of the 
Scrutiny Board’s deliberations to the referring Member, within 5 working days 
of the Scrutiny Board meeting. 

 
3.22. Where a Scrutiny Board decides not to investigate the matter raised, this 

notification will include the reason(s) for that decision.   
 
3.23. Where a Scrutiny Board decides to further investigate the matter(s) raised, this 

notification will include an outline of the agreed actions with an indicative 
timetable.  The referring Member will be subsequently notified of any significant 
deviation from this timetable. 

 
3.24. A copy of any final report agreed by the Scrutiny Board and/or any 

recommendations made to the Council or the Executive Board will be provided 
to the referring Member as soon as practicable9.   

 
 
 
 

                                            
9
  Subject to the provisions set out in the Local Government Act 2000 with regard to confidential 
and/or exempt information. 

Page 24



 
ANNEX 2 

 
REQUESTS FOR SCRUTINY: LOCAL CRIME AND DISORDER MATTERS 

 
1. INTRODUCTION  
 
1.1. Provisions in the Police and Justice Act 2006, namely Section 19, 20 and 21, 

extend the remit of local authorities to scrutinise crime and disorder functions.  
As a result, the Council has been required to designate a Scrutiny Board to act 
as the Council’s ‘Crime and Disorder Committee’.  The Environment and 
Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Board has been assigned to fulfil this role.     

 
1.2. Overall, in its capacity as a crime and disorder committee,  the Scrutiny Board 

has powers to: 
 

(a) Review or scrutinise decisions made (or action taken), in connection with 
the discharge of crime and disorder functions by the ‘responsible 
authorities10’; 

(b) Review or scrutinise any Member referred local crime and disorder 
matter; 

(c) Make reports and/or recommendations to the Council or the Executive;  
(d) Call an officer from a responsible authority to attend its meetings in order 

to answer questions or otherwise to provide information and to respond to 
reports or recommendations made by the Scrutiny Board; 

(e) Co-opt additional members to serve on the committee, either with or 
without voting rights11 

 
1.3. In addition, the Scrutiny Board must meet to review or scrutinise decisions 

made, or other action taken, by the responsible authorities at least once a year. 
 
1.4. This part of the guidance note relates to the process for administering a Local 

Crime and Disorder referral and aims to provide guidance and assistance for 
Members, Scrutiny Boards and Officers in the management and consideration 
of such requests.   

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1. The Police and Justice Act 2006 makes provision for elected members to refer 

local crime and disorder matters to the Council’s designated Crime and 
Disorder Committee.  Local crime and disorder matters should be considered 
to encompass all community safety issues that affect all or part of the ward for 
which the member is elected or any person who lives or works in that area 
including: 

 

• Antisocial behaviour; 

• Other behaviour adversely affecting the local environment; 

• The misuse of drugs, alcohol or other substances 
 

                                            
10
  These are the authorities responsible for crime and disorder strategies, as detailed in the Crime 
and Disorder Act 1998, Section 5.  In Leeds, Safer Leeds is the city’s Crime and Disorder 
Reduction Partnership, therefore the ‘responsible authorities’ are those bodies represented on the 
Safer Leeds Partnership Executive 

11
  Details are set out in Article 6 (Scrutiny Boards: Co-opted Members) 

Page 25



 
2.2. While the Police and Justice Act 2006 makes separate provision for the referral 

of local crime and disorder matter, in practice the principles and processes 
involved are essentially the same as for any Councillor Call for Action (CCfA) 
referral. 

 
3. LOCAL CRIME AND DISORDER REFERRALS – THE LOCAL PROCESS 
 

Steps to be taken prior to making a local crime and disorder referral  
 
3.1. A local crime and disorder referral should be considered as a mechanism of 

last resort, where all other methods of resolution have been exhausted and 
failed to deliver an appropriate outcome. 

 
3.2. Prior to a referring a local crime and disorder matter to the Crime and Disorder 

Committee, the referring Member must have made reasonable attempts to 
resolve the matter using all mechanisms and resources available to them as a 
ward councillor.  As a minimum, it is expected that the referring Member will 
attempted to resolve the matter by approaching the ‘responsible authorities’ 
represented on the Safer Leeds Partnership Executive. 

 
Making a local crime and disorder referral  

 
3.3. Any local crime and disorder referral should be made in writing to the Head of 

Scrutiny and Member Development and be accompanied with supporting 
evidence, including details of any meetings and/or discussions that have taken 
place in an attempt to resolve the matter, along with any associated 
conclusions.   

 
3.4. The purpose of providing such supporting evidence is to demonstrate that 

other appropriate methods of resolution have been explored and exhausted.  
As such, in providing any supporting evidence the referring Member should 
seek to demonstrate that:  

 

• All relevant internal routes of resolution have been followed, with sufficient 
time allowed to resolve the matter.   

 

• The matter should not be pursued via an existing complaints procedure.  
 

• Relevant responsible authorities have been informed of the matter (for 
example, through formal letters written on behalf of constituents), with 
sufficient time allowed to resolve the matter.  

 
3.5. Where the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development deems that there is 

insufficient evidence to demonstrate that other methods of resolution have 
been exhausted then the referral will be deemed invalid.  In such 
circumstances, the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development will notify the 
referring Member in writing within 5 working days, detailing the reason(s) for 
the decision made. 

 
3.6. Where a local crime and disorder referral has been deemed invalid, the 

referring Member shall have the right to appeal the decision of the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development.  Any such appeals shall be made in 
writing to the Chief Democratic Services Officer within 5 working days of the 
original notification provided by the Head of Scrutiny and Member 
Development. 

Page 26



 
 
3.7. On receipt of such an appeal, the Chief Democratic Services Officer shall 

provide notification of the judgement made in relation to the local crime and 
disorder referral within 5 working days, detailing the reason(s) for the decision 
made.  Such notification will be made in writing and provided to the referring 
Member and the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development.  

 
3.8. The decision of the Chief Democratic Services Officer shall be final and there 

will be no further right of appeal. 
 

Prior to the Scrutiny Board meeting  
 

3.9. Any valid local crime and disorder referral received will be included on the 
agenda of the next ordinary meeting of the appropriate Scrutiny Board.  This 
shall include all supporting evidence12 provided to demonstrate that other 
appropriate methods of resolution have been explored and exhausted. 

 
3.10. The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development shall notify the referring 

Member of the date, time and location of the Scrutiny Board meeting where the 
request shall be considered. 

 
3.11. Where a local crime and disorder referral is being considered, the appropriate 

representative(s) from the relevant ‘responsible authorities’ represented on the 
Safer Leeds Partnership Executive will be invited to attend and contribute to 
the discussion at the Scrutiny Board meeting.   

 
3.12. In order to assist the Scrutiny Board in reaching a decision on a local crime and 

disorder referral, the Chair of the Scrutiny Board may also choose to invite 
other organisation(s) and/or individual(s) to attend the Scrutiny Board meeting. 
 
During the Scrutiny Board meeting 

 

3.13. All local crime and disorder referrals will to be looked at on their individual 
merits and on the basis of the evidence provided.  The referring Member will be 
entitled to address the meeting of the Scrutiny Board when a local crime and 
disorder referral, raised by that Councillor, is being considered. 

 
3.14. In considering whether or not to investigate the matter(s) raised, the Scrutiny 

Board will have regard to: 
 

• any powers which the referring Member may exercise in relation to the 
matter under consideration (i.e. exercise of functions by local councillors 
under local delegated decision-making arrangements); 

 

• any representations made by the referring Member as to why the matter 
should be investigated. 

 
3.15. In order to assist the Scrutiny Board in deciding whether or not to further 

investigate the matter(s) raised, the Chair of the Scrutiny Board may choose to 
invite comments from any other organisation(s) or individual(s) deemed 
suitable. 

 

                                            
12
  Subject to the provisions set out in the Local Government Act 2000 with regard to confidential 
and/or exempt information. 

Page 27



 
3.16. When deciding whether or not to further investigate the local crime and 

disorder referral, the Scrutiny Board may usefully wish to consider and confirm 
whether: 

 

• There is sufficient evidence to demonstrate that: 
o All reasonable attempts have been made to resolve the matter 

by the referring Member.  
o The matter raised is not being progressed and all relevant 

service areas or partner organisations have been informed and 
allowed sufficient time to resolve the matter. 

 

• The matter is being or should be pursued via an existing complaints 
procedure. 

 

• The Board has considered a similar issue recently, and if so whether the 
circumstances and/or evidence has changed significantly. 

 

• A similar or related issue is already included on the Board’s current work 
programme, as it may be more appropriate to link the local crime and 
disorder referral to an existing work item.  

 

• The matter referred has the potential for scrutiny to produce realistic 
recommendations that could be implemented and lead to improvements 
for anyone living or working in the referring Member’s ward.  

 

3.17. Where the Scrutiny Board is minded to undertake an inquiry as a result of a 
referral, the Scrutiny Board will also consider:  

 

• How the referral meets the inquiry selection criteria;  

• The impact on the Board’s current work programme; 

• The time available to undertake an inquiry; and,  

• The level of resources required to carry out the work. 
 
3.18. The decision whether or not to further investigate the matter(s) raised is the 

sole responsibility of the Scrutiny Board.  As such, any decision in this regard is 
final and there is no right of appeal. 

 
After the Scrutiny Board meeting 

 

3.19. Where the Scrutiny Board has considered a local crime and disorder referral, 
the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development will provide written notification 
of the outcome of the Scrutiny Board’s deliberations to the referring Member, 
within 5 working days of the Scrutiny Board meeting. 

 
3.20. Where the Scrutiny Board decides not to investigate the matter(s) raised, this 

notification will include the reason(s) for that decision.   
 
3.21. Where the Scrutiny Board decides to further investigate the matter(s) raised, 

this notification will include an outline of the agreed actions with an indicative 
timetable.  The referring Member will subsequently be notified of any significant 
deviation from this timetable. 

 
3.22. A copy of any final report agreed by the Scrutiny Board and/or any 

recommendations made to the Council or the Executive Board will be provided 
to the referring Member as soon as practicable13.   

                                            
13
 Subject to the provisions set out in the Local Government Act 2000 with regard to confidential 
and/or exempt information. 

Page 28



 
ANNEX 3 

 
REQUESTS FOR SCRUTINY: HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE MATTERS 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1. The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 gave a duty 

to all 150 local authorities in England with social services responsibilities, to 
enable the formation of a Local Involvement Network (LINk).  In summary, the 
LINk will act as the successor to the Patient and Public Involvement Forums 
(PPIF) but with an extended remit covering social care. 

 
1.2. Under provisions in the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health 

Act 2007, the local LINk has the right to refer both health and social care 
matters to the relevant Scrutiny Board. In turn, this places responsibility on the 
appropriate Scrutiny Board to acknowledge any such referrals and keep the 
LINk informed about what actions, if any, will be taken. 

 
1.3. This part of the guidance note relates to the process for administering a Health 

and Social Care referral and aims to provide guidance and assistance for 
Members, Scrutiny Boards and Officers in the management and consideration 
of such requests.   

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1. LINks have been set up to give communities a stronger voice in how their 

health and social care services are delivered. Run by local people and groups, 
the role of a LINk is to promote involvement, to find out what people like and 
dislike about local services, monitor the care provided by services and use 
LINk powers to hold services to account.   

 
2.2. Given the role and function of LINks, the relation between the LINk and the 

Council’s Scrutiny Boards will be key and more detailed information on this 
relationship is provided in a separate guidance note.   

 
2.3. An important function of the LINk is the ability to refer both health and social 

care matters to the relevant Scrutiny Board. In turn, this places responsibility 
on the appropriate Scrutiny Board to acknowledge any such referrals and keep 
the LINk informed about the progress of any agreed actions.   

 
3. HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE REFERRALS – THE LOCAL PROCESS 
 

Steps to be taken prior to making a health or social care referral  
 
3.1. Under the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 and 

the Local Involvement Networks Regulations 2008, the local LINk has the right 
to refer any matter relating to the planning, provision and operation of health or 
social care services to the relevant Scrutiny Board.   

 
3.2. This should not detract from the aspiration for relevant Scrutiny Boards to work 

closely with the LINk to ensure that knowledge about work programme items 
and emerging issues is regularly shared.   

 

Page 29



 
3.3. Any formal referral of such matters should be considered as a mechanism of 

last resort and occur in instances where the relevant health or social care 
service provider / commissioner has failed to provide a satisfactory response to 
a report/ recommendations produced by the LINk within 20 working days.   

 
Making a health or social care referral  

 
3.4. Any health or social care referral should be made in writing to the Head of 

Scrutiny and Member Development and be accompanied with supporting 
evidence, which outlines the rationale for the referral and demonstrates that the 
relevant health or social care service provider / commissioner has been given 
sufficient time to respond to the issue(s) raised.     
 
Prior to the Scrutiny Board meeting  

 

3.5. On receipt of a health or social care referral, the Head of Scrutiny and Member 
Development will ensure the matter, together with all the supporting evidence14 
provided by the LINk, is included on the agenda of the next ordinary meeting of 
the appropriate Scrutiny Board.   
 

3.6. On behalf of the relevant Scrutiny Board, the Head of Scrutiny and Member 
Development shall acknowledge receipt of any health or social care referral 
within 20 working days of its receipt.  Within this acknowledgement, details of 
the date, time and location of the Scrutiny Board meeting where the referral 
shall be considered will also be provided. 

 
3.7. Where a health or social care referral is being considered, an appropriate 

representative from the relevant health or social care service provider / 
commissioner will be invited to attend and contribute to the discussion at the 
Scrutiny Board meeting. 

 
During the Scrutiny Board meeting 

 

3.8. All health or social care referrals will to be looked at on their individual merits 
and on the basis of the evidence provided.  Representatives from the LINk will 
be entitled to address the meeting of the Scrutiny Board where such a referral 
is being considered. 

 
3.9. In order to assist the Scrutiny Board in deciding whether or not to act on the 

referral, the Chair of the Scrutiny Board may also choose to invite comments 
from any other organisation(s) or individual(s) deemed suitable. 

 
3.10. When deciding whether or not to act on the health or social care referral, the 

Scrutiny Board will consider the impact of any proposed action.  In particular, 
where a Scrutiny Board is minded to undertake an inquiry as a result of a 
referral, the Scrutiny Board will consider: 

 

• How the referral meets the inquiry selection criteria;  

• The impact on the Board’s current work programme; 

• The time available to undertake an inquiry; and,  

• The level of resources required to carry out the work. 
 

                                            
14
  Subject to the provisions set out in the Local Government Act 2000 with regard to confidential 
and/or exempt information 

Page 30



 
3.11. The decision whether or not to act on the referral is the sole responsibility of 

the Scrutiny Board.  As such, any decision in this regard is final and there is no 
right of appeal. 

 
After the Scrutiny Board meeting 

 

3.12. Where a Scrutiny Board has considered a health or social care referral, the 
Head of Scrutiny and Member Development will provide written notification of 
the outcome of the Scrutiny Board’s deliberations to the LINk, within 5 working 
days of the Scrutiny Board meeting. 

 
3.13. Where a Scrutiny Board decides not to act on the referral, this notification will 

include the reason(s) for that decision.   
 
3.14. Where a Scrutiny Board decides to act on the referral, this notification will 

include an outline of the proposed actions and an indicative timetable.  The 
LINk will subsequently be notified of any significant deviation from this 
timetable. 

 
3.15. A copy of any final report agreed by the Scrutiny Board and/or any 

recommendations made to the relevant health or social care service provider / 
commissioner will be provided to the LINk as soon as practicable15.   

 

                                            
15
 Subject to the provisions set out in the Local Government Act 2000 with regard to confidential 
and/or exempt information. 

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board:  Scrutiny Board (Health) 
 
Date:    30 June 2009 
 
Subject:  Input to the Work Programme 2009/10 – Sources of Work and  
                Establishing the Board’s Priorities 
 

        
 
 
1.0      Purpose of Report  

 

1.1 This report provides information and guidance to assist the Board develop its work 
programme for 2009/10. 

 
2.0 Background 
 
2.1 For reference and/ or information purposes, a copy of the Board’s terms of 

reference is attached at Appendix 1. 
 

2.2 In addition, relevant information from the following key sources have been extracted 
appropriate to this Board’s responsibilities and attached (Appendix 2) to this report 
to assist Members in developing the Board’s work programme for 2009/10:  

 

• Leeds Strategic Plan 2008 -2011 – Executive Summary 

• Leeds’ Director of Public Health Annual Report (2007-2008) (extract) – 
recommendations for action to reduce health inequalities 

• List of scrutiny inquiries relevant to the Board’s portfolio undertaken since 
2003 

 
2.3 Once agreed, the Scrutiny Board’s work programme should be considered as a live 

document that will evolve over time to reflect any changing and/or emerging issues 
identified throughout the year.  As such, other sources of work will continue to be 
‘requests for scrutiny’ and corporate referrals. 

 
3.0 Health and Well– Being Partnership Plan (2009 – 2012) 
 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Steven Courtney 
 

Tel: 247 4707 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 33



2.1 In February 2009, the Scrutiny Board (Health) considered the draft Health and Well– 
Being Partnership Plan (2009 – 2012), which builds on the partnership priorities 
previously consulted on and agreed in the Leeds Strategic Plan.  The final draft of 
the plan was presented to the Executive Board in May 2009 and is scheduled to be 
presented to Council for final approval. 

 
2.2 The Health and Well– Being Partnership Plan (2009 – 2012), identifies four main 

strategic objectives.  These are: 
 

• Reducing Health Inequalities 

• Improving Quality of Life 

• Enhanced Safety and Support for Vulnerable People 

• Inclusive Communities 
 
2.3 The Plan also identified the following agreed improvement priorities for health and 

wellbeing:  
 

• Reduce premature mortality in the most deprived areas 

• Reduction in the number of people who smoke 

• Reduce alcohol related harm 

• Reduce rate of increase in obesity and raise physical activity for all 

• Reduce teenage conception and improve sexual health. 

• Improve the assessment and care management of children, families and 
vulnerable adults. 

• Improve psychological, mental health, and learning disability services for those 
who need it 

• Increase the number of vulnerable people helped to live at home 

• Increase the proportion of people in receipt of community services enjoying 
choice and control over their daily lives 

• Improve safeguarding arrangements for vulnerable children and adults 
through better information, recognition and response to risk  

 
2.4 In considering the draft Health and Well– Being Partnership Plan (2009 – 2012), the 

previous Scrutiny Board made the following observations: 
 

• The improvement priorities identified should act as the foundation for the 
Health Scrutiny Board’s future work programme; 

• The actions template for 2009 – 2012 provides the Health Scrutiny Board with 
a key performance management tool; 

• The success of the Plan depends on the ability of the Council to act as ‘one’ 
and to successfully work with our partners, particularly through the Healthy 
Leeds Partnership.  

• The implementation of the Plan should not be seen as the sole preserve of 
health professionals but the responsibility of all directorates.  In this regard it 
would not be inappropriate for the Health Scrutiny Board to request to see 
officers from other Directorates when looking at performance outcomes and 
holding officers to account. 

 
2.5 Members are specifically asked to consider the agreed improvement priorities for 

health and wellbeing and the observations of the previous Board in determining the 
work programme for 2009/10, detailed elsewhere on the agenda. 

 
 
 
 

Page 34



3.0 Guidance 
 
3.1 Over the last few years of Scrutiny Board work, experience has shown that the 

process is more effective if the Board seeks to minimise the number of substantial 
inquiries running at any one time.    

 
3.2 This view is echoed within the findings of the recent KPMG external report on the 

Scrutiny function in Leeds, which is discussed elsewhere in this agenda. The Board 
is advised to consider the benefits of single item agendas (excluding miscellaneous 
information and minutes) in order to focus on all the relevant evidence and complete 
an inquiry in a shorter period of time. There are various mechanisms available to 
assist the Board in concluding inquiries quickly, such as working groups and site 
visits. 

 
3.3 The agreed Memorandum of Understanding between Executive Board and           

Overview and Scrutiny which sits within the Council’s Constitution states; 
 

The responsibility of those setting scrutiny work programmes is, therefore, to   
ensure that items of work come from a strategic approach as well as a need to   
challenge service performance and respond to issues of high public interest.   
 
It is recognised that Scrutiny Boards have a ‘watching brief’ role.  In addition  
information is required for members’ own development process, particularly as  
membership of the Boards is changed annually.  
  
However, it is also recognised that agendas are often filled up with reports for this    
purpose, which takes up time for both officers and Members.  Where Scrutiny 
Boards wish to ask questions at a general or more strategic level and/or be updated 
on issues already considered in detail, the facility of Members’ Questions – where a 
verbal exchange replaces written reports - should be used.   
 
 It is expected that where ever possible prior notification is given of the likely 
questions to be asked”.  

 
3.4 Over recent years the Children's Services Board in particular has  developed the 

approach of devoting one meeting per quarter to performance management and 
‘horizon scanning’ issues. This includes discussing with Executive Members and 
officers relevant issues, and is acknowledged within the KPMG report as good 
practice. 

 
4.0 Work programming  
 
4.1 To assist the Scrutiny Board and contribute to the discussions about the Board’s 

work programme for 2009/10, the following have been invited to attend the meeting:  
 

• Councillor Peter Harrand, Executive Member for Adult Health and Social Care; 

• The Director of Adult Social Services (or nominee); 

• The Chief Executive of NHS Leeds (or nominee); 

• Leeds Director of Public Health (NHS Leeds) (or nominee); 

• The Chief Executive of Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust (LTHT) (or 
nominee); 

• The Chief Executive of Leeds Partnerships Foundation NHS Trust (LPFT) (or 
nominee). 

 

Page 35



 
4.2 Following discussions and detailed elsewhere on the agenda, the Board will be 

asked to determine an outline work programme that prioritises the issues to be 
investigated.  

 
 
5.0 Recommendations 
 
5.1 Members are requested to use the attached information and the discussion with 

those present at the meeting to develop its work programme.  
 
6.0 Background Papers 
 

The Council’s Constitution 
Council Business Plan 2008 – 2011 
Leeds Strategic Plan 2008 – 2011 
Leeds Health and Well– Being Partnership Plan (2009 – 2012) (draft) 
 
 
 

Page 36



Appendix 1 
 

Scrutiny Board (Health)1 
 

Terms of Reference 
 
1. To review any matter relating to the planning, provision and operation of health 

services in relation to:  
 

• arrangements made by local NHS bodies2
 and the authority to secure hospital 

and community health and health related services to the inhabitants of the 
authority’s area; 

 

• the provision of such services to those inhabitants; 
 

• the provision of family health services (Primary Care Trust), personal medical 
services personal dental services, pharmacy and NHS ophthalmic services; 

 

• the public health arrangements in the area including arrangements by local NHS 
bodies for the surveillance of, and response to, outbreaks of communicable 
disease or the provision of specialist health promotion services; 

 

• the planning of health and health related services by local NHS bodies and the 
authority, including plans made in co-operation with partners for setting out a 
strategy for improving both the health of the local population and the provision 
of health care to that population; 

 

• the arrangements made by local NHS bodies and the authority for consulting 
and involving patients and the public under the duty placed on them by Section 
11 of the Health and Social Care Act 2001; 

 

• any proposals for a substantial development or variation of health services 
within the authority’s area. 

 
2. To consider such proposals as are referred to it by local NHS bodies and the 

authority and to report back the result of its considerations to the referring body and 
others as appropriate. 

 
3. To review how and to what effect health policy is being implemented, and health 

improvement achieved, by the authority and local NHS bodies and to make reports 
and recommendations as appropriate. 

 
4. To receive representations from Area Committees or relevant groups of interest and 

to report to the authority and local NHS Bodies as appropriate. 
 
5. In relation to matters in respect of which a local NHS body consults more than one 

scrutiny committee within its area, or in relation to matters which a number of West 
Yorkshire Metropolitan Councils elect to jointly scrutinise a function or service 
provided by the NHS body, to: 

 

(i) nominate Members to a joint committee, such nominations to reflect the 
political balance of the Board; 

 

(ii) delegate its scrutiny functions to another local authority. 

                                            
1
  Local Authority (Overview and Scrutiny Committees Health Scrutiny Functions) Regulations 2002 as 

amended. 
2
  In Leeds this means the Primary Care Trust (NHS Leeds), the Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust, the 

Leeds Partnership Foundation Trust and NHS Yorkshire and the Humber 
 

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



Leeds Strategic Plan 2008 to 2011 

Executive Summary 

About the Leeds Strategic Plan 

The Leeds Strategic Plan 2008 to 2011 sets out the strategic outcomes – the real changes we want to 
see in people’s lives and the city by 2011, and improvement priorities – the key areas where we want to 
focus our efforts over the next three years.  Clear targets have been set to measure the progress we will 
make over the next three years.  The contents of the Plan are aligned with the eight themes in the Vision 
for Leeds 2004 to 2020, the sustainable community strategy for Leeds.  The Leeds Strategic plan can be 
seen as the delivery plan for the Vision for Leeds.   

Working in partnership through the Leeds Initiative, Leeds’ local strategic partnership, the Council and its 
key partners have agreed, following extensive consultation with councillors, stakeholder groups and the 
public across the city, a single shared set of outcomes and priorities for the city.   

The targets in the Leeds Strategic Plan have been selected after thorough study of the prospects, 
opportunities and challenges facing Leeds and agreed with partners in the city and with central 
government.  The Leeds Strategic Plan is also the Local Area Agreement for Leeds, a formal agreement 
with central government about how to improve outcomes on our shared priorities..   

At the heart of the Leeds Strategic Plan is our ambition to transform the quality of life in Leeds to see:  

 people happy, healthy, safe, successful and free from the effects of poverty; 

 our young people equipped to contribute to their own and the city’s future well being and 
prosperity;

 local people engaged in decisions about their neighbourhood and community and help shape local 
services; 

 neighbourhoods that are inclusive, varied and vibrant offering housing options and quality facilities 
and free from harassment and crime; 

 an environment that is clean, green, attractive and above all, sustainable; and 

 a city-region that is prosperous, innovative and distinctive enabling individuals and businesses to 
achieve their economic potential. 

Our long and successful record of partnership working is a sure foundation for the delivery of these 
ambitious targets for Leeds.  Leeds is one of only three authorities nationally to have been awarded 
Beacon status for the quality of partnership working and, as a Beacon authority, we will help other 
authorities all over the country develop effective partnerships to represent local wishes and meet local 
needs.

How we will deliver this plan 

Leeds City Council will play a key role engaging the public and other stakeholders to shape the contents 
of the Leeds Strategic Plan, managing performance and reporting progress to local people.  The Leeds 
Strategic Plan is a partnership plan and Leeds Initiative and its groups, including the Strategy Group 
which brings together the major public sector partners in the city as well as key representatives from the 
business and voluntary, community and faith sectors, will monitor and manage progress and keep the 
contents of the Plan relevant to the needs of Leeds.  Each partner will also integrate the targets and 
priorities in this Plan into their work plans.  Leeds City Council has produced a Business Plan to support 
its contribution to the Leeds Strategic Plan.   

Working in partnership through the Leeds Initiative 

Page 39



Leeds Strategic Plan 2008 to 2011 

 Strategic Outcomes The real changes we want 
to see 

Improvement Priorities – our key focus for the next three years 

Culture

 Increased participation in cultural 
opportunities through engaging with all 
our communities. 

 Enhanced cultural opportunities through 
encouraging investment and 
development of high quality facilities of 
national and international significance. 

 Enable more people to become involved in sport and 
culture by providing better quality and wider ranging 
activities and facilities. 

 Facilitate the delivery of major cultural schemes of 
international significance. 

Enterprise and the Economy

 Increased entrepreneurship and 
innovation through effective support to 
achieve the full potential of people, 
business and the economy. 

 Increased international competitiveness 
through marketing and investment in 
high quality infrastructure and physical 
assets, particularly in the city centre. 

 Increase innovation and entrepreneurial activity across the 
city 

 Facilitate the delivery of major developments in the city 
centre to enhance the economy and support local 
employment 

 Increase international communications, marketing and 
business support activities to promote the city and attract 
investment.

Learning

 An enhanced workforce that will meet 
future challenges through fulfilling 
individual and economic potential and 
investing in learning facilities.

 Enhance the skill level of the workforce to fulfil individual 
and economic potential 

 Improve learning outcomes for all 16 year olds, with a focus 
on narrowing the achievement gap. 

 Improve learning outcomes and skill levels for 19 year olds.

 Increase the proportion of vulnerable groups engaged in 
education, training or employment. 

 Improve participation and early learning outcomes for all 
children, with a focus on families in deprived areas. 

Tra sporn t

 Increased accessibility and connectivity 
through investment in a high quality 
transport system and through 
influencing others and changing 
behaviours

 Deliver and facilitate a range of transport proposals for an 
enhanced transport system, including cycling and walking. 

 Improve the quality, use and accessibility of public transport 
services in Leeds. 

 Improve the condition of the streets and transport 
infrastructure by carrying out a major programme of 
maintenance and improvements. 

 Improve road safety for all our users, especially motor 
cyclists, pedal cyclists and pedestrians. 

Environment 

 Reduced ecological footprint through 
responding to environmental and 
climate change and influencing others. 

 Cleaner, greener and more attractive 
city through effective environmental 
management and changed behaviours.  

 Increase the amount of waste reused and recycled and 
reduce the amount of waste going to landfill. 

 Reduce emissions from public sector buildings, operations 
and service delivery, and encourage others to do so. 

 Undertake actions to improve our resilience to current and 
future climate change. 

 Address neighbourhood problem sites; improve cleanliness 
and access to and quality of green spaces. 

 Improve the quality and sustainability of the built and natural 
environment. 

Page 40



 Strategic Outcomes The real changes we want 
to see 

Improvement Priorities – our key focus for the next three years 

Health and Wellbeing

 Reduced health inequalities through the 
promotion of healthy life choices and 
improved access to services. 

 Improved quality of life through 
maximising the potential of vulnerable 
people by promoting independence, 
dignity and respect. 

 Enhanced safety and support for 
vulnerable people through preventative 
and protective action to minimise risks 
and maximise wellbeing. 

 Reduce premature mortality in the most deprived areas. 

 Reduction in the number of people who smoke. 

 Reduce rate of increase in obesity and raise physical 
activity for all. 

 Reduce teenage conception and improve sexual health. 

 Improve the assessment and care management of children, 
families and vulnerable adults. 

 Improved psychological, mental health, and learning 
disability services for those who need it. 

 Increase the number of vulnerable people helped to live at 
home.

 Increase the proportion of people in receipt of community 
services enjoying choice and control over their daily lives. 

 Improve safeguarding arrangements for vulnerable children 
and adults through better information, recognition and 
response to risk.   

Thriving Places

 Improved quality of life through mixed 
neighbourhoods offering good housing 
options and better access to services 
and activities. 

 Reduced crime and fear of crime 
through prevention, detection, offender 
management and changed behaviours. 

 Increased economic activity through 
targeted support to reduce 
worklessness and poverty. 

 Increase the number of “decent homes”. 

 Increase the number of affordable homes. 

 Reduce the number of homeless people. 

 Reduce the number of people who are not able to 
adequately heat their homes. 

 Increase financial inclusion in deprived areas. 

 Create safer environments by tackling crime 

 Improve lives by reducing the harm caused by substance 
misuse 

 Reduce offending by managing offending behaviour better 

 Reduce bullying and harassment. 

 Reduce worklessness across the city with a focus on 
deprived areas. 

 Reduce the number of children in poverty. 

 Develop extended services, using sites across the city, to 
improve support to children, families and communities 

Harmonious Communities

 More inclusive, varied and vibrant 
communities through empowering 
people to contribute to decision making 
and delivering local services. 

 Improved community cohesion and 
integration through meaningful 
involvement and valuing equality and 
diversity. 

 An increased number of local people engaged in activities 
to meet community needs and improve the quality of life for 
local residents. 

 An increase in the number of local people that are 
empowered to have a greater voice and influence over local 
decision making and a greater role in public service 
delivery.

 Enable a robust and vibrant voluntary, community and faith 
sector to facilitate community activity and directly deliver 
services. 

 An increased sense of belonging and pride in local 
neighbourhoods that help to build cohesive communities.

Page 41



Partners who have helped to draw up this Plan 

Arts Council 
Education Leeds 
English Heritage 

Environment Agency 
Health and Safety Executive 

Highways Agency 
Jobcentre Plus 

Learning and Skills Council 
Leeds chamber of Commerce and Industry 

Leeds Colleges 
Leeds Partnership Foundation Trust 

Leeds Primary Care Trust 
Leeds Teaching Hospitals Trust 

Leeds Voice 
Museums, Libraries, Archives Yorkshire 

Natural England 
Re’new

Sport England 
West Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service 

West Yorkshire Metro 
West Yorkshire Police 

West Yorkshire Police Authority
West Yorkshire Probation Service 

Yorkshire Forward 
Youth Offending Service 

For enquiries about the Leeds Strategic Plan or to obtain a copy of the plan please: 

Write to: 
Leeds Strategic Plan 
Planning, Policy and 

Improvement
2nd Floor East 

Civic Hall 
Leeds LS1 1UR 

Email: leedsstrategicplan@leeds.gov.uk

Telephone: 0113 224 346 2 

Visit our website: www.leedsstrategicplan.org.uk

If you do not speak English and need help in understanding this document, 
please phone: 0113 224 346 2 and state the name of your language. We will then put you on hold while 
we contact an interpreter. We can assist with any language and there is no charge for interpretation.

An audio cassette of the Leeds Strategic Plan can also be obtained by contacting us via one of the 
methods above. 

Working in partnership through the Leeds Initiative

Page 42



APPENDIX 2b 
 

Extract from Leeds’  the Director of Public Health Annual Report (2007-2008) 
 

Recommendations for action to reduce health inequalities 
 

By Whom:   

Action needed Leeds 
PCT  

LCC Leeds  
Initiative 

PBC* 

1 

Demonstrate how the set of new national 
performance indicators and the new Local Area 
Agreement and Local Area Delivery Plans are 
being used to target action on health inequalities 

 üüüü üüüü  

2 
Demonstrate how the new operating framework 
and the NHS ‘vital signs’ are being used to target 
action on health inequalities 

üüüü   üüüü 

3 
Continue using the most deprived SOAs as the 
basis of a geographic focus for action üüüü üüüü üüüü üüüü 

4 
Work together, using the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment, to agree on the most vulnerable and 
disadvantaged population groups within the city 

üüüü üüüü üüüü üüüü 

5 

Ensure that the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
reflects health inequalities at local level and that 
this is embedded into commissioning, service 
planning and decision making 

üüüü üüüü  üüüü 

6 

Ensure that there is an  understanding of the 
health inequalities between practice populations 
and that priority is given to action in 
commissioning plans 

   üüüü 

7 
Incorporate action on the high impact changes on 
life expectancy and infant mortality in a targeted 
systematic way in the more deprived communities 

üüüü üüüü üüüü üüüü 

8 
Prioritise tackling vascular disease and smoking 
related illness in order to help achieve the national 
2010 health inequalities target on life expectancy

1
 
üüüü   üüüü 

9 
As commissioners, ensure that service providers 
have the incentives to meet the needs of the more 
disadvantaged populations 

üüüü üüüü  üüüü 

10 
Provide incentives and support for people to look 
after their own health üüüü üüüü  üüüü 

 
 

* Practice based commissioners 

 

                                            
1
 Prioritising vascular disease and smoking-related illness means: 

• ensuring that prevention and treatment services for cancer and coronary heart disease (CHD) reach 
those in greatest need or with poorest health outcomes, including disadvantaged groups and ethnic 
groups with high prevalence; for CHD, in particular, reducing high blood pressure and increasing 
prescription of statins to reduce blood cholesterol 

• increasing smoking cessation interventions 

• reducing excess winter deaths, particularly those related to long term respiratory conditions by linking 
proactive treatments to weather forecasting and increasing influenza immunisation. 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2c 
 

Scrutiny Board (Health)  
 

Previous Inquiries 
 
 

Date Scrutiny Board Report Title 
Full report/ 
statement 

Recommendation tracking1 / status 

Apr-09 Health 
Improving Sexual Health among Young 
People 

Report 

• 9 recommendations: Report to 
Executive Board scheduled – 22 July 
2009. 

• Formal response: Due Sept. 2009 

• Progress updates:  

May-08 
Health & Adult 

Social Care 
Localisation of Health & Social Care 
services 

Report 

• 12 recommendations. 

• Formal response: Sept. 2008 

• Progress updates: April 2009 

• Monitoring continuing on 4 
recommendations. 

Apr-08 
Health & Adult 

Social Care 
Teenage Pregnancy  Statement 

• 4 recommendations.  

• Informed the Scrutiny Inquiry: Improving 
Sexual Health among Young People. 

• No further monitoring. 

Apr-08 
Health & Adult 

Social Care 
Obesity in Leeds Statement 

• No specific recommendations  
• Suggested that the matter be included 

in the Health Scrutiny Board’s work 
programme for 2008/9.    

Nov-07 
Health & Adult 

Social Care 
NHS dental contract in Leeds – 1 year on Statement 

• 3 recommendations.   

• Formal response – February 2008.   

• No further monitoring. 

                                            
1
 Formal tracking of recommendations was first introduced in December 2006 

P
a
g
e
 4

5



Appendix 2c 
 

Date Scrutiny Board Report Title 
Full report/ 
statement 

Recommendation tracking1 / status 

Jul-07 
Health & Adult 

Social Care 
Community development in health & 
wellbeing 

Report 

• 7 recommendations. 

• Formal response: Oct. 2007 

• Progress updates: Mar. 2008 and April 
2009 

• Monitoring continuing on 3 
recommendations. 

May-07 
Overview & 

Scrutiny 
Narrowing the gap Report 

• 8 recommendations. 

• Formal response: 

• Progress updates: Sept. 2007 

May-07 
Health & Adult 

Social Care 
NHS Dental Contract Report 

• 8 recommendations. 

• Formal response: July 2007 

• Progress updates: Sept. 2007 and Dec. 
2007 

Apr-06 
Scrutiny 

Commission 
Avoiding alcohol misuse Report 

• 23 recommendations. 

• Formal response: July 2006 (OSC) 

• Progress updates: Jan. 2007 (OSC) and 
April 2007 (W/G) 

Apr-06 
Health & 
Wellbeing 

Childhood obesity prevention & 
management 

Report 

• 8 recommendations. 

• Formal response: July 2006 

• Progress updates: Feb. 2007 and Dec. 
2007  

Apr-06 
Health & 
Wellbeing 

Older People's Mental Health Services Report 
• 7 recommendations. 

• Formal response: July 2006 

May-05 Social Care Delayed Hospital Discharges Report 

• 8 recommendations. 

• Formal response: Sept.  2005 

• Progress updates: Feb. 2006 

May-05 Health MRSA Report 
• 7 recommendations. 

• Formal response: July 2005 

May-05 Health Sexual Health in Leeds Report 

• 12 recommendations. 

• Formal response: Sept. 2005 

• Progress updates: Feb. 2006 

P
a
g
e
 4

6



Appendix 2c 
 

Date Scrutiny Board Report Title 
Full report/ 
statement 

Recommendation tracking1 / status 

May-05 Health Smoking in Public Places Report 

• 5 recommendations. 

• Formal response: July 2005 

• Progress updates: Oct. 2005 and Nov. 
2005 

Apr-04 Health 
Child and Adolescent Mental Health 
Services 

Report 
• 7 recommendations. 

• Formal response: September 2004 

Dec-03 Health NHS Dentistry Report 

• 5 recommendations. 

• Formal response: March 2004 

• Progress updates: Nov. 2004 and Sept. 
2005 

Oct-03 Health Influencing Health Determinants   Report 

• 14 recommendations. 

• Formal response:  

• Progress updates:  

     

     

     

 

P
a
g
e
 4

7



P
a
g
e
 4

8

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



 
 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board:  Scrutiny Board (Health) 
 
Date:    30 June 2009 
 
Subject:  KPMG – SCRUTINY REVIEW – MAY 2009 

 

        
 
 
1.0      Purpose of Report  

 

1.1 This report presents the findings of the recent KPMG external audit review of the 
Scrutiny function in Leeds.  (Appendix 1).  The report also details management’s 
response to the reviews recommendations.  

 
2.0      Introduction 
 
2.1 The objective of the KPMG review was to provide the Council with assurance around 

the progress made in addressing the improvements areas identified by the 
Corporate Assessment in early 2008.  

 
3.0       Background Information 

3.1  As part of their 2008/09 Audit and Inspection Plan, it was agreed that KPMG would 
carry out a review of the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny function.  The audit 
objective was to provide the Council with assurance around the progress made in 
the improvement areas identified by the Corporate Assessment, specifically:  

• The extent to which the Council has a clear vision for the contribution of   
scrutiny and the resources to deliver that vision; 

• The extent to which the skills of the Members on the Scrutiny Boards are 
matched to and are appropriate for the fulfillment of their role;  

• How scrutiny enquiries and public challenge feed into the work 
programme of Scrutiny Boards;  

•  The extent to which the information available to Members enables them 
to reach appropriate conclusions;  

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Peter Marrington 
 
Tel: 39 51151 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

Agenda Item 10

Page 49



• The design of the Call-In arrangements in response to the Council’s recent 
‘Corporate Assessment’ report;  

•  The extent to which the recommendations of the Scrutiny Boards have 
resulted in changes in service delivery and service improvements;  

• The extent to which the seven Scrutiny Boards challenge policy 
development and the consistency of actions taken by these Boards;  

•  The extent to which the Scrutiny function fits within the wider performance 
management arrangements of the Council; and  

• The extent to which Scrutiny provides effective challenge and adds value 
to the Council.  

 

4.0 Main Issues 

4.1     The key findings of the review are set out below: 

The recognition that in light of the recent Corporate Assessment the Council has 
been in the process of continuing to strengthen its Scrutiny function and that a 
number of aspects of good practice were identified, such as:  

 

• Professional relationships have been developed between the Scrutiny 
Board Chairs and the Principal Scrutiny Advisors;  

• A wide range of training tools are used in providing training resources for 
Scrutiny Board Members;  

• Personal development plans are available for all Members which assist in 
the identification of individual training needs; and 

• Inquiry selection criteria forms are used to determine whether full scrutiny 
Inquiries items will be added to the work programme of the Scrutiny 
Boards. 

 
4.2      The key learning points were as follows: 

That whilst the Council continues to develop its Scrutiny function it should ensure 
that the following areas are strengthened:  

 

• An overall vision for the Scrutiny function should be developed, 
documented and published;  

• The trust between Scrutiny Members, Executive Members and Officers 
needs to be maintained and developed in order to reinforce the 
importance of joint working;  

• The relationship between Scrutiny Members, Executive Members and 
Officers needs to continue to develop and political views need to be kept 
separate from the Scrutiny function;  

• There is a continuing need for Executive Members, Scrutiny Board Chairs 
and Officers to work together to identify areas where the Scrutiny Boards 
can add value to policy development work streams. Where Scrutiny 
Boards decide to not undertake work areas suggested by Executive 
Members a brief rationale should be provided so as to prevent any 
misunderstandings arising; 

• The Scrutiny Boards Procedure Rules Guidance Notes should be 
strengthened to incorporate that the Scrutiny Boards strive for enhanced 
lines of internal communication; add value to the Council through the 
Scrutiny reviews undertaken and incorporate innovation into the approach 
for challenging the way the Council operates;  

Page 50



• The process of selecting Scrutiny Chairs should be reviewed and a ‘job 
specification’ introduced;  

• Scrutiny Boards should review whether co-opted Members should be 
invited to join in their Board;  

• All Scrutiny Boards should have ‘real time monitoring’ as a standing 
agenda item so that Scrutiny Boards can scan the horizon to identify any 
emerging issues;  

• The efficiency of Scrutiny Board meetings needs to be improved. To 
achieve this timed or single item agendas should be encouraged where 
appropriate and pre-meetings used more effectively;  

• Scrutiny Members should continue to be encouraged to access web 
based Scrutiny forums so that they have an additional network of resource 
to draw upon;  

• Reports of Members attendance at Scrutiny meetings should be made to 
each of the political groups. Where attendance rates fall below an 
acceptable level then it should be the responsibility of each political party 
to take appropriate action to address this;  

• Scrutiny Board Members should be reminded of the need to assess the 
performance of key indicators throughout the year and highlight if they feel 
this should direct any area of their annual work programme;  

• Where there are key performance indicators with historical poor 
performance the Council should report to Scrutiny Boards the actual 
impact of this poor performance on service delivery; and  

• The Scrutiny annual report should be strengthened to clearly outline the 
service benefits of the recommendations made. In addition its format 
should be standardised to clearly categorise the work using a consistent 
series of headings and to clearly display the outcomes of the previous 
years recommendations recording them as implemented; partially 
implemented; work in progress; not accepted; and no longer applicable. 

 
4.3 These recommendations will be reported to all Scrutiny Boards for consideration.  

The Scrutiny Advisory Group will play a role in monitoring the implementation of 
the recommendations 

 
4.4 In line with the Council’s protocol for receiving external audit reports, the Corporate 

Governance and Audit Committee will also receive the audit report and may chose 
to refer particular issues to other committees, including Scrutiny Boards, for further 
detailed consideration.  However, it was considered appropriate to bring the report 
to the first meeting of the Board as some of the recommendations refer to the 
running of Scrutiny Board meetings. 

 

   
5.0       Recommendations 
 

   5.1 Members are asked to consider the review’s recommendations and accompanying 
management response and refer any comments to the Scrutiny Advisory Group. 

 

Background Papers 
 

KPMG Scrutiny Review May 2009 
 

 

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



L
e
e
d

s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

M
a
y
 2

0
0
9

IN
F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

, 
G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
L
T
H

C
A

R
E

A
U

D
IT

Page 53



1
©

2
0

0
9

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

C
o

n
te

n
ts

1
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

  
s
u

m
m

a
ry

2

2
In

tr
o

d
u

c
ti

o
n

5

3
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 s

c
o

p
e

 a
n

d
 r

o
le

, 
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 w

id
e

r 
re

la
ti

o
n

s
h

ip
s

7

4
T

h
e

 v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f

o
r 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
1

1

5
M

a
tc

h
in

g
 o

f 
s
k
ill

s
 t

o
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 r
o

le
s

1
3

6
D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

1
6

7
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n
 f

o
r 

M
e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
1

8

8
C

a
ll-

In
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
2

0

9
S

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
, 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 a

d
d

e
d

 v
a
lu

e
 o

f 
s
c
ru

ti
n

y
2

2

1
0

P
o

lic
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

2
4

1
1

P
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
2

6

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
2

8

T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 s
o

le
 u

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

. 
 W

e
 t

a
k
e

 n
o

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

a
n

y
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

o
r 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

a
c
ti

n
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

c
a
p

a
c
it

ie
s
, 

o
r 

to
 t

h
ir

d
 p

a
rt

ie
s
. 

 T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 h

a
s
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 a
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

e
n

ti
tl

e
d

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it

e
d

 B
o

d
ie

s
. 

 T
h

is
 s

u
m

m
a
ri

s
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 

th
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 o

f 
a
u

d
it

o
rs

 b
e

g
in

 a
n

d
 e

n
d

 a
n

d
 w

h
a
t 

is
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 b

o
d

y
. 

 W
e

 d
ra

w
 y

o
u

r 
a
tt

e
n

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
is

 d
o

c
u
m

e
n

t.

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u

d
it

o
rs

 d
o

 n
o

t 
a
c
t 

a
s
 a

 s
u

b
s
ti

tu
te

 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 b

o
d

y
’s

 o
w

n
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
p

u
tt

in
g

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 p
ro

p
e

r 
a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

p
u

b
lic

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 i
s
 c

o
n

d
u

c
te

d
 i
n

 

a
c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 l
a
w

 a
n

d
 p

ro
p

e
r 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
a
t 

p
u

b
lic

 m
o

n
e

y
 i
s
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

e
d

 a
n

d
 p

ro
p

e
rl

y
 a

c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r,
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

d
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

a
lly

, 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

tl
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
.

If
 y

o
u

 h
a
v
e

 a
n

y
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 o

r 
a
re

 d
is

s
a
ti

s
fi

e
d

 w
it

h
 a

n
y
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

K
P

M
G

’s
 w

o
rk

, 
in

 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

in
s
ta

n
c
e

 y
o

u
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

A
d

ri
a
n

 L
y
th

g
o

, 
w

h
o

 i
s
 t

h
e

 e
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
d

ir
e

c
to

r 
to

 t
h

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

, 
te

le
p

h
o

n
e

 0
1

1
3

 2
3

1
 3

0
5

4
, 

e
m

a
il 

a
d

ri
a
n

.l
y
th

g
o

@
k
p

m
g

.c
o

.u
k
 w

h
o

 w
ill

 t
ry

 t
o

 r
e

s
o

lv
e

 y
o

u
r 

c
o

m
p

la
in

t.
 I

f 
y
o

u
 a

re
 d

is
s
a
ti

s
fi

e
d

 w
it
h

 y
o

u
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e

 p
le

a
s
e

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

T
re

v
o

r 

R
e

e
s
 o

n
 0

1
6

1
 2

4
6

 4
0

0
0

, 
e

m
a
il 

tr
e

v
o

r.
re

e
s
@

k
p

m
g

.c
o

.u
k
, 

w
h

o
 i
s
 t

h
e

 n
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
c
o

n
ta

c
t 

p
a
rt

n
e

r 
fo

r 
a
ll 

o
f 

K
P

M
G

’s
 w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
A

ft
e

r 
th

is
, 

if
 y

o
u

 s
ti

ll 
d

is
s
a
ti

s
fi

e
d

 

w
it
h

 h
o

w
 y

o
u

r 
c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 h

a
n

d
le

d
 y

o
u

 c
a
n

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
’s

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
. 

P
u

t 
y
o

u
r 

c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
in

 w
ri

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 T
e

a
m

, 
W

e
s
tw

a
rd

 

H
o

u
s
e

, 
L

im
e

 K
iln

 C
lo

s
e

, 
S

to
k
e

 G
if

fo
rd

, 
B

ri
s
to

l,
 B

S
3

4
 8

S
U

 o
r 

b
y
 e

m
a
il 

to
: 

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
@

a
u

d
it

-c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
.g

o
v
.u

k
. 

T
h

e
ir

 t
e

le
p

h
o

n
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

is
 0

8
4

4
 7

9
8

 3
1

3
1

, 
te

x
tp

h
o

n
e

 (
m

in
ic

o
m

) 

0
2

0
 7

6
3

0
 0

4
2

1
.

Page 54



2
©

2
0

0
9

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

1
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v

e
 s

u
m

m
a

ry

1
.1

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 a

re
 o

ft
e

n
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 a

s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

“
w

a
tc

h
d

o
g

s
”

b
y
 t

h
e

 p
re

s
s
 a

im
in

g
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a
x
 p

a
y
e

rs
 g

e
t 

th
e
 

b
e

s
t 

o
u

t 
o
f 

th
e

ir
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 
 F

o
r 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
is

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

h
e

y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 h
a
v
e

 a
t 

le
a
s
t 

tw
o
 c

o
m

p
o

n
e

n
ts

:

•
O

n
g

o
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
e
tr

o
s
p

e
c
ti

v
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 t
a
k
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

; 
a
n

d

•
F

o
rw

a
rd

 l
o

o
k
in

g
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s
 t

o
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il.

 

T
h

is
 r

e
v
ie

w
 h

a
s
 f

o
c
u

s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 a

b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

th
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 f

u
n
c
ti

o
n

a
t 

L
e

e
d

s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

(L
C

C
) 

to
 c

h
a
lle

n
g

e
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

b
o

th
 i

n
 

te
rm

s
 o

f 
o

n
g

o
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
e

tr
o

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 a

n
d

 f
o
rw

a
rd

 l
o

o
k
in

g
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s
 t

o
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t.

 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

h
e
 s

c
o

p
e

 a
n

d
 r

o
le

 o
f 

th
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 i

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd

s
 i

n
 

c
a
rr

y
in

g
 o

u
t 

th
e

ir
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 d

ra
w

in
g

 t
h

e
ir

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
. 
 

1
.2

K
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s

W
e

 r
e

c
o

g
n

is
e

 t
h

a
t 

in
 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

th
e
 r

e
c
e

n
t 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

 t
o

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n
 

it
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 f

u
n

c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 o
u

r 
re

v
ie

w
 w

e
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
 a

s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

g
o

o
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il,

 s
u

c
h

 a
s
:

•
P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
re

la
ti

o
n

s
h

ip
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 C
h

a
ir

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 P

ri
n

c
ip

a
l 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 A

d
v
is

o
rs

;

•
A

 w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

tr
a
in

in
g

 t
o

o
ls

 a
re

 u
s
e

d
 i
n

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 t
ra

in
in

g
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f

o
r 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

;

•
P

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
s
 a

re
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o

r 
a
ll 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 w
h

ic
h

 a
s
s
is

t 
in

 t
h

e
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

c
a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

in
d

iv
id

u
a
l 
tr

a
in

in
g

 n
e

e
d

s
; 
a
n

d

•
In

q
u

ir
y
 
s
e

le
c
ti

o
n

 
c
ri

te
ri

a
 
fo

rm
s
 
a
re

 
u

s
e

d
 
to

 
d
e

te
rm

in
e
 
w

h
e

th
e

r 
fu

ll 
s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 
In

q
u

ir
ie

s
 
it

e
m

s
 
w

ill
 
b

e
 
a
d

d
e

d
 
to

 
th

e
 
w

o
rk

 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
. 

W
h

ils
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
s
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 i
ts

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 f

u
n

c
ti

o
n

 f
u
rt

h
e

r 
a
n

d
 r

e
fl

e
c
t 

b
e

s
t 

p
ra

c
ti

c
e

 i
t 

s
h

o
u

ld
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 

a
re

a
s
 a

re
 s

tr
e

n
g

th
e

n
e

d
: 
 

•
A

n
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

v
is

io
n

 f
o
r 

th
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 f

u
n
c
ti

o
n

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

,
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
te

d
 a

n
d

 p
u
b

lis
h

e
d

; 

•
T

h
e

 t
ru

s
t 

b
e
tw

e
e

n
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
, 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 a
n

d
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 n
e

e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
  

re
in

fo
rc

e
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

c
e

 o
f 

jo
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g

; 

•
T

h
e

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

s
h

ip
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
, 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 a
n

d
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 n
e

e
d

s
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 p

o
lit

ic
a
l 

v
ie

w
s
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 k

e
p

t 
s
e

p
a
ra

te
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 f

u
n

c
ti

o
n

; 
  
 

•
T

h
e

re
 i

s
 a

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

 n
e

e
d

 f
o
r 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

, 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

C
h

a
ir
s
 a

n
d

 O
ff

ic
e

rs
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 t
o

g
e
th

e
r 

to
 i

d
e

n
ti
fy

 a
re

a
s
 

w
h

e
re

 
th

e
 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 
B

o
a
rd

s
 
c
a
n

 
a
d

d
 
v
a
lu

e
 
to

 
p

o
lic

y
 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

w
o
rk

 
s
tr

e
a
m

s
. 

 
W

h
e
re

 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 
B

o
a
rd

s
 
d
e
c
id

e
 
to

 
n
o
t 

u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e

 
w

o
rk

 
a
re

a
s
 

s
u

g
g

e
s
te

d
 

b
y
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 

a
 

b
ri

e
f 

ra
ti

o
n

a
le

 
s
h

o
u

ld
 

b
e

 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 
s
o

 
a
s
 

to
 

p
re

v
e

n
t 

a
n

y
 

m
is

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

s
 a

ri
s
in

g
; 
 

Page 55



3
©

2
0

0
9

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

1
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

•
T

h
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 P

ro
c
e

d
u

re
 R

u
le

s
 G

u
id

a
n

c
e

 N
o

te
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

e
d

 t
o
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 t
h
a
t 

th
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 s

tr
iv

e
 

fo
r 

e
n

h
a
n

c
e

d
 
lin

e
s
 
o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

; 
a
d

d
 
v
a
lu

e
 
to

 
th

e
 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

th
ro

u
g
h

 
th

e
 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 
re

v
ie

w
s
 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 
a
n

d
 

in
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 i
n

n
o

v
a
ti

o
n

 i
n

to
 t

h
e
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 f
o

r 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

in
g

 t
h

e
 w

a
y

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

o
p

e
ra

te
s
; 

•
T

h
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 o

f 
s
e

le
c
ti

n
g

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

h
a
ir

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
 ‘
jo

b
 s

p
e

c
if

ic
a
ti

o
n

’
in

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
; 

•
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 r
e

v
ie

w
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
c
o
-o

p
te

d
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 i
n

v
it

e
d

 t
o
 j
o

in
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 B

o
a
rd

;

•
A

ll 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 h
a
v
e

 ‘
re

a
l 
ti
m

e
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
’

a
s
 a

 s
ta

n
d

in
g

 a
g

e
n

d
a
 i
te

m
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 c

a
n
 s

c
a
n
 t

h
e
 h

o
ri
zo

n
 

to
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

y
 e

m
e

rg
in

g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
; 

•
T

h
e

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

s
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 i

m
p

ro
v
e

d
. 

T
o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

is
 t

im
e

d
 o

r 
s
in

g
le

 i
te

m
 a

g
e

n
d

a
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 

e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

d
 w

h
e

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 a
n

d
 p

re
-m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 u

s
e

d
 m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e

ly
;

•
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

d
 t

o
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 w

e
b

 b
a
s
e

d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 f

o
ru

m
s
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 a
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l 

n
e

tw
o

rk
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
 t

o
 d

ra
w

 u
p

o
n

;

•
R

e
p

o
rt

s
 o

f 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 a

tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

 a
t 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 m
a
d
e

 t
o
 e

a
c
h

 o
f 

th
e
 p

o
lit

ic
a
l 

g
ro

u
p

s
. 

W
h

e
re

 a
tt

e
n

d
a
n

c
e

 

ra
te

s
 f

a
ll 

b
e
lo

w
 a

n
 a

c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

 l
e
v
e

l 
th

e
n
 i

t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

e
a
c
h
 p

o
lit

ic
a
l 

p
a
rt

y
  

to
 t

a
k
e

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
c
ti
o

n
 t

o

a
d

d
re

s
s
 t

h
is

; 
 

•
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
m

in
d

e
d

 o
f 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
k
e
y
 i

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
n

d
 h

ig
h

lig
h

t 
if

 t
h

e
y
 f

e
e

l 
th

is
 s

h
o

u
ld

 d
ir

e
c
t 

a
n

y
 a

re
a
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 a

n
n

u
a
l 
w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
; 

•
W

h
e

re
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 k

e
y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 w

it
h

 h
is

to
ri
c
a
l 

p
o

o
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
  

th
e

 a
c
tu

a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
is

 p
o

o
r 

p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

; 
a
n

d

•
T

h
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

n
n

u
a
l 
re

p
o

rt
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

e
d

 t
o
  

c
le

a
rl

y
 o

u
tl

in
e

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 m

a
d

e
. 

 I
n
 

a
d

d
it

io
n

 i
ts

 f
o

rm
a
t 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

is
e

d
 t

o
 c

le
a
rl
y
 c

a
te

g
o

ri
s
e

th
e

 w
o

rk
 u

s
in

g
 a

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
s
e

ri
e

s
 o

f 
h

e
a
d

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 c
le

a
rl
y
 

d
is

p
la

y
 t

h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 r

e
c
o

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

m
 a

s
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

; 
p

a
rt

ia
lly

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
; 

w
o
rk

 

in
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
; 
n

o
t 

a
c
c
e

p
te

d
; 
a
n

d
 n

o
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

a
p

p
lic

a
b

le
.

Page 56



4
©

2
0

0
9

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

1
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

1
.3

W
a

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

W
e

 w
ill

 d
is

c
u

s
s
 t

h
e
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

it
h
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 t
o
 a

g
re

e
 a

n
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 t
o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 i

s
s
u

e
s
 g

o
in

g
 

fo
rw

a
rd

. 

Page 57



5
©

2
0

0
9

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

2
In

tr
o

d
u

c
ti

o
n

2
.1

B
a

c
k

g
ro

u
n

d

T
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
c
o

n
s
ti

tu
ti

o
n

s
 o

f 
L

o
c
a
l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s
 g

iv
e

 s
e

le
c
te

d
 C

o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

 a
n

 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n
t 

ro
le

 i
n
 s

c
ru

ti
n

is
in

g
 t

h
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 o

f 
th

e

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

. 
 T

h
e

 r
o

le
 o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

t 
L

C
C

 h
a
s
 e

v
o

lv
e

d
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

n
o

w
 h

a
v
e

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 s

e
v
e

n
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

B
o

a
rd

s
 

w
h

o
s
e

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 

a
re

 
to

 
e

x
a
m

in
e

 
th

e
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

s
, 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 

a
n

d
 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 
o

f 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il,

 
m

a
k
in

g
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 f

o
r 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

w
h

e
re

 n
e

c
e

s
s
a
ry

. 
  
T

h
e
 s

e
v
e

n
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 c

o
v
e

r:
 

•
A

d
u

lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

;

•
C

e
n

tr
a
l 
a
n

d
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

u
n

c
ti
o

n
s
;

•
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
;

•
C

it
y
 a

n
d

 R
e

g
io

n
a
l 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
;

•
C

it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t;

•
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
; 
a
n

d
 

•
H

e
a
lt

h
. 

T
h

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 a

re
 o

ft
e

n
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 a

s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

“
w

a
tc

h
d

o
g

s
”

, 
 a

n
d

 a
re

 m
a
d

e
 u

p
 o

f 
C

o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
p

o
lit

ic
a
l 

p
a
rt

ie
s
 a

n
d

 s
o

m
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 C
o

-o
p

te
d
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 f

ro
m

 o
u
ts

id
e

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

  
L

e
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 i

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
e
 

th
e

re
 a

re
 n

o
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
n

 a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
.

2
.2

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
c
o

p
e

 o
f 

o
u

r 
re

v
ie

w

O
u

r 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e

 i
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
it

h
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 a
ro

u
n

d
 t

h
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 i

m
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
re

a
s
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
  
W

e
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 f
o

c
u

s
e

d
 u

p
o

n
:

•
T

h
e

 s
c
o

p
e

 a
n

d
 r

o
le

 o
f 

th
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
, 
th

e
ir

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

s
h

ip
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 l
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

; 

•
T

h
e

 e
x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a
s
 a

 c
le

a
r 

v
is

io
n

 f
o
r 

th
e

 c
o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
a
t 

v
is

io
n

;

Page 58



6
©

2
0

0
9

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

2
.

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

•
T

h
e

 e
x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 s
k
ill

s
 o

f 
th

e
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
n

 t
h

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 a

re
 m

a
tc

h
e

d
 t

o
 a

n
d

 a
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 f
o

r 
th

e
 f

u
lf

ilm
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

ir
 r

o
le

; 
 

•
H

o
w

 s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 e

n
q

u
ir

ie
s
 a

n
d

 p
u

b
lic

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 f

e
e

d
 i
n

to
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
; 
 

•
T

h
e

 e
x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 e

n
a
b

le
s

th
e

m
 t

o
 r

e
a
c
h

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
; 
 

•
T

h
e

 d
e

s
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

a
ll-

In
 a

rr
a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 r

e
c
e

n
t 

‘C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t’
re

p
o
rt

; 

•
T

h
e

 e
x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
e

d
 i

n
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 i

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

; 
 

•
T

h
e

 e
x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 s
e

v
e

n
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 c

h
a
lle

n
g

e
 p

o
lic

y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

c
y
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o

n
s
 t

a
k
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

s
e
 

B
o

a
rd

s
; 
 

•
T

h
e

 e
x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 f

u
n
c
ti

o
n

 f
it

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 w

id
e

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il;

 a
n

d
  

•
T

h
e

 e
x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 a

n
d

 a
d

d
s
 v

a
lu

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 

2
.3

A
u

d
it

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

O
u

r 
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 t

o
:

•
R

e
v
ie

w
 k

e
y
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

;

•
In

te
rv

ie
w

 k
e
y
 c

o
n
ta

c
ts

;

•
O

b
s
e

rv
e

 s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
;

•
S

h
a
re

 b
e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti

c
e
; 

a
n
d

•
P

ro
v
id

e
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
v
e

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

. 

2
.4

A
c
k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
m

e
n

ts

W
e

 w
o

u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 t
h
is

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 t

h
a
n

k
 a

ll 
th

o
s
e

 s
ta

ff
 a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d
 t

h
is

 r
e

v
ie

w
.

Page 59



7
©

2
0

0
9

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

3
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
s
c
o

p
e
 a

n
d

 r
o

le
, 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 w
id

e
r 

re
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s

3
.1

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

T
h

is
 s

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e

s
 t

h
e
 s

c
o

p
e

 a
n

d
 r

o
le

 o
f 

th
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
, 

th
e

ir
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 r
e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 w

it
h

 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 l
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

. 

3
.2

S
c
o

p
e

 a
n

d
 r

o
le

 o
f 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a

rd
s

E
a
c
h

 o
f 

th
e
 s

e
v
e

n
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 h

a
v
e

 t
h

e
ir
 o

w
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 w

h
ic

h
 a

ll 
o

u
tl

in
e

 t
h

e
 f

u
n
c
ti

o
n

s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd

s
. 

 W
it

h
in

 
th

e
ir

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e

, 
a
ll 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 s

ta
te

 t
h

e
y
 w

ill
:

•
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

r 
s
c
ru

ti
n

is
e

 t
h

e
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 o

f 
a
n

y
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il,

 E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 o
r 

a
n

y
 o

th
e

r 
m

a
tt

e
r;

•
M

a
k
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
 o

r 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

o
r 

th
e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 e
it

h
e

r 
in

 c
o

n
n

e
c
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 t

h
e
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 o

f 
a
n

y
 f

u
n

c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il,

 E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 o
r 

o
n
 a

n
y
 m

a
tt

e
r 

a
ff

e
c
ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 o

r 
it
s
 i
n

h
a
b

it
a
n

ts
; 

•
R

e
c
e

iv
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u

d
it
 a

n
d

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
; 

•
A

c
t 

a
s
 t

h
e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 i
n

 r
e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

’s
 i
n

it
ia

l 
p

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

 f
o

r 
a
 p

la
n

 o
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 B
u

d
g

e
t

a
n

d
 P

o
lic

y
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

;

•
R

e
v
ie

w
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d

ic
a
to

rs
; 

a
n
d

•
E

x
e

rc
is

e
 t

h
e
 r

ig
h

t 
to

 C
a
ll-

In
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 m

a
d

e
 b

u
t 

n
o

t 
y
e

t 
im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

.

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 a

ll 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 m

a
y
 a

s
s
is

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
p
o

lic
ie

s
.

H
a
v
in

g
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

h
e
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 a

t
L

C
C

 w
it
h

 t
h

o
s
e

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

L
o

c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 i
t 

is
 e

v
id

e
n

t 
th

a
t 

a
t 

L
C

C
 t

h
e

s
e

 a
re

 s
e

t 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 l
e

g
a
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 w
h

e
re

a
s
 a

t 
o

th
e

r
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 t

h
e

y
 a

ls
o

 d
e

ta
il 

ro
le

s
 o

u
ts

id
e

 o
f 

th
is

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

. 
 

T
h

e
 s

o
ft

e
r 

ro
le

s
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d

 t
o
 w

it
h

in
 o

th
e

r 
L

o
c
a
l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 b
e

in
g

 i
n

n
o

v
a
ti

v
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 t
o
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
; 

a
d
d

in
g

 v
a
lu

e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

; 
s
tr

iv
in

g
 f

o
r 

g
re

a
te

r 
p

u
b

lic
 i

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
; 

 a
n

d
 i

m
p

ro
v
in

g
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 w

id
e

r 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 

 W
h

ils
t 

th
e
 r

o
le

 a
ro

u
n
d

 e
n

g
a
g

in
g

 w
it

h
 t

h
e
 p

u
b

lic
 i

s
 e

x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 

w
it

h
in

 o
th

e
r 

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 a

t 
L

C
C

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
to

 e
n

h
a
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

ra
l 
n

o
te

s
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
b
y
 e

x
p

lic
it

ly
 o

u
tl

in
in

g
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
s
 /
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

h
a
t 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 c

o
u

ld
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

. 

Page 60



8
©

2
0

0
9

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

3
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
s
c
o

p
e
 a

n
d

 r
o

le
, 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 w
id

e
r 

re
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
d

3
.3

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a

rd
s
 a

n
d

 w
id

e
r 

re
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s

B
y
 l
a
w

 n
o

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 b

o
a
rd

s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

a
n

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 f

u
n
c
ti

o
n

 i
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 i
t 

is
 e

s
s
e

n
ti

a
l 
th

a
t 

a
 t

w
o

 w
a
y
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 i
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
. 

 I
n
 e

s
s
e

n
c
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 M
e

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
h

a
ir

 o
f 

th
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 
w

ill
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n

 h
o

w
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

re
 r

a
is

e
d

 a
n

d
 d

e
a
lt

 w
it

h
. 

A
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

th
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

h
a
ir
s
 f

e
e

l 
th

a
t 

re
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

M
e

m
b
e

rs
 a

n
d

 O
ff

ic
e

rs
 i
s
 a

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
a
lly

 e
v
o

lv
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 

a
n

d
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

. 
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 M
e

m
b
e

rs
 a

ls
o

 a
c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 t
h

a
t 

w
h

ils
t 

re
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 h

a
v
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 

w
it

h
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

h
a
ir

s
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
w

o
rk

 t
o
 b

e
 d

o
n

e
. 
 

A
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

h
a
ir

s
, 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 a
n

d
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 a

c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
m

e
n

t 
th

a
t 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
s
 e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 a
s
 i
t 

c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
t 

L
C

C
 a

n
d

 a
ll 

p
o

lit
ic

a
l 
g

ro
u

p
s
 a

p
p

e
a
r 

a
c
c
e

p
ti

n
g

 o
f 

th
is

. 

S
o

m
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

h
a
ir

s
 f

e
e

l 
th

a
t 

th
e

 r
o

le
 o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 i

s
 u

n
d

e
r 

v
a
lu

e
d

 b
y
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 a
n

d
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 a
s
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
a
s
 i
t 

c
o

u
ld

 b
e

. 
 W

h
ils

t 
s
o

m
e

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 f
e
lt
 t

h
a
t 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 h

a
s
 a

d
d

e
d
 

v
a
lu

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il,

 a
 c

o
u

p
le

 w
e

re
 u

n
a
b

le
 t

o
 g

iv
e

 a
n

y
 s

p
e

c
if

ic
 e

x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
th

is
. 

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

h
a
ir

s
 f

e
e

l 
th

a
t 

th
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 t
ri
e

d
 

v
a
ri

o
u

s
 t

e
c
h

n
iq

u
e

s
 t

o
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 w

it
h

 E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 i

n
v
it

in
g

 t
h

e
m

 t
o
 m

e
e
ti

n
g

s
; 

a
s
k
in

g
 
fo

r 
a
s
s
is

ta
n

c
e

 
to

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

 w
o

rk
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
; 

h
a
v
in

g
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
u

p
d

a
te

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
; 

a
n

d
 s

h
a
ri
n

g
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 s
ti
ll 

th
e

re
 i
s
 

a
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 f

u
rt

h
e

r.
  

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 O

n
e

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
 R

u
le

s
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e

 N
o
te

s
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 w

ill
:

•
B

e
 i
n

n
o

v
a
ti

v
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 t
o

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

in
g

 t
h

e
 w

a
y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

o
p

e
ra

te
s
; 

•
A

d
d

 v
a
lu

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
s
 t

h
e

y
 d

o
; 
a
n

d
 

•
S

tr
iv

e
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

 c
h

a
n

n
e

ls
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 w
id

e
r 

c
o
m

m
u

n
it

y
. 

Page 61



9
©

2
0

0
9

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

3
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
s
c
o

p
e
 a

n
d

 r
o

le
, 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 w
id

e
r 

re
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
d

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 T

w
o

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 p

u
b

lis
h

 a
n

d
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
 l

o
c
a
l 

a
n

d
 n

a
ti
o

n
a
l 

e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
w

h
e
re

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 h

a
s
 a

d
d

e
d

 v
a
lu

e
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 A

n
n

u
a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

. 
 T

h
is

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

e
e

n
 b

y
 f

u
ll 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 c
o

n
v
e

y
 t

h
e

 m
e

s
s
a
g

e
 

th
a
t 

b
y
 e

n
g

a
g

in
g

 f
u

lly
 w

it
h

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
s
 a

 w
h

o
le

 w
ill

b
e

n
e

fi
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 
 

T
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 s

o
m

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

h
a
ir

s
, 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 a
n

d
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 i
s
 c

le
a
rl

y
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 b

y
 a

 q
u

o
te

 f
ro

m
 o

n
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

h
a
ir
 “

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 w
ill

 p
u

n
is

h
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 f
o
r 

c
o

-o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 t

o
o

 f
u

lly
 w

it
h
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
q

u
e

s
ts

.”

T
h

e
 ‘

M
e
m

o
ra

n
d

u
m

 o
f 

U
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 a
n

d
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
a
n

d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
’

w
a
s
 d

e
v
is

e
d

 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 

s
u

b
tl

e
ti

e
s
 a

n
d

 n
u

a
n

c
e

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
a
n

d
 r

o
b

u
s
t 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
. 

 T
h

is
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 r
e
-d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 t
o
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 

w
o
rk

in
g

 
re

la
ti

o
n

s
h

ip
s
 

a
n

d
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 

b
e
 

in
tr

o
d
u

c
e

d
 

o
n
 

a
n

 
A

n
n

u
a
l 

b
a
s
is

 
w

it
h

in
 

th
e
 

M
e
m

b
e

rs
 

in
d

u
c
ti

o
n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

3
.4

P
u

b
li

c
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

F
ro

m
 t

h
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

 i
t 

w
a
s
 n

o
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

a
tt

e
n

d
a
n

c
e

 b
y
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b
lic

 i
s
 p

o
o

r.
  

A
d

v
e

rt
is

in
g

 

o
f 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 i

s
 p

ri
n

c
ip

a
lly

 d
o

n
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 i

n
te

rn
e

t 
s
it
e

 a
n

d
 i

f 
a
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 i

s
 t

o
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 

o
u

ts
id

e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

iv
ic

 c
e

n
tr

e
 t

h
e

n
 f

lie
rs

 w
ill

 b
e
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 t

o
 l

e
a
v
e

 a
t 

th
e
 p

la
c
e

 o
f 

th
e
 n

e
w

 v
e

n
u

e
. 

 I
n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

h
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 U
n

it
 h

a
s
 a

 m
a
ili

n
g

 l
is

t 
to

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
te

 w
it
h

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 h
a
v
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 a
tt

e
n

d
e

d
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
. 

 T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

it
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

p
p

ro
p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 t

ry
 a

n
d

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 g
re

a
te

r 
p

u
b

lic
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

 t
h

e
y
 c

o
u

ld
 

lo
o

k
 a

t 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
m

e
th

o
d
s
 o

f 
a
d

v
e

rt
is

in
g

 t
h

e
ir

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

s
. 
 

In
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 g
re

a
te

r 
e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e

rs
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

h
a
v
in

g
 s

in
g

le
 i

te
m

 a
g

e
n

d
a
s
. 

 T
h

e
re

 h
a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
c
c
u

rr
e

n
c
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
  

w
h
e

re
 

a
g

e
n

d
a
 
it
e
m

s
 
h

a
v
e

 
b
e

e
n

 
g

iv
e

n
 
d

is
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

a
te

 
a
m

o
u

n
ts

 
o
f 

ti
m

e
 
a
n

d
 
a
s
 
a
 
re

s
u

lt
 
a
tt

e
n

d
e
e

s
 
h

a
v
e

 
b

e
e

n
 
le

ft
 
w

a
it
in

g
 

s
o

m
e

ti
m

e
s
 n

o
t 

b
e

in
g

 a
b
le

 t
o
 p

re
s
e

n
t 

th
e

ir
 g

iv
e

n
 a

g
e

n
d

a
 i
te

m
.

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 T

h
re

e

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 r

a
is

e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
fi

le
 o

f 
th

e
 ‘

M
e
m

o
ra

n
d

u
m

 o
f 

U
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 a
n

d
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w

a
n

d
 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
’

a
n

d
 
s
h

o
u

ld
 
 
e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

e
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 
th

e
 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 
C

h
a
ir
s
, 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 
a
n

d
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
. 
 O

n
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a
l 
b

a
s
is

 t
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

s
h

o
u

ld
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 i
n

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 
  
  
 

Page 62



1
0

©
2

0
0

9
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

3
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
s
c
o

p
e
 a

n
d

 r
o

le
, 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 w
id

e
r 

re
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
d

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 g
re

a
te

r 
e

n
g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
, 
w

it
n

e
s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

-o
p

te
e

s
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 r

e
m

in
d

 M
e

m
b
e

rs
 t

h
a
t 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

th
e

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 f
o
ru

m
 t

o
 r

a
is

e
 p

o
lit

ic
a
l 
v
ie

w
s
 a

s
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t

h
a
t 

b
y
 d

o
in

g
 s

o
 t

h
e

s
e

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 

m
a
y
 f

e
e

l 
a
lie

n
a
te

d
. 

3
.5

C
o

-o
p

te
d

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

H
a
v
in

g
 
a
tt

e
n

d
e

d
 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 
a
t 

L
C

C
 
th

a
t 

h
a
d

 
b

o
th

 
c
o

-o
p
te

d
 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 
o
n

 
th

e
 
B

o
a
rd

 
a
n

d
 
n

o
 
c
o

-o
p

te
d
 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 
th

e
re

 

a
p

p
e

a
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e

l 
o

f 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 b
y
 a

ll 
w

h
e

n
 t

h
e

 B
o

a
rd

s
 c

o
n

ta
in

e
d

 c
o

-o
p

te
d

 M
e
m

b
e

rs
. 

 I
n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

m
a
d

e
 b

y
 t

h
e

 c
o

-o
p
te

d
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 w

a
s
 v

e
ry

 v
a
lu

a
b

le
 a

s
 t

h
e
s
e

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 w
e

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 d
ra

w
 u

p
o

n
 t

h
e

ir
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 

d
if

fe
re

n
t 

p
e
rs

p
e

c
ti

v
e

. 
 

C
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
 o

f 
L

C
C

 d
o
e

s
 a

llo
w

 a
ll 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
to

 h
a
v
e

 c
o
-o

p
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 i

t 
is

 j
u

s
t 

s
o

m
e

th
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

is
 n

o
t 

w
id

e
ly

e
x
e

rc
is

e
d

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 a

lm
o

s
t 

th
e
 o

p
p

o
s
it
e

 a
t 

B
ri
s
to

l 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
 l

a
rg

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 w

it
h

 c
o
-o

p
te

d

M
e

m
b

e
rs

. 
 T

h
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 U

n
it
 h

a
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
b

e
e

n
 p

ro
a
c
ti

v
e

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 t

a
k
e

n
 a

 p
a
p

e
r 

to
 t

h
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

A
d

v
is

o
ry

 G
ro

u
p

 h
ig

h
lig

h
ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 b

e
n
e

fi
ts

 o
f 

h
a
v
in

g
 c

o
-o

p
te

d
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

n
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
.

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 F

o
u

r

S
in

g
le

 i
te

m
 a

g
e

n
d

a
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
e

d
 f

o
r 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
ir

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
. 
  

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 S

ix

E
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 m

o
re

 f
o
rm

a
lly

 w
h
e
th

e
r 

c
o
-o

p
te

d
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 i

n
v
it

e
d

 t
o

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 

B
o

a
rd

 s
o

 t
o
 a

llo
w

 t
h

e
m

 t
o

 d
ra

w
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t.

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 F

iv
e

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
m

in
d

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

s
a
re

 n
o

t 
a
 f

o
ru

m
 t

o
 v

o
ic

e
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
p

o
lit

ic
a
l 
v
ie

w
s
. 

Page 63



1
1

©
2

0
0

9
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

4
  
  
  
T

h
e

 v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f

o
r 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y

4
.1

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

T
h

is
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e

s
 t

h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 a

 c
le

a
r 

v
is

io
n

 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
a
t 

v
is

io
n

.

4
.2

V
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y

B
y
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

n
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

v
is

io
n

, 
a
im

 o
r 

o
b

je
c
ti

v
e

 f
o

r 
a
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
 i

t 
c
a
n

 s
e

rv
e

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 c
le

a
re

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

a
t

fu
n

c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

 t
h

e
 a

d
d

e
d

 v
a
lu

e
 t

h
a
t 

th
a
t 

fu
n

c
ti

o
n

 c
a
n

 b
ri

n
g

. 
  
 

F
ro

m
 t

h
e
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

t 
L

C
C

 t
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 n

o
  

re
fe

re
n

c
e

 t
o
 w

h
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
e

e
 a

s
 t

h
e

ir
 v

is
io

n
 f

o
r

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
. 

 F
o

llo
w

in
g

 d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 C
h

a
ir
s
,

it
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o
 c

le
a
r 

th
a
t 

th
e
y
 e

a
c
h

 h
a
d
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 p
e
rs

o
n

a
l 

v
is

io
n

s
fo

r 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
re

 b
e

in
g

 n
o

 o
v
e
ra

rc
h

in
g

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
id

e
 v

is
io

n
. 

 T
h

e
 v

is
io

n
s
 f

ro
m

 s
p

e
a
k
in

g
 t

o
 v

a
ri
o

u
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 C
h

a
ir
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 “

h
o

ld
in

g
 t

h
e
 e

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 t
o

 a
c
c
o

u
n

t”
; 

“
g

e
tt

in
g

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 p
re

-p
o

lic
y
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
”

; 
a
n

d
 “

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
f

th
e

 p
u

b
lic

”
. 
 

4
.3

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f

o
r 

e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y

W
h

ils
t 

th
e

re
 i

s
 n

o
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

v
is

io
n

 a
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

t 
L

C
C

 a
ll 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 a

n
d

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 i
n

te
rv

ie
w

e
d

 f
e

lt
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 t

h
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
 w

e
re

 a
d

e
q

u
a
te

 t
o
 e

n
a
b

le
 i

t 
to

 f
u

lf
il 

it
s
 r

o
le

. 
 T

h
e
 a

c
tu

a
l 

e
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 r
e

la
ti

n
g

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

u
n

c
ti

o
n

 t
o
ta

lle
d

 £
5

7
4

,3
1

2
 i
n

 2
0
0

7
-0

8
; 
£

5
8

5
,2

4
7

 i
n

 2
0

0
6
-0

7
; 
a
n

d
 £

5
0
3

,8
7

5
 i
n

 2
0

0
5

-0
6
. 
 

O
n
e
 
a
re

a
 
o
f 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

 
th

a
t 

w
a
s
 
ra

is
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 
B

o
a
rd

 
C

h
a
ir
 
re

la
te

d
 
to

 
w

h
e
th

e
r 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 
o
f 

th
e
 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 
B

o
a
rd

s
 
fu

lly
 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 t
h

e
 t

o
ta

lit
y
 o

f 
is

s
u

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
. 
 W

h
ils

t 
th

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 h

a
v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
re

s
e

a
rc

h
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 t

h
is

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 S

e
v

e
n

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 a

s
c
e

rt
a
in

 w
h

a
t 

th
e

ir
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

v
is

io
n

 i
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 f

u
n

c
ti

o
n

, 
fo

rm
a
lly

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

th
is

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

n
 p

u
b

lic
is

e
 i

t,
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a
lly

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
 R

u
le

 G
u

id
a
n

c
e

 N
o

te
s
. 

Page 64



1
2

©
2

0
0

9
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

4
 

T
h

e
 v

is
io

n
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f

o
r 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d

M
e

m
b

e
r 

fe
lt
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

s
e

 w
e

re
 p

re
d

o
m

in
a
te

ly
 i
n

te
rn

e
t 

b
a
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 d
id

n
o

t 
a
llo

w
 f

o
r 

s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

e
x
p

e
rt

is
e

 t
o
 a

lw
a
y
s
 b

e
 o

b
ta

in
e

d
 o

n
 a

 

p
a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

to
p

ic
 a

re
a
. 

 T
h

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 U

n
it

 d
o

e
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 n
e

w
s
p

a
p

e
r 

c
lip

p
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 f
o

r 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 C
h

a
ir

s
 

w
h

ic
h

 
e

n
a
b

le
s
 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 
to

 
g

a
in

 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 
re

la
ti
n
g
 
to

 
 
to

p
ic

 
a
re

a
s
 
a
n
d

 
fa

c
ili

ta
te

s
 
s
o
m

e
 
h
o
ri
zo

n
 
s
c
a
n
n

in
g

 
to

 
b
e
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e

n
 
a
n

d
 
p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

e
m

e
rg

in
g

 
is

s
u

e
s
 
id

e
n
ti

fi
e

d
. 

 
 
In

 
a
d

d
it

io
n

 
th

e
 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 
U

n
it

 
k
e

e
p

 
tr

a
c
k
 
o

f 
u

p
 
a
n
d

 
c
o

m
in

g
 

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
, 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
s
, 

d
e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ta

l 
fo

rw
a
rd

 p
la

n
s
, 

p
u

b
lic

a
ti

o
n

s
 b

y
 p

re
s
s
u

re
s
, 

q
u

a
n

g
o

s
a
n

d
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 
b

o
d

ie
s
 a

n
d

 a
tt

e
n
d

n
u

m
e

ro
u

s
 s

e
m

in
a
rs

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

fe
re

n
c
e

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 b
a
c
k
 o

n
 a

ll 
o
f 

th
e
s
e
. 

In
 
a
d

d
it

io
n

 
th

e
re

 
a
re

 
a
 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

w
e

b
 
b

a
s
e

d
 
fo

ru
m

s
 
w

h
ic

h
 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 
a
re

 
e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

d
 
to

 
a
c
c
e

s
s
 
to

 
g

a
in

 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 o
r 

id
e

n
ti

fy
 e

m
e

rg
in

g
 i

s
s
u

e
s
. 

 T
h

e
re

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o

 b
e

e
n

 a
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l 

C
h

a
ir

s
 F

o
ru

m
 a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 M
e
m

b
e

rs
 f

ro
m

 L
C

C
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 

a
c
c
e

s
s
e
d
 t

h
is

 f
a
c
ili

ty
. 
  

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 E

ig
h

t

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 b

e
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

d
 t

o
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 w

e
b

 b
a
s
e

d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 f

o
ru

m
s
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 a
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l 

n
e

tw
o

rk
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
 t

o
 d

ra
w

 u
p

o
n

 a
n
d

 i
t 

w
ill

 e
n

a
b

le
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
h
o

ri
zo

n
 s

c
a
n

n
in

g
 o

f 
e

m
e
rg

in
g

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
. 
  

Page 65



1
3

©
2

0
0

9
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

5
M

a
tc

h
in

g
 o

f 
s
k
il
ls

 t
o

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 r
o

le
s

5
.1

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

T
h

is
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e

s
 t

h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 s
k
ill

s
 o

f 
th

e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
n

 t
h

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 a

re
 m

a
tc

h
e

d
 t

o
 a

n
d
 

a
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 f
o
r 

th
e
 f

u
lf

ilm
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

ir
 r

o
le

. 

5
.2

M
a

tc
h

in
g

 o
f 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

 s
k

il
ls

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 r

o
le

T
h

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
o

s
e

d
 o

f 
e

le
c
te

d
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 w

h
o

 a
re

 s
e

le
c
te

d
 t

o
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
t 

th
e
 p

o
lit

ic
a
l 
b

a
la

n
c
e

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

  
 A

s
 a

 

re
s
u

lt
 e

a
c
h

 p
o

lit
ic

a
l 
g

ro
u

p
 h

a
s
 i
ts

 o
w

n
 m

e
th

o
d

 o
f 

s
e

le
c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
a
p

p
o

in
ti
n

g
 C

h
a
ir
s
 a

n
d

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 t
o

 t
h

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
. 

 H
o

w
e

v
e

r 

th
e

re
 
is

 
 
n
o

 
fo

rm
a
l 

m
a
tc

h
in

g
 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 
b

y
 
a
n

y
 
o

f 
th

e
 
p

o
lit

ic
a
l 

g
ro

u
p

s
 
o

f 
th

e
 
s
k
ill

s
 
o

f 
C

h
a
ir
s
 
a
n

d
 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 
a
n

d
 
th

e
 
s
k
ill

 

re
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

a
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

B
o

a
rd

. 
 G

iv
e

n
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

re
 i

s
 n

o
 f

o
rm

a
l 

m
a
tc

h
in

g
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 m

o
s
t 

s
u

it
a
b

le
 c

a
n
d

id
a
te

 i
n

te
rm

s
 o

f 
s
k
ill

s
, 

e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

s
 o

r 
e

v
e

n
 i
n

te
re

s
t 

in
 t

h
e

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

m
a
tt

e
r 

is
 n

o
t 

a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 a

s
 a

 C
h

a
ir
 o

r 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

. 

5
.3

A
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c
e

T
h

e
 t

a
b

le
 b

e
lo

w
 h

ig
h

lig
h

ts
 t

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h

 o
f

th
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 t

h
a
t 

h
a
v
e

 a
tt

e
n

d
e

d
 5

0
%

 o
r 

le
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 t

im
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
 1

 J
u
n

e
 2

0
0

8
 –

1
9

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0

9
:

2
7

%
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s

3
6

%
H

e
a
lt

h

4
0

%
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s

1
7

%
C

it
y
 a

n
d

 R
e

g
io

n
a
l 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s

8
%

C
it

y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

1
4

%
C

e
n

tr
a
l 
a
n

d
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te

2
3

%
A

d
u

lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

 w
h

o
 h

a
v

e
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

 5
0

%
 o

r 
le

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 h

e
ld

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 1
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
0

8
 –

1
9
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

9
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a

rd

Page 66



1
4

©
2

0
0

9
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

5
M

a
tc

h
in

g
 o

f 
s
k
il
ls

 t
o

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 r
o

le
s

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

T
h

is
 t

a
b

le
 c

le
a
rl

y
 h

ig
h

lig
h

ts
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
re

 a
re

 a
 l

a
rg

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 w
h

o
 a

re
 n

o
t 

a
tt

e
n

d
in

g
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 o

n
 a

 

re
g

u
la

r 
b

a
s
is

. 
 I

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 n

o
t 

o
n

ly
 i
s
 t

h
e
re

 a
 p

o
o
r 

a
tt

e
n

d
a
n

c
e

 r
a
te

 b
y
 s

o
m

e
 b

u
t 

th
e

re
 a

re
 o

th
e
r 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 w
h

o
 a

re
 e

it
h

e
r 

la
te

 o
r

w
h

o
 l

e
a
v
e

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 e

a
rl
y
. 

  
P

o
o
r 

a
tt

e
n

d
a
n

c
e

 r
a
te

s
, 

a
rr

iv
in

g
 l

a
te

o
r 

le
a
v
in

g
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 e

a
rl
y
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

e
n

a
b

le
 a

ll 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 t

o
 f

u
lly

 

e
n

g
a
g

e
 i
n

 t
h
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 
 

C
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 
th

e
 
H

e
a
d

 
o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 
a
n

d
 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

s
e

n
d

s
 
re

p
o

rt
s
 
to

 
th

e
 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 
B

o
a
rd

 
C

h
a
ir
s
 
a
n

d
 
g

ro
u
p

 
W

h
ip

s
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
ti

n
g

 a
tt

e
n

d
a
n

c
e

 r
a
te

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
ir

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

. 
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
w

 a
n

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
is

 t
o

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 s

e
n

t 
to

 e
a
c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 p
o

lit
ic

a
l 
g

ro
u

p
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

m
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
. 

 F
o

r 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 t

o
 b

e
 s

e
e

n
 a

s
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

it
 i

s
 p

a
ra

m
o

u
n

t 
th

a
t 

M
e
m

b
e

rs
 w

h
o
 s

it
 o

n
 e

a
c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 B
o

a
rd

s
 a

tt
e

n
d

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o
 a

s
 m

a
n

y
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 a

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 
 

It
 i

s
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 b

y
 s

o
m

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 f

u
n

c
ti

o
n

 a
t 

L
C

C
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

tr
e

n
g

th
e

n
e

d
. 

H
a
v
in

g
 

a
tt

e
n

d
e

d
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 i
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 e

v
id

e
n

t 
th

a
t 

th
e
 c

h
a
ir

in
g

 s
ty

le
s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd

s
 d

o
e

s
 d

if
fe

r 
a
n

d
 t

h
is

 c
a
n

 l
e

a
d

 t
o

 

th
e
re

 b
e
in

g
 a

 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
c
la

ri
ty

 o
v
e
r 

w
h

a
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

 t
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 a
c
tu

a
lly

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

s
; 

to
 a

g
e

n
d

a
 i

te
m

s
 b

e
in

g
 g

iv
e

n
 d

is
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

a
te

 

a
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
f 

ti
m

e
; 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 e
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 m
e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 b

e
in

g
 w

e
a
k
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 

lo
o

k
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 a

t 
th

e
 m

e
th

o
d

s
 u

s
e

d
 i

n
 a

p
p

o
in

ti
n

g
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

h
a
ir
s
. 

D
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 s
e

le
c
ti

o
n

 

m
e

th
o

d
s
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
 b

y
 e

a
c
h

 o
f 

th
e
 p

o
lit

ic
a
l 

g
ro

u
p

s
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
th

a
t 

th
e

 M
e
m

b
e

rs
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 a
s
 C

h
a
ir
s
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 

a
re

 n
o

t 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

s
u

it
a
b

le
. 

  
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
in

g
 a

 ‘
jo

b
 s

p
e

c
if

ic
a
ti

o
n

’
o

u
tl

in
in

g
 t

h
e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 c
o

m
p

e
te

n
c
ie

s
 o

f 
a
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

h
a
ir

. 
 E

a
c
h

 p
o

lit
ic

a
l 

g
ro

u
p

 s
h

o
u

ld
 t

h
e

n
 s

e
le

c
t 

th
e

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 w
h

o
 b

e
s
t 

m
e

e
t 

th
is

 s
p

e
c
if

ic
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 L
e

a
d

e
r 

o
f 

e
a
c
h

 g
ro

u
p

. 
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 N

in
e

R
e

g
u

la
r 

re
p

o
rt

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 m
a
d

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
o

lit
ic

a
l 
p

a
rt

ie
s
 h

ig
h

lig
h

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 a
tt

e
n

d
a
n

c
e

 r
a
te

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

ir
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
. 
 W

h
e

re
 a

tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

 

ra
te

s
 f

a
ll 

b
e

lo
w

 a
n

 a
c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

 l
e

v
e

l 
th

e
n

 i
t 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

e
a
c
h

 p
o

lit
ic

a
l 
g

ro
u

p
  
to

 t
a
k
e

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
c
ti
o

n
 t

o

a
d

d
re

s
s
 t

h
is

. 
  
A

lt
e

rn
a
ti

v
e

ly
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

m
e
m

b
e

rs
 o

n
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 i
f 

th
e
re

 a
re

 t
o

o
 m

a
n

y
 c

o
m

p
e

ti
n

g
 

d
e

m
a
n

d
s
 o

n
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

’
ti
m

e
. 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 T

e
n

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
in

g
 a

 ‘
jo

b
 s

p
e

c
if

ic
a
ti

o
n

’
o

u
tl

in
in

g
 t

h
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 c

o
m

p
e

te
n

c
ie

s
 o

f 
a
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

h
a
ir

. 
 E

a
c
h

 

p
o

lit
ic

a
l 
g

ro
u

p
 s

h
o

u
ld

 t
h
e

n
 s

e
le

c
t 

th
e

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 w
h

o
 b

e
s
t 

m
e

e
t

th
is

 s
p

e
c
if

ic
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 L

e
a
d

e
r 

o
f

e
a
c
h

 g
ro

u
p
. 

Page 67



1
5

©
2

0
0

9
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

5
M

a
tc

h
in

g
 o

f 
s
k
il
ls

 t
o

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 r
o

le
s

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

T
h

e
re

 a
p

p
e

a
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 a

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

m
e

th
o

d
s
 u

s
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
s
e

c
to

r 
in

 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
a
p

p
o

in
ti

n
g

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 a
s
 C

h
a
ir

s
 o

f 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
. 
 T

h
e

s
e

 m
e

th
o

d
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

:

•
A

n
 i
n

fo
rm

a
l 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
n
o

m
in

a
ti

o
n

, 
d
e

a
lt

 w
it

h
 b

y
 e

a
c
h

 p
o

lit
ic

a
l 
g

ro
u

p
 a

n
d

 e
n

d
o

rs
e

d
 b

y
 f

u
ll 

C
o

u
n

c
il;

•
H

a
v
in

g
 j
o

b
 s

p
e

c
if

ic
a
ti

o
n

s
, 
a
g

a
in

s
t 

w
h
ic

h
 e

a
c
h

 p
o

lit
ic

a
l 
p

a
rt

y
 a

p
p

o
in

ts
 t

h
e

 m
o

s
t 

s
u

it
a
b

le
 c

a
n

d
id

a
te

; 
a
n

d

•
U

s
in

g
 j
o

b
 s

p
e

c
if

ic
a
ti

o
n

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 l
e

a
d

e
r 

o
f 

e
a
c
h

 p
o

lit
ic

a
l 
p

a
rt

y
 t

o
 f

o
rm

a
lly

 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
 c

a
n
d
id

a
te

s
 a

g
a
in

s
t.

Page 68



1
6

©
2

0
0

9
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

6
  
  
  
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

6
.1

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

T
h

is
 s

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e

s
 h

o
w

 s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 e

n
q

u
ir

ie
s
 a

n
d

 p
u

b
lic

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 f

e
e

d
 i

n
to

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

B
o

a
rd

s
. 

6
.2

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

T
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

m
e
e

ti
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

fo
r 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 i
s
 h

e
ld

 i
n

 J
u

n
e

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
re

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

. 
 W

o
rk

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

re
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 h
a
v
in

g
 h

a
d

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 i

n
c
lu

d
in

g
 k

e
y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
, 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 

a
u

d
it

 a
n

d
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
d

a
ta

 e
tc

. 
 W

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

fi
n
a
lis

e
d
 d

o
c
u

m
e
n
ts

 a
s
 t

h
e
y
 a

re
 s

e
e
n
 t

o
 e

v
o
lv

e
 

th
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
e

 y
e

a
r.

  

A
s
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

re
 e

v
o

lv
in

g
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

a
ll

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

a
lly

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 n
e

w
 a

re
a
s
 f

o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

w
o

rk
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 e

a
c
h

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 s
h

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 a
 s

ta
n

d
in

g
 a

g
e

n
d

a
it
e

m
 w

h
ic

h
 a

llo
w

s
 f

o
r 

re
a
l 

ti
m

e
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
is

s
u

e
s
, 

s
o
 

th
a
t 

a
n

y
 e

m
e

rg
in

g
 i

s
s
u

e
s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
. 

 T
h
is

 w
ill

 e
n

a
b

le
 a

n
y
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
is

s
u

e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

d
d

e
d

 w
h

e
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 f
a
c
ili

ta
te

 t
h

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 b
e

in
g

 p
e

rc
e

iv
e

d
to

 b
e

 h
a
v
in

g
 g

re
a
te

r 
im

p
a
c
t 

b
y
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
a
lly

 s
c
a
n

n
in

g
 t

h
e
 h

o
ri

zo
n

fo
r 

p
o

te
n
ti
a
l 
is

s
u

e
s
. 
  

F
o

r 
a
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 i
n

q
u

ir
y
 a

re
a
 t

o
 b

e
 a

d
d

e
d

 t
o
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i

t
w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 ‘

in
q

u
ir

y
 s

e
le

c
ti

o
n

 

c
ri

te
ri

a
’

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 w
ill

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
le

v
a
n

t 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
a
n

d
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
e

m
b

e
r.

  
T

h
e

 u
lt

im
a
te

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 o
f 

w
h

e
th

e
r

to
 a

d
d
 a

n
 i
n

q
u

ir
y
 a

re
a
 t

o
 t

h
e

 w
o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 l
ie

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
ls

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
 ‘

re
q

u
e

s
t 

fo
r 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
’

fo
rm

 t
h

a
t 

a
n

y
o

n
e

 c
a
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 a
n

d
 s

u
b

m
it

 t
o

 t
h
e

 r
e

le
v
a
n

t 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

, 
th

is
 i

s
 

s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 t

h
e

 s
a
m

e
 s

e
le

c
ti
o

n
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 a

b
o

v
e

. 
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 E

le
v
e

n

A
ll 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 h
a
v
e

 ‘
re

a
l 
ti
m

e
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
’
a
s
 a

 s
ta

n
d

in
g

 a
g

e
n

d
a
 i
te

m
. 

Page 69



1
7

©
2

0
0

9
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

6
  
  
  
D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d

A
t 

o
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
d
 t

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 d

e
b

a
te

 a
b

o
u

t 
w

h
e

th
e
r 

o
r 

n
o

t 
to

 a
d

d
 a

 p
a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

in
q

u
ir
y
 a

re
a
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

w
o

rk
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
. 

 W
h

ils
t 

M
e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
a
rd

 s
p

e
n

t 
a
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

b
le

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

ti
m

e
 d

e
b

a
ti

n
g

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

o
r 

n
o

t 
to

 a
d

d
 t

h
is

 t
o
 

th
e

ir
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i

t 
w

a
s
 i

n
c
o

rr
e

c
tl

y
 p

o
in

te
d

 
o

u
t 

th
a
t 

th
is

 
h

a
d

 
n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 
d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
 
w

it
h

 
e

it
h

e
r 

th
e
 
re

le
v
a
n

t 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
r 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
e

m
b

e
r.

  
It

 w
a
s
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 d

e
c
id

e
d

 t
o
 m

o
v
e

 t
h
is

 a
g

e
n

d
a
 i

te
m

 t
o
 t

h
e
 n

e
x
t 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
. 

 T
h

is
 a

c
ti

o
n

 w
a
s
 n

o
t 

a
c
tu

a
lly

 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 a
n

d
 c

o
u

ld
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
lly

 l
e

a
d

 t
o

 a
lie

n
a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

, 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 m
e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 i
f 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

c
o

n
d

u
c
te

d
 

in
 a

n
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
m

a
n

n
e

r.
  

B
y
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a
t 

a
ll 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 b

o
a
rd

s
 h

o
ld

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e

 p
re

-m
e
e

ti
n

g
s
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 h
e

lp
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

s
im

ila
r

s
it

u
a
ti

o
n

s
 a

re
 l
im

it
e

d
. 

Page 70



1
8

©
2

0
0

9
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

7
  
  
  
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s

7
.1

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

T
h

is
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e

s
 t

h
e

 e
x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 e
n

a
b

le
s
 t

h
e

m
 t

o
 r

e
a
c
h

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
.

7
.2

Q
u

a
li
ty

 /
 Q

u
a
n

ti
ty

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 

fe
e

lin
g

 a
m

o
n

g
s
t 

th
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 M
e
m

b
e

rs
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 t
h

e
y
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 t
o
 e

n
a
b

le
 t

h
e

m
 t

o
 

re
a
c
h

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 i
s
 t

o
 a

 h
ig

h
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 f

e
lt

to
 b

e
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 s
tr

o
n

g
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
B

o
a
rd

 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 h
a
v
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 w
it
h
 t

h
e

ir
 P

ri
n

c
ip

a
l 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 A

d
v
is

o
rs

.

A
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

s
, 

n
o

t 
ju

s
t 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
, 

th
e

re
 i
s
 a

 t
re

n
d

fo
r 

v
e

ry
 l
a
rg

e
 a

g
e

n
d

a
 p

a
c
k
s
. 

 T
h

e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
h

a
v
in

g
 s

u
c
h

 l
a
rg

e
 a

g
e

n
d

a

p
a
c
k
s
 i
s
 t

h
a
t 

p
e

o
p

le
 d

o
 n

o
t 

g
e

t 
s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
ti

m
e
 t

o
 r

e
a
d

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

te
n

ts
 f

u
lly

. 
 H

a
v
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

ll 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

g
e

n
d

a
 p

a
c
k
s
 f

o
r 

M
a
rc

h

2
0
0
9
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 o
n
ly

 t
w

o
 w

it
h
 l

e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 o

n
e
 h

u
n
d
re

d
 p

a
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 f
o
u
r 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 w

it
h
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 p

a
c
k
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n
 

o
n

e
 
h

u
n

d
re

d
 
a
n

d
 
fi

ft
y
 
p

a
g

e
s
. 

 
T

h
e

 
q

u
a
n

ti
ty

 
o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
th

a
t 

is
 
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 
a
n

d
 
th

e
 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
a
g

e
n

d
a
 
it
e

m
s
 
m

a
y
 
b

e
 
a
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 f

a
c
to

r 
a
s
 t

o
 w

h
y
 t

h
e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

in
 s

o
m

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

s
 o

f 
s
o

m
e
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 i

s
 l

im
it

e
d

. 
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

 a
g

e
n

d
a
 p

a
c
k
s
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 l
im

it
e

d
 i
n

 s
iz

e
 a

s
 t

h
is

 c
o

u
ld

 p
o

te
n

ti
a
lly

 l
e

a
d

 t
o
 g

re
a
te

r 
e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 b

o
th

 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 a
n

d
 o

th
e
r 

a
tt

e
n

d
e

e
s
. 

A
t 

o
n

e
 
o
f 

th
e

 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 
B

o
a
rd

 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 
s
o

m
e
 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 
fe

lt
 
th

a
t 

in
s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 
w

a
s
 

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 d

e
c
id

e
 i

f 
to

 g
o
 a

h
e

a
d

 a
n

d
 h

o
ld

 a
n

 i
n

q
u

ir
y
 h

e
n
c
e

 a
d

d
in

g
 a

n
 i

te
m

 t
o
 t

h
e

ir
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 A
s
 a

 c
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 

a
g

e
n

d
a
 i
te

m
 h

a
d

 t
o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 f
o
rw

a
rd

 t
o
 t

h
e

 n
e
x
t 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
. 
 

A
ll 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

y
 u

s
e

 t
h

e
ir
 p

re
-m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 a

s
 t

h
is

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 t

h
e
 f

o
ru

m
 f

o
r 

M
e
m

b
e

rs
 t

o
 

v
o

ic
e

 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 
s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 
o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
. 

C
h

a
ir
s
 
s
h

o
u

ld
 
e

n
s
u

re
 
th

a
t 

a
t 

p
re

-m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 
a
ll 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 
a
re

 

fo
c
u

s
e

d
 u

p
o

n
 t

h
e

 f
o
rt

h
 c

o
m

in
g

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
n

s
u

re
 a

ll
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 i

d
e

n
ti

fy
 w

h
ic

h
 a

g
e

n
d

a
 i

te
m

 t
h

e
y
 w

ill
 l

e
a
d

 o
n
. 

 B
y
 

h
a
v
in

g
 m

o
re

 f
o

c
u

s
e

d
 p

re
-m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 t

h
is

 s
h

o
u

ld
 l
e

a
d

 t
o
 m

o
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

s
. 
 

Page 71



1
9

©
2

0
0

9
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

7
  
  
  
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
d

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 T

w
e

lv
e

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 p

re
-m

e
e
ti

n
g

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 m
o

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

ly
 u

s
e

d
. 

 T
h

e
y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
 f

o
ru

m
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 r

e
a
l 

fo
c
u

s
 i

n
 a

d
v
a
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
. 
  

Page 72



2
0

©
2

0
0

9
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

8
  
  
  
C

a
ll
-I

n
 a

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts

8
.1

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

T
h

is
 s

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 r

e
p
o

rt
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e

s
 t

h
e

 d
e

s
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

a
ll-

In
 a

rr
a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 s
p

e
c
if

ic
a
lly

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 r

e
c
e

n
t 

‘C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t’
.

8
.2

C
a

ll
 I
n

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

W
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a
l 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
A

c
t 

2
0

0
0

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 

th
a
t

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 a

re
 g

iv
e

n
 t

h
e
 p

o
w

e
r 

to
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 t

h
a
t 

a
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a
d

e
 b

u
t 

n
o

t 
im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 b

e
 r

e
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
, 

‘C
a
lle

d
 I

n
’.
  

A
s
 ‘

C
a
lli

n
g

 I
n
’

o
f 

a
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 c
a
n

 l
e

a
d

 t
o
 a

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 o
f 

d
e

la
y
 b

e
fo

re
 a

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 i
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 i
t 

w
a
s
 e

n
v
is

a
g

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
is

 m
e

c
h

a
n

is
m

 i
s
 u

s
e

d
 s

p
a
ri

n
g

ly
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
c
e

n
t 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
m

a
d

e
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 o

b
s
e

rv
a
ti

o
n

s
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 C
a
ll 

in
 a

rr
a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

:

“
…

. 
C

a
ll-

In
 a

rr
a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 n
e

e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

 f
a
ir
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h

…
. 

 C
a
ll 

In
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 

in
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 b
y
 m

a
n

y
 C

o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

 a
s
 t

w
o

 p
o

lit
ic

a
l 
p
a
rt

ie
s
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

a
g
re

e
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 f

e
w

 C
a
ll 

In
s
 i
n
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

y
e
a
rs

.”

F
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h
is

 o
b

s
e

rv
a
ti

o
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 i

ts
 c

o
n

s
ti

tu
ti

o
n

 i
n

 M
a
y
 2

0
0

8
. 

 C
a
ll 

In
 a

rr
a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 m
u

s
t 

n
o

w
 b

e
 

s
ig

n
e

d
 b

y
:

•
T

w
o

 N
o

n
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 e
le

c
te

d
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 (

w
h

o
 a

re
 n

o
t 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 s
a
m

e
 p

o
lit

ic
a
l 
p

a
rt

y
);
 o

r

•
A

n
y
 f

iv
e

 N
o

n
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 e
le

c
te

d
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
. 

F
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 a

b
o

v
e

 a
n

o
th

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 C

a
ll 

In
 a

rr
a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
a
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
0
8

  
a
n

d
 t

h
e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 a

rr
a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
:

•
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 s
h

o
u

ld
 n

o
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

b
e

 s
ig

n
a
to

ri
e

s
 t

o
 C

a
ll 

In
s
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

y
 w

ill
 h

e
a
r;

•
A

 s
u

b
s
ti

tu
te

 M
e

m
b

e
r 

is
 e

n
ti

tl
e

d
 t

o
 a

tt
e

n
d

 t
h

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e
 C

a
ll 

In
 i

s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 i

n
 p

la
c
e

 o
f 

a
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
M

e
m

b
e

r;
 a

n
d

•
C

a
ll 

in
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 c

a
n

 b
e
 a

d
jo

u
rn

e
d

 u
p

 t
o
 a

 m
a
x
im

u
m

 o
f 

fi
v
e

 w
o
rk

in
g

 d
a
y
s
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 

th
e
 t

im
e

 b
u
t 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 c

ru
c
ia

l 
 b

y
 t

h
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 r

e
a
c
h

 a
 d

e
c
is

io
n

. 

Page 73



2
1

©
2

0
0

9
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

8
  
  
  
C

a
ll

-I
n

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

A
s
 a

 c
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e

s
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

n
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
a
ll 

In
s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
, 

w
h
ic

h
 n

o
w

 a
p

p
e

a
r 

in
 l

in
e

 

w
it

h
 
th

e
 
le

v
e

l 
o

f 
C

a
ll 

In
s
 
a
t 

o
th

e
r 

L
o

c
a
l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s
. 

 
T

h
e

s
e

 
c
h

a
n
g
e

s
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
ls

o
 
le

d
 
to

 
th

e
 
v
ie

w
 
th

a
t 

C
a
ll 

In
s
 
a
re

 
b
e
c
o
m

in
g

 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 m
o

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

. 

O
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 r

e
c
e

n
tl

y
 C

a
lle

d
 I

n
 w

a
s
 a

t 
th

e
 C

it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 a
n

d
 r

e
la

te
d

 t
o
 a

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a
d

e
 a

ro
u

n
d
 

c
e

m
e

te
ri
e

s
 a

n
d

 c
re

m
a
to

ri
a
 f

e
e

s
. 

 W
h

ils
t 

th
is

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 w
a
s
 r

e
le

a
s
e

d
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

, 
it
 w

a
s
 n

o
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

D
e

le
g

a
ti

o
n

, 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 h
a
d

 b
e

e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e
 C

a
ll 

In
p

e
ri
o

d
 h

a
d

 e
x
p

ir
e

d
. 

 I
n

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a
v
e

 r
e

c
e

n
tl
y

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 t

h
is

 i
s
s
u

e
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 a

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n
d

a
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
in

 o
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 r
e

p
o
rt

s
. 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 T

h
ir

te
e

n

T
h

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 U

n
it

 s
h

o
u

ld
 r

e
m

in
d

 O
ff

ic
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 t

h
a
t 

n
e

e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 a

d
h

e
re

d
 t

o
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 C

a
ll 

In
s
. 
 

Page 74



2
2

©
2

0
0

9
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

9
S

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

, 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 i

m
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

ts
a
n

d
 a

d
d

e
d

 v
a
lu

e
 o

f 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y

9
.1

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

T
h

is
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e

s
 t

h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

in
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
  
a
d

d
s
 v

a
lu

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 

9
.2

S
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
li
v

e
ry

 a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

H
is

to
ri

c
a
lly

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 h

a
v
e

 h
a
d

 n
o

 c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 f

o
r 

tr
a
c
k
in

g
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
. 

 H
e

n
c
e

 i
t 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 

a
lw

a
y
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

le
a
r 

to
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 m

a
d

e
. 

 T
o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a
v
e

 r
e

c
e

n
tl

y
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 a

 f
o

rm
a
l 
tr

a
c
k
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 c

a
n

 m
o

n
it

o
r 

th
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n

s
 i
n
 a

 m
o
re

 s
y
s
te

m
a
ti
c
 w

a
y
. 
  

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 o

n
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a
l 
b

a
s
is

 a
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
. 

 T
h

is
 h

ig
h

lig
h

ts
 i

n
d

e
ta

il 
th

e
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
fo

c
u

s
 o

f 
e

a
c
h

 B
o

a
rd

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

lig
h

ts
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 m

a
d

e
. 

 T
h

is
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

e
d

 
b

y
 o

u
tl

in
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 a

s
 a

 d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 c

a
n

 h
a
v
e

. 
 

W
h

ils
t 

n
o

t 
h
a
v
in

g
 h

a
d

 a
 f

o
rm

a
lis

e
d

 m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 s
y
s
te

m
 i

n
 p

la
c
e

 f
o

r 
a
 l

o
n

g
 p

e
ri

o
d
 o

f 
ti

m
e
, 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 s

ti
ll 

a
b

le
 t

o
 h

ig
h

lig
h

t 
a
 

w
id

e
 

ra
n

g
e

 
o
f 

e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 

o
f 

w
h

e
re

 
th

e
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 

o
f 

th
e
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

B
o

a
rd

s
 

h
a
v
e

 
re

s
u

lt
e

d
 

in
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 

o
r 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
 A

 s
e

le
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 a

re
 h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 b
e

lo
w

: 
 

•
In

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
5
 t

h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

’s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 F

o
ru

m
 t

o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

o
n

 
to

p
ic

s
 
c
h

o
s
e

n
 
b

y
 
th

e
 
y
o

u
n

g
 
p
e

o
p

le
 
th

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
. 

 
In

 
th

e
ir
 
s
e

c
o

n
d

 
y
e

a
r 

th
e
 
Y

o
u

n
g

 
P

e
o

p
le

’s
 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 
F

o
ru

m
 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
 

tr
a
n

s
p

o
rt

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 L
e

e
d

s
 f

o
r 

Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 a

 l
o

c
a
l 

c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 l

a
u

n
c
h

e
d

 f
o

r 
fr

e
e

 b
u

s
 t

ra
v
e

l 
fo

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
.

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 F

o
u

rt
e

e
n

W
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

n
n

u
a
l 

re
p

o
rt

 e
a
c
h

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 s
h

o
u

ld
 c

le
a
rl

y
 o

u
tl

in
e

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 

m
a
d

e
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 e

a
c
h

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 s
h

o
u

ld
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

u
s
in

g
 a

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
ta

b
le

 o
r 

g
ra

p
h

 t
o
 c

le
a
rl
y
 d

is
p

la
y
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e

ir
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 r

e
c
o

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

m
 a

s
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

; 
p

a
rt

ia
lly

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
; 

w
o

rk
 i

n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
; 

n
o

t 
a
c
c
e

p
te

d
; 

a
n

d
 n

o
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

a
p

p
lic

a
b

le
.

Page 75



2
3

©
2

0
0

9
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

9
S

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

, 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 i

m
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

ts
a
n

d
 a

d
d

e
d

 v
a
lu

e
 o

f 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

 

•
T

h
e

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 h
a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i

n
 s

te
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 t
o
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

T
ru

s
t 

S
c
h
o
o

ls
 
to

 
e
n
a
b

le
 
a
 
p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e
 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 
to

 
m

a
x
im

is
e

 
th

e
p
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

th
a
t 

T
ru

s
t 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 
m

ig
h

t 
h
a
v
e

 
in

 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 d
e

p
ri

v
e

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s
. 

•
T

h
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 a

ls
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
fu

n
c
ti

o
n

 t
o

 e
n
s
u

re
th

a
t 

a
ll 

p
a
rt

ie
s
 h

a
v
e

 t
h

e
ir
 v

ie
w

s
 h

e
a
rd

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
ly

 

re
fl
e

c
te

d
. 

 T
h

is
 h

a
s
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
e

n
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

d
 w

h
e

re
 s

ta
ff

 a
t 

a
 l
o

c
a
l 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
a
g

re
e

d
 t

o
 c

a
ll 

o
ff

 s
tr

ik
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 a

ft
e

r 
it
 w

a
s
 d

e
c
id

e
d

th
a
t 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 w

o
u

ld
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 a
n

 i
n

q
u

ir
y
 i
n

to
 a

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
b

a
s
e

d
 i
s
s
u

e
. 

•
T

h
e

 H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 A

d
u

lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 h

a
v
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

b
e

e
n

 a
c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

d
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 i
n

s
tr

u
m

e
n

ta
l 
in

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e

 

n
e

g
o

ti
a
ti

o
n

s
 
a
n

d
 
w

o
rk

in
g

 
re

la
ti

o
n

s
h

ip
s
 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 
th

e
 
L

e
e

d
s
 
T

e
a
c
h

in
g

 
H

o
s
p

it
a
ls

 
N

H
S

 
T

ru
s
t 

a
n

d
 
th

e
 
L
G

I 
K

id
n

e
y
 
P

a
ti

e
n

ts
 

A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o
n
. 
 

•
S

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 a

w
a
rd

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 C

e
n

tr
e
 f

o
r 

P
u

b
lic

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 u

s
e

d
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 o
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 o

b
je

c
ti

v
e

s
 o

f 
th

e
 H

e
a
lt

h
y
 

L
e

e
d

s
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
’s

 ‘
H

e
a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 P

la
n

’
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 t

o
  
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

N
e

tw
o

rk
 f

o
r 

L
e

e
d

s
. 

•
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 

a
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

a
ti

o
n

 
m

a
d

e
 

b
y
 

th
e
 

H
e

a
lt

h
 

a
n

d
 

A
d

u
lt
 

S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

B
o

a
rd

s
 

b
e

in
g

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
, 

fo
r 

a
 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

D
e

p
a
rt

m
e

n
t 

to
 b

e
c
o

m
e
 a

 m
e

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 L

e
e

d
s
 C

h
ild

h
o

o
d

 O
b

e
s
it

y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

G
ro

u
p

, 
it
 i
s
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 p
la

y
e

d
 a

n
 a

c
ti

v
e

 p
a
rt

 i
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 t
h

e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 f

o
r 

ta
c
k
lin

g
 c

h
ild

h
o

o
d

 o
b

e
s
it

y
. 

•
T

h
e

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 h
a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 a
n

 i
n

q
u

ir
y
 i
n

to
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 o

w
n

 C
O

2
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
. 
 

F
ro

m
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 t

h
is

 i
t 

is
 h

ig
h

ly
 c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

e
e

 t
h
e

 B
o

a
rd

 h
a
d

 f
a
c
to

re
d

 i
n

to
 t

h
e

ir
 i

n
q

u
ir

y
 f

u
tu

re
 l

e
g

is
la

ti
v
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

re
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
a
rb

o
n

 R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n
t.

 

A
ll 

o
f 

th
e
 e

x
a
m

p
le

s
 h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 a
b

o
v
e

 h
a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 b
y
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
. 

 N
o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 i
n

te
rv

ie
w

e
d

 

w
e
re

 a
b
le

 t
o
 s

a
y
 w

h
e
n
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
e
d
 a

n
y
 a

re
a
s
 w

h
e
re

 S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 h

a
s
 a

d
d
e
d
 v

a
lu

e
 o

r 
w

h
e
re

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
d

 l
e

a
d

 t
o

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 i

m
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
 W

h
e

n
 a

s
k
e

d
 a

s
 t

o
 w

h
y
 t

h
e

 E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
e

m
b
e
rs

 f
e
lt
 t

h
is

 w
a
s
 t

h
e
 c

a
s
e
, 

s
o
m

e
 s

ta
te

d
 
th

a
t 

th
e
y
 
fe

lt
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 h

a
d

 b
e

c
o

m
e
 “

c
o

s
y
”

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 e
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
 h

e
ld

 w
e

re
 “

n
o

t 
v
e

ry
 c

h
a
lle

n
g

in
g

”
. 

 S
o

m
e

 E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
e

m
b
e

rs
 f

e
lt
 t

h
a
t 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 w

e
re

 o
n

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

p
re

d
o

m
in

a
te

ly
 h

a
d

 b
e

e
n

 g
e

n
e

ra
te

d
 b

y
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
h
e

m
s
e

lv
e

s
. 

 H
a
v
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

 l
a
rg

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 

o
f 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

a
lw

a
y
s
 a

p
p

e
a
r 

to
 b

e
 t

h
e
 c

a
s
e

 a
lt

h
o

u
g

h
 i

t 
d

o
e

s
 h

ig
h

lig
h

t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 t
o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e

y
 a

c
t 

w
it

h
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
s
c
e

p
ti

c
is

m
 i
n

 a
ll 

th
e

y
 d

o
. 

Page 76



2
4

©
2

0
0

9
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

1
0
  
  
  
P

o
li
c
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

1
0

.1
In

tr
o

d
u

c
ti

o
n

T
h

is
 
s
e

c
ti

o
n

 
o

f 
th

e
 
re

p
o

rt
 
d

is
c
u

s
s
e

s
 
th

e
 
e

x
te

n
t 

to
 
w

h
ic

h
 
th

e
 
s
e

v
e

n
 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 
B

o
a
rd

s
 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 
p

o
lic

y
 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 
th

e
 

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

c
y
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o

n
s
 t

a
k
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

s
e

 B
o

a
rd

s
.

1
0

.2
P

o
li

c
y

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

P
o

lic
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

c
a
n

 t
a
k
e

 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

b
e

in
g

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
 n

e
w

 p
o

lic
y
 a

re
a
 o

r 
c
a
n

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

 s
u

g
g

e
s
ti
n

g
 

m
o

d
if

ic
a
ti

o
n

s
 t

o
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 p

o
lic

ie
s
. 
 A

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

th
e

re
 a

re
 e

x
a
m

p
le

s
 t

h
a
t 

a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 a

re
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 s
o

m
e

fo
rm

 o
f 

p
o

lic
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,

 e
v
e

n
 i
f 

a
t 

th
e
 o

u
t 

s
e

t 
th

e
 a

re
a
 o

f 
re

v
ie

w
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
a
d

g
e

d
a
s
 p

o
lic

y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

  
W

h
ils

t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

ro
o

m
 f

o
r 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 a

ll 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 a

re
 m

o
re

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 p
o

lic
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

th
e

re
 i
s
 a

 c
o

n
s
e

n
s
u

s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

re
 i
s

a
 s

h
if

t 
in

 t
h
e

 r
ig

h
t 

d
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 m
o

re
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

o
n

e
 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a
. 

 F
ro

m
 a

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
 a

n
n

u
a
l 

re
p

o
rt

 

w
h

ic
h

 c
a
te

g
o

ri
s
e

s
 t

h
e
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
ty

p
e

s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 s

e
v
e

n
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

, 
it
 i
s
 c

le
a
r 

to
 s

e
e

 t
h

a
t 

3
3

%
 o

f 

th
e

ir
 t

o
ta

l 
w

o
rk

 i
n

 2
0

0
7
/0

8
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 s

o
m

e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

p
o

lic
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 2

4
%

 i
n

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

. 
 

T
h

e
re

 
a
re

 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 
a
 
n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 
B

o
a
rd

 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 
w

h
o
 
fe

e
l 

th
a
t 

th
e

y
 
w

o
u

ld
 
lik

e
 
to

 
b

e
 
m

o
re

 
in

v
o

lv
e

d
 
in

 
p

o
lic

y
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

 
 

F
o

llo
w

in
g

 
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 

w
it

h
 

b
o

th
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
h

a
ir

s
 

a
n

d
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 

th
e

re
 

a
re

 
a
 

s
m

a
ll 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

in
c
o

n
s
is

te
n

c
ie

s
 i

n
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 i

n
 p

o
lic

y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

is
 v

ie
w

e
d

. 
 F

ro
m

 t
h

e
 f

e
e

d
b

a
c
k
 w

e
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 s

o
m

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
h

a
ir

s
 d

o
 f

e
e

l 
b

y
p

a
s
s
e

d
 i

n
 p

o
lic

y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

  
 S

o
m

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 h
o
w

e
v
e

r 
fe

lt
 t

h
a
t 

d
e

s
p

it
e

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 d
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 t
o

 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
u

s
e

fu
l 
a
re

a
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 p

o
lic

y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

th
a
t 

th
e

y
 w

o
u

ld
 l
ik

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 t

o
 g

e
t 

in
v
o

lv
e

d
 i

n
, 

th
is

 i
s

o
ft

e
n
 i

g
n

o
re

d
. 

 D
u

ri
n

g
 o

u
r 

re
v
ie

w
, 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 w

e
 f

o
u

n
d
 l

im
it

e
d

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
is

. 
 I

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 s
ta

te
d
 t

h
a
t 

n
o
 

ra
ti
o

n
a
le

 w
a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 a
s
 t

o
 w

h
y
 t

h
e

s
e

 a
re

a
s
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 

fe
lt
 t

o
 b

e
p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
. 
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 F

if
te

e
n

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

 n
e

e
d

 f
o
r 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

, 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

C
h

a
ir
s
 a

n
d

 O
ff

ic
e

rs
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
to

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
re

a
s
 w

h
e

re
 

th
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 c

a
n

 a
d

d
 v

a
lu

e
 t

o
 p

o
lic

y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

w
o

rk
 s

tr
e

a
m

s
. 

 W
h

e
re

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 d

e
c
id

e
 n

o
t 

to
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 w
o

rk
 

a
re

a
s
 s

u
g

g
e

s
te

d
 b

y
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 a
 b

ri
e

f 
ra

ti
o

n
a
le

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 s
o

 t
o
 p

re
v
e

n
t 

a
n

y
 m

is
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
. 
  

Page 77



2
5

©
2

0
0

9
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

1
0
  
  
P

o
li
c
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

F
ro

m
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

is
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 p

ri
o

r 
y
e
a
rs

’
w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i
t 

is
 e

v
id

e
n

t 
th

a
t 

o
n
e

 e
x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 

w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 C

u
lt

u
re

 a
n

d
 L

e
is

u
re

 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 (
a
s
 i
t 

w
a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 c
a
lle

d
) 

c
o

u
ld

 h
a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 m
o

re
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 p
o

lic
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

w
a
s
 i
n

 r
e

g
a
rd

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

to
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 o

f 
a
 S

p
o

rt
s
 T

ru
s
t.

  
T

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 d
id

 h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
id

e
n

ti
fy

 t
h

is
 a

s
 a

 p
o

te
n
ti

a
l 

a
re

a
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 a
lt

h
o

u
g

h
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s

d
e

c
id

e
d

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

ta
k
in

g
 t

h
is

 f
o

rw
a
rd

. 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
o

f 
w

h
e

re
 t

h
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
b

le
 t

o
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 p

o
lic

y
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

  
E

x
a
m

p
le

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

:

•
T

h
e

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

  
w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
c
ti
v
e

ly
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 p
o

lic
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

re
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

fo
r 

8
 –

1
3

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
; 

th
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
n

 i
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
; 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

e
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

ra
in

in
g

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 i
n

 L
e

e
d

s
 f

o
r 

1
4

 –
1

9
 

y
e
a
r 

o
ld

s
;

•
T

h
e

 C
it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 h
a
v
e

 c
o

m
m

e
n

te
d
 o

n
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

o
n

g
o

in
g

 p
la

n
s
 a

n
d

 s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 t

h
e
 

L
o

c
a
l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
; 

•
T

h
e

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 h
a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 a
n

 i
n

q
u

ir
y
 i
n

to
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 l
e

tt
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 e

x
a
m

in
e

d
 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 l
e

tt
in

g
s
 p

o
lic

y
; 

a
n

d
  

•
T

h
e

 H
e

a
lt
h

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 h
a
v
e

 r
e

c
e

n
tl
y
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
 a

n
 i
n

q
u

ir
y
 l
o

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
te

e
n

a
g

e
 p

re
g

n
a
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 s
e

x
u

a
l 
h

e
a
lt
h

.

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
’

A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 a

n
 e

x
c
e

lle
n

t 
fo

ru
m

 t
o
 h

ig
h

lig
h

t 
th

e
  

e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 h

a
v
e

 

b
e

e
n

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i

n
 p

o
lic

y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e

 e
n

h
a
n

c
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
o

th
e
r 

th
a
n

 i
n
 t

h
e
 i

n
tr

o
d

u
c
to

ry
 s

e
c
ti

o
n

 -
‘W

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e
 

B
o

a
rd

s
’

w
h

ic
h

 s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
e

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
ty

p
e

s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

, 
a
n

d
 t

h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 s

e
c
ti

o
n

 w
h

ic
h

 s
h

o
w

s
 

th
e

 a
re

a
s
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

n
e

w
 p

o
lic

y
, 

th
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g

  

re
p

o
rt

 s
e

c
ti
o

n
s
 m

a
k
e

 i
t 

d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 t

o
 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 w
h

ic
h

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 r
e

la
te

 t
o
 p

o
lic

y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
r 

re
v
ie

w
. 

 T
h

e
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

n
d

 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

is
 

lo
o

k
in

g
 

to
 

m
a
k
e

 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

to
 

th
e
 

2
0

0
8
/0

9
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

to
 

m
a
k
e

 
th

e
 

id
e

n
ti

fi
c
a
ti

o
n

 
o
f 

p
o

lic
y
 

d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

w
o
rk

 s
tr

e
a
m

s
 e

a
s
ie

r.
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 S

ix
te

e
n

T
e

m
p

la
te

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 l

a
y
o

u
t 

o
f 

th
e
 A

n
n

u
a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

to
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

h
a
ir
s
 s

o
 t

o
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 t
o
 

e
n

a
b

le
 g

re
a
te

r 
c
o

m
p

a
ra

b
ili

ty
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

e
a
c
h

 o
f 

th
e
 B

o
a
rd

s
. 

W
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 A

n
n

u
a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
 e

a
c
h

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 s
h

o
u

ld
 

c
le

a
rl

y
 c

a
te

g
o
ri
s
e
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 u
s
in

g
 a

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
s
e

ri
e

s
 o

f 
h

e
a
d

in
g

s
. 
  

Page 78



2
6

©
2

0
0

9
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

1
1

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

1
1

.1
In

tr
o

d
u

c
ti

o
n

T
h

is
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e

s
 t

h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 f

u
n

c
ti

o
n

 f
it

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 w

id
e

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 

1
1

.2
T

h
e

 r
o

le
 o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it

h
in

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y

A
t 

th
e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

w
h
e
n
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 a

re
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 (
J
u

n
e

) 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 i
s
 s

h
a
re

d
 w

it
h

 e
a
c
h

 B
o

a
rd

 t
o
 e

n
a
b

le
 t

h
is

 t
o

 s
h

a
p

e
 t

h
e

 d
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 w

o
rk

. 
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 i

s
 t

h
e

n
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 o

n
 a

 q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 b

a
s
is

 t
o
 e

n
a
b

le
 t

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 t
o
 c

h
a
lle

n
g

e
 t

h
e
 i

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 a

s
k
 q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
s
 w

h
e

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 t
o
 e

it
h

e
r 

th
e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
e

m
b

e
r,

 a
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

o
r 

th
e

 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e

s
 D

ir
e

c
to

r.
  

T
h
is

 s
h
o
u
ld

 t
h
e
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

o
m

e
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i

s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
is

 i
s
 

n
o
t 

th
e
 c

a
s
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 m
e
c
h
a
n

is
m

 t
o

 c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r.

  

C
o

n
c
e

rn
 w

a
s
 r

a
is

e
d

 b
y
 o

n
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 M
e

m
b

e
r 

th
a
t 

c
o

n
s
is

te
n
t 

p
o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
k
e

y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
(K

P
I)
 i
s
 n

o
t 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 b

y
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
re

a
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 c
a
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
 i
n

s
ig

h
t 

a
n

d
 a

d
d
 v

a
lu

e
 t

o
 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il.

  
S

o
m

e
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
, 

h
o

w
e

v
e
r 

h
a
v
e
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 g

re
a
te

r 
o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 h

e
re

 a
n

d
 n

o
t 

re
ly

 u
p

o
n

 o
th

e
rs

 t
o

 d
ir
e

c
t 

th
e

ir
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 b

u
t 

s
h

o
u

ld
 f

e
e

l 
e

m
p

o
w

e
re

d
 t

o
 p

ro
a
c
ti
v
e

ly
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 t
h

is
 t

h
e

m
s
e

lv
e

s
. 

S
o

m
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 a
ls

o
 r

a
is

e
d

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
 t

h
a
t 

w
h

ils
t 

th
e

y
a
re

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 w

it
h

 d
a
ta

 r
e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 K

P
Is

 o
n

 a
n
 e

x
c
e

p
ti
o

n
 

b
a
s
is

 t
h

e
y
 o

ft
e

n
 d

o
 n

o
t 

fu
lly

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
is

. 
S

o
m

e
 o

rg
a
n

is
a
ti
o

n
s
 a

c
tu

a
lly

 p
re

s
e

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 w

h
a
t 

th
e
 

im
p

a
c
t 

is
 o

n
 t

h
e
 o

rg
a
n

is
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
n

o
t 

a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 a

 p
a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

K
P

I,
th

is
 m

a
y
 b

e
 s

o
m

e
th

in
g

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

fo
r 

p
a
rt

ic
u

la
r

K
P

Is
 t

h
a
t 

h
a
v
e

 h
a
d

 h
is

to
ri
c
a
l 
p

o
o

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

. 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 S

e
v

e
n

te
e

n

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
m

in
d

e
d

 o
f 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 t

h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
k
e

y
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

a
n

d
 

u
s
e

 t
h

is
 t

o
 d

ir
e

c
t 

a
n

y
 a

re
a
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 a

n
n

u
a
l 
w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

Page 79



2
7

©
2

0
0

9
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

1
1

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 E

ig
h

te
e

n

W
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 k
e

y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 w

it
h

 h
is

to
ri
c
a
l 
p

o
o

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
o
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
  

th
e
 

a
c
tu

a
l 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

th
is

 p
o

o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 
 T

h
is

 m
a
y
 h

e
lp

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
re

a
s
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

c
o

u
ld

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 f

u
rt

h
e

r.
 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 g
o

o
d

 e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
o
f 

w
h

e
re

 s
o

m
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 a

re
 c

le
a
rl

y
 u

s
in

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 s

h
a
p

e
 t

h
e

ir
 

w
o

rk
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
. 

 T
h

e
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 a
re

 o
n
e

 s
u

c
h

 b
o

a
rd

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a
v
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

re
a
s
 

w
h

e
re

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 w
a
s
 n

o
t 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

 t
h

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 u

s
e

d
 t

h
is

 t
o

 r
e

q
u

e
s
t 

m
o

re
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 w
h

ic
h

 l
e

a
d

 t
o
 a

n
 

in
q

u
ir

y
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
. 

1
1

.3
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y

W
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 A

n
n

u
a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 d

e
ta

il 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 o
f 

th
e

 w
o
rk

 t
h

a
t 

is
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 b

y
 e

a
c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 s
e

v
e

n
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

B
o

a
rd

s
. 

 E
a
c
h
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 B

o
a
rd

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 b
ri
e
f 

s
u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 w

o
rk

 t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 r

a
is

e
d
 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
it
 i

s
 d

if
fi

c
u

lt
 g

iv
e

n
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
fo

rm
a
t 

o
f 

th
e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
o
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

e
 a

c
tu

a
l 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
. 

  
E

a
c
h

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 s
h

o
u

ld
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

u
s
in

g
 
a
 
c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
ta

b
le

 
o
r 

g
ra

p
h
 
to

 
c
le

a
rl

y
 
d

is
p

la
y
 
th

e
 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 
o
f 

th
e
 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 
re

c
o

rd
in

g
 
th

e
m

 
a
s
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

; 
p

a
rt

ia
lly

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
; 

w
o
rk

 
in

 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
; 

n
o

t 
a
c
c
e

p
te

d
; 

a
n

d
 
n

o
 
lo

n
g

e
r 

a
p

p
lic

a
b

le
. 

T
h

is
 
w

ill
 
e

n
s
u

re
 
th

a
t 

th
e
 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 i
s
 c

le
a
rl

y
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

a
b

le
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 2
0

0
9
/1

0
 A

n
n

u
a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

. 

Page 80



2
8

©
2

0
0

9
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

H
e
a
d

 
o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

a
n
d
 

M
e

m
b
e

r 

D
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 

S
e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2
0
0
9
 

A
g

re
e

. 
*

T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
re

v
ie

w
 

th
e
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

B
o
a
rd

 
P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 
R

u
le

s
 

G
u

id
a
n
c
e
 

N
o
te

s
 

a
n
d
 a

d
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 w

ill
:

•
B

e
 

in
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 

in
 

th
e

ir
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 

to
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g

in
g
 t

h
e

 w
a
y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

o
p
e

ra
te

s
; 

•
A

d
d

 
v
a
lu

e
 

to
 

th
e

 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

th
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
 

re
v
ie

w
s
 t

h
e
y
 d

o
; 
a
n
d

 

•
S

tr
iv

e
 

to
 

im
p

ro
v
e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n
 

c
h
a
n
n
e

ls
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t

h
e

 w
id

e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
.

1

H
e
a
d

 
o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

a
n
d
 

M
e

m
b
e

r 

D
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 

S
e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2
0
0
9
 

A
g

re
e

. 

T
h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 

re
p
o
rt

 i
s
 a

lr
e

a
d
y
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t

o
 

fu
ll 

c
o
u
n
c
il.

 

A
 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 
c
a
s
e
 
s
tu

d
ie

s
 
h
a
v
e
 

fe
a
tu

re
d

 i
n

 n
a
ti

o
n
a
l 
to

o
lk

it
s
 a

n
d
 s

tu
d

ie
s
. 

In
 

a
d
d

it
io

n
 

s
o
m

e
 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

re
v
ie

w
s
 

w
e

re
 

fe
a
tu

re
d
 
in

 
th

e
 
‘P

ic
tu

re
 
o
f 

L
e
e
d
s
’

s
e

ri
e
s
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

P
A

 i
n

 2
0
0
7
.

W
e
 w

ill
 l

o
o
k
 a

t 
s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 t

h
is

 a
s
p
e
c
t 

b
y
 
in

c
o

rp
o
ra

ti
n
g

 
s
u
c
h

 
m

e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 
in

to
 
o
u

r 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

‘c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n
s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
’.
 

*
*
*

T
h
e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u

ld
 
p
u
b
lis

h
 
a
n
d
 
d

is
tr

ib
u

te
 

lo
c
a
l 

a
n
d
 

n
a
ti

o
n
a
l 

e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 

o
f 

w
h
e

re
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 h

a
s
 a

d
d
e
d
 v

a
lu

e
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

w
it

h
in

 

th
e

 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

. 
 T

h
is

 s
h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

e
e
n

 b
y
 

fu
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

to
 
c
o
n
v
e
y
 
th

e
 
m

e
s
s
a
g
e
 
th

a
t 

b
y
 
e
n
g
a
g
in

g
 

fu
lly

 w
it
h

 S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 t

h
e

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
s
 a

 w
h
o

le
 

w
ill

 
b
e
n
e

fi
t 

th
ro

u
g
h
 

im
p

ro
v
e
d
 

p
u
b

lic
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

2

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 a

n
d

 t
im

e
s
c
a

le
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

P
ri

o
ri

ty
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n

S
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

re
s
id

u
a

l 

ri
s
k

*
*

S
o

m
e

 r
e

s
id

u
a

l 
ri

s
k

 
*

L
it

tl
e
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
ri

s
k

*
*

*

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n

Page 81



2
9

©
2

0
0

9
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

C
h

a
ir
s
/G

ro
u
p
 

W
h

ip
s
/H

e
a
d
 

o
f 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

a
n
d
 

M
e

m
b
e

r 
D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t

J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
9
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
 

A
g

re
e

. 
 

T
h

is
 

w
ill

 
fi

rs
t 

ta
k
e

 
p

la
c
e

 
a
t 

th
e

 
J
u

n
e
 

m
e
e

ti
n
g
, 
b
u

t 
G

ro
u
p
 w

h
ip

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
m

in
d
e
d
 

v
ia

 t
h
e
 p

u
b

lic
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p
o
rt

. 

W
e
 a

c
c
e
p
t 

th
a
t 

w
h
ils

t 
p
a
rt

y
 p

o
lit

ic
s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 

b
e
 l
e

ft
 a

t 
th

e
 d

o
o
r,

 M
e

m
b
e
rs

 w
ill

 r
ig

h
tl

y
 b

e
 

in
fl

u
e
n
c
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e

ir
 p

o
lit

ic
a
l 

v
ie

w
s
 b

u
t 

 w
ill

  

m
a
k
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti

o
n
s
 

b
a
s
e
d
 

o
n
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
.

*
*

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

M
e
m

b
e

rs
 

s
h
o
u

ld
 

b
e
 

re
m

in
d
e
d
 

th
a
t 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

B
o

a
rd

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

a
re

 
n
o
t 

a
 

fo
ru

m
 t

o
 v

o
ic

e
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
p
o
lit

ic
a
l 
v
ie

w
s
.

5

H
e
a
d
 

o
f 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

a
n
d
 

M
e

m
b
e

r 
D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t

J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
9
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
 

A
g

re
e

.

T
h
e
 

d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

v
is

io
n
 
fo

r 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 (

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti

o
n
 7

) 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

 g
o
o
d
 

to
o

l 
to

 d
e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

is
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
fu

rt
h
e

r.

T
h
e
 ‘

M
e

m
o

ra
n
d
u
m

 o
f 

U
n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d
in

g
’

w
ill

 

b
e
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
e
d
 a

n
d

 r
e
-c

ir
c
u

la
te

d
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

.

*
*
*

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u

ld
 r

a
is

e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 

th
e
 

‘M
e

m
o

ra
n
d
u
m

 o
f 

U
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

B
o
a
rd

 
a
n
d
 

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 
a
n
d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
’

a
n
d
 

s
h
o
u

ld
 

 
e
n
c
o
u

ra
g
e

 
fu

rt
h
e

r 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

b
e

tw
e
e
n
 t

h
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

h
a
ir

s
, 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

 M
e

m
b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

. 
 O

n
 a

n
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
b
a
s
is

 t
h

is
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 

w
it
h

in
 

th
e
 

M
e
m

b
e

rs
 

in
d
u
c
ti

o
n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

3

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

C
h
a
ir

s
/H

e
a
d
 

o
f 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

a
n
d
 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

D
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t

J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
9
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
 

A
g

re
e

.

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

B
o
a
rd

s
 

w
ill

 
b
e
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 

to
 

fo
c
u
s
 

o
n

 
s
in

g
le

 
it
e
m

 
a
g
e
n
d
a
s
 

w
h
e

re
v
e
r 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 w
h
e
n

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 

th
e

ir
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
.

*
*

S
in

g
le

 i
te

m
 a

g
e
n
d
a
s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 i

n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 

fo
r 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

B
o
a
rd

 
m

e
e

ti
n
g
s
 

to
 

im
p

ro
v
e
 

th
e

ir
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
.

4

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 a

n
d

 
ti

m
e

s
c
a

le
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

P
ri

o
ri

ty
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n

S
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

re
s
id

u
a

l 

ri
s
k

*
*

S
o

m
e

 r
e

s
id

u
a

l 
ri

s
k

 
*

L
it

tl
e
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
ri

s
k

*
*

*

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n

Page 82



3
0

©
2

0
0

9
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

H
e

a
d

 
o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

a
n

d
 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
9

 o
n

w
a
rd

s
 

A
g

re
e

.

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 
w

ill
 

b
e

 
re

m
in

d
e

d
 

o
f 

th
e

s
e

 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

o
n

 
a
n
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 

b
a
s
is

 
a
t 

th
e
 

s
ta

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 m

u
n
ic

ip
a
l 

y
e

a
r,

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

o
n

 a
n

 o
n

g
o

in
g

 b
a
s
is

. 

*
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 

b
e
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 t

o
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 w

e
b
 b

a
s
e
d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 f

o
ru

m
s
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
 

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

n
e

tw
o

rk
 

o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
 

to
 

d
ra

w
 u

p
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
t 

w
ill

 
e

n
a
b

le
 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

h
o

ri
zo

n
 s

c
a
n

n
in

g
 o

f 
e
m

e
rg

in
g

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 

to
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
.

8

H
e

a
d

 
o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

a
n

d
 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t/

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 

L
e

a
d

e
rs

/S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

h
a
ir
s
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
0

9
 

A
g

re
e

.

W
e

 w
o

u
ld

 s
u

g
g

e
s
t 

th
a
t 

th
e

 C
fP

S
fi
v
e

 

p
ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 

o
f 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

a
re

 
u

s
e

d
 

a
s
 

a
 

s
ta

rt
in

g
 p

o
in

t.
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 r
e

q
u

ir
e
 s

ig
n

 u
p
 

b
y
 
th

e
 
L

e
a
d

e
rs

 
a
n

d
 
s
h

o
u

ld
 
in

v
o

lv
e

 
a
 

w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
. 

*
T

h
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 

a
s
c
e

rt
a
in

 
w

h
a
t 

th
e

ir
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

v
is

io
n

 i
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
, 

fo
rm

a
lly

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

th
is

 a
n

d
 

th
e

n
 

p
u

b
lic

is
e

 
it

, 
p

o
te

n
ti

a
lly

 
w

it
h

in
 

th
e
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

B
o

a
rd

 
P

ro
c
e

d
u

re
 

R
u

le
 

G
u

id
a
n

c
e
 N

o
te

s
. 

7

H
e

a
d

 
o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

a
n

d
 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
9

 

A
g

re
e

.

T
h

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

 f
o
rm

a
l 

It
e
m

 o
n
 t

h
e
 J

u
n

e
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 a

g
e

n
d

a
s
. 

*
*

E
a
c
h

 
o

f 
th

e
 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 
B

o
a
rd

s
 
s
h

o
u

ld
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
 

m
o
re

 
fo

rm
a
lly

 
w

h
e
th

e
r 

c
o
-

o
p

te
d

 M
e
m

b
e

rs
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 i

n
v
it

e
d

 t
o
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 B

o
a
rd

 s
o

 t
o

 a
llo

w
 

th
e

m
 

to
 

d
ra

w
 

fr
o
m

 
th

e
 

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 
o

f 

th
e

ir
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t.

 

6

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 a

n
d

 
ti

m
e

s
c
a

le
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

P
ri

o
ri

ty
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n

S
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

re
s
id

u
a

l 

ri
s
k

*
*

S
o

m
e

 r
e

s
id

u
a

l 
ri

s
k

 
*

L
it

tl
e
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
ri

s
k

*
*

*

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 (

C
o

n
t.

)

Page 83



3
1

©
2

0
0

9
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

H
e

a
d

 
o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

a
n

d
 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
0

9

P
o

lit
ic

a
l 
G

ro
u

p
s

W
e

 
s
h

a
ll 

b
e

 
in

tr
o

d
u

c
in

g
 

‘j
o

b
 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
’

a
s
 

p
a
rt

 
o

f 
o

u
r 

b
id

 
to

 

a
c
h

ie
v
e
 

‘C
h
a
rt

e
rP

lu
s
’

fo
r 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

W
h

ils
t 

th
e
 
c
o

m
p

e
te

n
c
ie

s
 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 
fo

r 

th
e

 r
o

le
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

p
o

lit
ic

a
l 

g
ro

u
p

s
, 

 
th

e
 
g
ro

u
p

s
 
n

e
e

d
 
to

 

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e
 r

o
le

 

w
it

h
in

 
th

e
 

c
o

n
te

x
t 

o
f 

 
n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

p
a
rt

y
 

ru
le

s
.

*
*

T
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
in

g
 

a
 

‘j
o

b
 

s
p

e
c
if

ic
a
ti

o
n

’

o
u

tl
in

in
g

 
th

e
 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 
c
o

m
p

e
te

n
c
ie

s
 

o
f 

a
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
h

a
ir

. 
 

E
a
c
h

 
p

o
lit

ic
a
l 

g
ro

u
p
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 

th
e

n
 

s
e

le
c
t 

th
e
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a
ls

 
w

h
o
 

b
e
s
t 

m
e

e
t 

th
is

 

s
p

e
c
if

ic
a
ti

o
n

 
a
n

d
 

th
is

 
s
h

o
u

ld
 

b
e

 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 

b
y
 

th
e
 

L
e

a
d

e
r 

o
f 

e
a
c
h

 

g
ro

u
p

.

1
0

H
e

a
d

 
o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

a
n

d
 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t/

 

G
ro

u
p

 W
h

ip
s

O
n

g
o

in
g

A
g

re
e

.

W
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 d

o
 t

h
is

 t
o
 p

o
lit

ic
a
l 
g

ro
u

p
s
. 

*
*

R
e

g
u

la
r 

re
p
o

rt
s
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 

b
e
 

m
a
d

e
 

to
 

th
e
 

p
o

lit
ic

a
l 

p
a
rt

ie
s
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
ti

n
g

 
th

e
 

a
tt

e
n

d
a
n

c
e

 
ra

te
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

ir
 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
. 
 

W
h

e
re

 a
tt

e
n

d
a
n

c
e

 r
a
te

s
 f

a
ll 

b
e

lo
w

 a
n

 

a
c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

 l
e

v
e

l 
th

e
n

 i
t 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 t

h
e

 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 
o

f 
e

a
c
h

 
p

o
lit

ic
a
l 

g
ro

u
p

  

to
 t

a
k
e

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 

th
is

. 
 

 
A

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e

ly
 

th
e

 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 
o
n

 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

B
o

a
rd

s
 

c
o
u

ld
 

b
e

 
re

d
u

c
e

d
 

if
 

th
e

re
 

a
re

 
to

o
 

m
a
n

y
 

c
o

m
p

e
ti

n
g

 
d

e
m

a
n

d
s
 

o
n

 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
’

ti
m

e
. 

9

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 a

n
d

 
ti

m
e

s
c
a

le
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

P
ri

o
ri

ty
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n

S
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

re
s
id

u
a

l 

ri
s
k

*
*

S
o

m
e

 r
e

s
id

u
a

l 
ri

s
k

 
*

L
it

tl
e
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
ri

s
k

*
*

*

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 (

C
o

n
t.

)

Page 84



3
2

©
2

0
0

9
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

H
e
a
d
 

o
f 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

a
n
d
 

M
e

m
b
e

r 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n
t/

H
e
a
d
 

o
f 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

S
e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2
0
0
9
 

A
g

re
e

.

W
e
 

w
ill

 
w

o
rk

 
w

it
h
 

c
o
lle

a
g
u
e
s
 

in
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

to
 

e
n
s
u
re

 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

a
re

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

th
e
 s

ta
g
e
s
 

a
n
d

 
ti

m
e

s
c
a
le

s
 

in
v
o

lv
e
d

 
in

 
th

e
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
-

m
a
k
in

g
 
p

ro
c
e
s
s
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 
in

 
re

la
ti
o
n
 
to

 

th
e
 c

a
ll-

in
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
.

*
T
h
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 U
n

it
 s

h
o
u

ld
 r

e
m

in
d
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

n
e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
d
h
e

re
d
 t

o
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 C

a
ll 

In
s
.

1
3

H
e
a
d
 

o
f 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

a
n
d
 

M
e

m
b
e

r 
D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t/
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

h
a
ir

s

J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
9
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
 

A
g

re
e

.

W
e

 b
e

lie
v
e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

re
 i

s
 s

c
o
p
e
 t

o
 i

m
p

ro
v
e
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

u
s
e
 o

f 
p
re

-m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 

*
*

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

p
re

-m
e
e

ti
n
g
s
 

s
h
o
u

ld
 

b
e
 

m
o

re
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 u

s
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
y
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

 f
o

ru
m

 

to
 
p
ro

v
id

e
 
re

a
l 

fo
c
u
s
 
in

 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 
o
f 

th
e
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 m

e
e
ti

n
g
.

1
2

H
e
a
d
 

o
f 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

a
n
d
 

M
e

m
b
e

r 
D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t

O
n
g
o

in
g
 

A
g

re
e

.

A
ll 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 
B

o
a
rd

s
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
s
ta

n
d
in

g
 
it
e
m

 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
ir
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

a
n
d
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 

th
e
 

F
o
rw

a
rd

 
P

la
n
 

a
n
d
 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

 m
in

u
te

s
 t

o
 a

s
s
is

t 
th

e
m

 i
n
 

a
n
y
 r

e
p

ri
o

ri
ti

s
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

o
rk

. 
T
h

is
 i
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
d
 

b
y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 c

o
n
s
ti

tu
ti

o
n

.

A
ll 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 a

ls
o

 h
a
v
e
 t

h
e
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 t

o
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
 

in
 

g
e
n
e
ra

l 
d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 

w
it
h

 
th

e
 

a
p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 

M
e

m
b
e

r 
a
n
d
 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
a
b
o
u

t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 i

s
s
u
e
s
. 

 W
e
 w

o
u
ld

 

n
o

t 
e
n
v
is

a
g
e

 t
h

is
 b

e
in

g
 a

 s
ta

n
d

in
g

 i
te

m
 b

u
t 

a
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 w

h
e
n
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 

*
A

ll 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e

 ‘
re

a
l 
ti

m
e
 

m
o
n

it
o

ri
n
g

’
a
s
 a

 s
ta

n
d

in
g
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 i
te

m
.

1
1

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 a

n
d

 
ti

m
e

s
c
a

le
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

P
ri

o
ri

ty
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n

S
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

re
s
id

u
a

l 

ri
s
k

*
*

S
o

m
e

 r
e

s
id

u
a

l 
ri

s
k

 
*

L
it

tl
e
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
ri

s
k

*
*

*

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 (

C
o

n
t.

)

Page 85



3
3

©
2

0
0

9
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

H
e

a
d

 
o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

a
n

d
 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
9

 o
n

w
a
rd

s
 

A
g

re
e

.

T
h

e
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

is
 w

ill
 d

e
p

e
n

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

re
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 

b
e
tw

e
e

n
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

a
n

d
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 M
e

m
b
e

rs
. 

 T
h

e
 w

o
rk

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

s
e

tt
in

g
 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

 
in

 
J
u

n
e
 

w
ill

 b
e
 c

ru
c
ia

l 
fo

r 
th

is
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 s
u
c
c
e

s
s
.

T
h

e
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

B
o

a
rd

 
P

ro
c
e

d
u

re
 

R
u

le
s
 

a
lr

e
a
d

y
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 t

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 

e
x
p

la
n

a
ti
o
n

 
w

h
e
re

 
it
 

tu
rn

s
 

d
o
w

n
 

a
 

s
u

g
g

e
s
ti

o
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

. 

*
*

T
h

e
re

 
is

 
a
 

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

 
n

e
e

d
 

fo
r 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
, 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 
B

o
a
rd

 

C
h

a
ir
s
 a

n
d
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

to
 
id

e
n

ti
fy

 
a
re

a
s
 
w

h
e

re
 
th

e
 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

B
o

a
rd

s
 

c
a
n

 
a
d

d
 

v
a
lu

e
 

to
 

p
o

lic
y
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

w
o
rk

 
s
tr

e
a
m

s
. 

 
W

h
e

re
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

B
o

a
rd

s
 

d
e

c
id

e
 

n
o

t 
to

 

u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e

 
w

o
rk

 
a
re

a
s
 
s
u

g
g

e
s
te

d
 
b

y
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 
a
 
b

ri
e

f 
ra

ti
o

n
a
le

 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 s
o

 t
o

 p
re

v
e

n
t 

a
n

y
 

m
is

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

s
 a

ri
s
in

g
.

1
5

H
e

a
d

 
o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

a
n

d
 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

M
a
y
 2

0
1

0
 

A
g

re
e

. 
 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 i

n
tr

o
d

u
c
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

.

T
h

e
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 o

f 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 w

ill
 

re
la

te
 

m
a
in

ly
 

to
 

th
o
s
e
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 

m
a
d

e
 

th
e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 

y
e

a
r.

 
 

W
e

 
w

ill
 

u
s
e

 
o

u
r 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 

tr
a
c
k
in

g
 

s
y
s
te

m
 

to
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
is

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

.

*
*

W
it

h
in

 
th

e
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

a
n

n
u

a
l 

re
p

o
rt

 

e
a
c
h

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

B
o

a
rd

 
s
h

o
u

ld
 

c
le

a
rl

y
 

o
u

tl
in

e
 

th
e

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 
o

f 
th

e
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 

m
a
d

e
. 

In
 
a
d

d
it

io
n
 

e
a
c
h

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

 s
h

o
u

ld
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

u
s
in

g
 
a
 
c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
ta

b
le

 
o
r 

g
ra

p
h
 
to

 

c
le

a
rl

y
 

d
is

p
la

y
 

th
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
ir
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

re
c
o

rd
in

g
 

th
e

m
 

a
s
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

; 

p
a
rt

ia
lly

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
; 

w
o
rk

 
in

 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
; 

n
o
t 

a
c
c
e

p
te

d
; 
a
n

d
 n

o
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

a
p

p
lic

a
b

le
.

1
4

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 a

n
d

 
ti

m
e

s
c
a

le
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

P
ri

o
ri

ty
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n

S
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

re
s
id

u
a

l 

ri
s
k

*
*

S
o

m
e

 r
e

s
id

u
a

l 
ri

s
k

 
*

L
it

tl
e
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
ri

s
k

*
*

*

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 (

C
o

n
t.

)

Page 86



3
4

©
2

0
0

9
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 l
o

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 a

 S
w

is
s
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

H
e

a
d

 
o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

a
n

d
 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

H
e

a
d

 
o

f 
P

o
lic

y
, 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 

a
n

d
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
0

9
 

A
g

re
e

.

T
h

is
 

w
ill

 
b

e
 

fe
d
 

in
to

 
th

e
 

q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

re
p

o
rt

s
 

re
c
e

iv
e

d
 b

y
 a

ll 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 

*
*

W
h

e
re

 
th

e
re

 
a
re

 
k
e

y
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 

in
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

w
it

h
 

h
is

to
ri

c
a
l 

p
o

o
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 

re
p

o
rt

 t
o
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
  

th
e

 a
c
tu

a
l 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

th
is

 
p

o
o

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 
o

n
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

d
e

liv
e

ry
. 

 
T

h
is

 
m

a
y
 

h
e

lp
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 
a
re

a
s
 

w
h

e
re

 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

c
o

u
ld

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a
rd

s
 f

u
rt

h
e
r.

 

1
8

H
e

a
d

 
o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

a
n

d
 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

M
a
y
 2

0
0
9
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
 

A
g

re
e

. 
 

A
 

tr
a
in

in
g

 
s
e

s
s
io

n
, 

fa
c
ili

ta
te

d
 

b
y
 

th
e
 

C
e

n
tr

e
 

fo
r 

P
u

b
lic

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

w
ill

 
ta

k
e

 

p
la

c
e

 
in

 
J
u

n
e

 
a
n

d
 

th
e

 
m

e
s
s
a
g

e
s
 

re
in

fo
rc

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

*
*

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

B
o

a
rd

 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 
s
h

o
u

ld
 
b

e
 

re
m

in
d
e
d
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 t

h
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

o
f 

k
e
y
 

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
 

th
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
e
 
y
e

a
r 

a
n

d
 
u

s
e
 
th

is
 
to

 

d
ir
e

c
t 

a
n

y
 
a
re

a
 
o
f 

th
e

ir
 
a
n

n
u

a
l 

w
o

rk
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

1
7

H
e

a
d

 
o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

a
n

d
 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

M
a
y
 2

0
1

0
 

A
g

re
e

.

T
h

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 i

n
tr

o
d

u
c
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

.

T
h

e
 

u
s
e

 
o

f 
c
a
te

g
o

ri
e

s
 

o
f 

w
o

rk
 

h
a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 a

n
n

u
a
l 

re
p

o
rt

 

*
*

T
e

m
p

la
te

s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 

la
y
o

u
t 

o
f 

th
e

 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
o

 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
h
a
ir
s
 

s
o
 

to
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 

th
e
 

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

c
y
 

a
n

d
 

to
 

e
n

a
b

le
 

g
re

a
te

r 

c
o

m
p

a
ra

b
ili

ty
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n
 

th
e

 
w

o
rk

 
o

f 

e
a
c
h

 
o

f 
th

e
 

B
o

a
rd

s
. 

W
it

h
in

 
th

e
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

e
a
c
h

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

B
o

a
rd

 

s
h

o
u

ld
 

c
le

a
rl
y
 

c
a
te

g
o

ri
s
e

 
th

e
 

w
o

rk
 

u
s
in

g
 a

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
s
e

ri
e

s
 o

f 
h

e
a
d

in
g

s
.

1
6

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 a

n
d

 
ti

m
e

s
c
a

le
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

P
ri

o
ri

ty
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n

S
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

re
s
id

u
a

l 

ri
s
k

*
*

S
o

m
e

 r
e

s
id

u
a

l 
ri

s
k

 
*

L
it

tl
e
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
ri

s
k

*
*

*

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 (

C
o

n
t.

)

Page 87



Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board:  Scrutiny Board (Health) 
 
Date:    30 June 2009 
 
Subject:  Leeds Local Involvement Network (LINk) – Annual Report (2008/09) 
 

        
 
 
1.0 Purpose of the report 
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Scrutiny Board (Health) with the 2008/09 
Annual Report of Leeds Local Involvement Network (LINk).  This will be the first 
annual report produced by Leeds LINk.  

 
1.2 In presenting the LINk’s Annual Report (2008/09), it is intended that this will: 
 

• Continue to raise awareness of the role and work of Leeds’ LINk (both publicly 
and among members of the Scrutiny Board (Health)); 

• Provide members with more detail of what Leeds’ LINk has done during its 
first year, alongside any future plans; and, 

• Provide an opportunity for a general discussion between the Scrutiny Board 
(Health) and representative members of Leeds’ LINk , including any work 
programme issues. 

 
2.0 Background 
 

2.1 The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 gave a duty to all 
150 local authorities in England with social services responsibilities, to enable the 
formation of a Local Involvement Network (LINk).  

 
2.2 The LINk will act as the successor to the Patient and Public Involvement Forums, 

but with an extended remit covering social care.  Run by local people and groups, 
the role of a LINk is to promote involvement; to find out what people like and dislike 
about local services; monitor the care provided by services; and use LINk powers to 
hold services to account.  In summary, this will be achieved by: 

 

• Asking local people what they think about local health and social care 
services, and providing a chance to suggest ideas to help improve services; 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Steven Courtney 
 
Tel: 247 4707 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

Agenda Item 11

Page 89



• Investigating specific issues of concern to the community; 

• Using powers to hold providers and commissioners to account and get results; 

• Asking for information and get an answer in a specified amount of time; 

• Using authorised representatives to ‘enter and view’ premises to see if 
services are working well; 

• Making reports and recommendations and receive a response; 
 

2.3 Under the provisions of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 
2007, the LINk also has the right to refer both health and social care matters to the 
relevant Scrutiny Board.  In turn, this places responsibility on the appropriate 
Scrutiny Board to acknowledge any such referrals and keep the LINk informed 
about what actions, if any, will be taken 

 

3.0 Leeds’ Local Involvement Network (LINk) 
 

3.1 Locally, in August 2008, the Shaw Trust was appointed as the host organisation to 
support the work of the Leeds’ LINk.  Since that time it has been working with the 
LINk Preparatory Group to get a wide range of people and organisations involved in 
the LINk.  In addition, an Interim Steering Group (the membership of which was 
drawn from the LINk Preparatory Group) was established to act as a provisional 
decision-making body, pending the establishment of a formal steering group (the 
‘core group’) following appropriate elections. 

 

3.2 The LINk was formally launched on 9 June 2009.  Immediately after the launch, the 
election process to establish the ‘core group’ commenced.  Following nominations, 
the actual election period will take place during July 2009, with the announcement of 
the ‘core group’ expected in early August 2009. Until that time the Interim Steering 
Group will continue to act as the decision-making body. 
 

Annual Report 
 

3.3 LINks are accountable to the public and to the Secretary of State for Health.  As 
such,  every year all LINks are required to publish an annual report, which will also 
be sent to the Care Quality Commission, to relevant Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees (Scrutiny Boards),  Primary Care Trusts (NHS Leeds) and the Strategic 
Health Authority (NHS Yorkshire and the Humber).   

 

3.4 The Annual Report (2008/09) for the Leeds’ LINk, covering the period 1 April 2008 
to 31 March 2009, is currently being prepared and will be agreed by the Interim 
Steering Group. The deadline for the completion of the  Annual Report (2008/09) is 
30 June 2009.  A copy of the  Annual Report (2008/09) is attached at Appendix 1 (to 
follow).   

 

3.5 Representatives from Leeds’ LINk (the Interim Steering Group) have been invited to 
attend the meeting to both present the Annual Report and discuss any pertinent 
issues with the Scrutiny Board (Health). 

 

4.0 Recommendation  
 

4.1 Members of the Scrutiny Board (Health) are asked to consider Leeds’ LINk’s 
2008/09 Annual Report and the discussion at the meeting, and: 

• Determine any matters that will inform the Board’s future work programme;  

• Identify any issues that may impact/ influence the Board’s longer term 
relationship with Leeds’ LINk. 

 

5.0 Background Papers 
 

Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 

Page 90



 
 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board:  Scrutiny Board (Health) 
 
Date:    30 June 2009 
 
Subject:  Determining the Work Programme 2009/10  
 

        
 
 
1.0      Purpose of Report  

 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to help the Scrutiny Board determine its priorities and 
work programme for 2009/10.  

 
2.0 Introduction 
 
2.1 Through a number of the previous agenda items, the Scrutiny Board has been 

provided with a range of information and inputs from key stakeholders that should 
help identify the Board’s priorities and develop its work programme for 2009/10.   

 
Health Scrutiny Protocol 
 

2.2 In order to successfully deliver the Scrutiny Board’s work programme, the 
relationship between the Board and the NHS bodies across the City will be key. To 
help maintain this relationship it is essential that guidance exists to help provide a 
common understanding on how Health Scrutiny will operate in Leeds and provide a 
framework for the scope and style of Scrutiny in the City. Such a protocol will help to 
ensure that scrutiny remains a positive and challenging process for all parties 
concerned.   

 
2.3 A protocol was previously developed and agreed by the Scrutiny Board in April 

2003, shortly after the health scrutiny duty became a requirement.  While the 
fundamentals for health scrutiny remain, there have been a number of 
developments, both nationally and locally, since 2006 that need to be reflected in a 
revised protocol.  In this regard, a draft revised protocol is attached at  Appendix 1 
for the Board’s consideration and agreement. 

 
 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Steven Courtney 
 

Tel: 247 4707 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

Agenda Item 12

Page 91



2.4 Subject to any identified and agreed amendments, the Board is asked to consider 
and agree the attached draft Protocol between the Scrutiny Board (Health) and NHS 
bodies in Leeds (Updated June 2009).      
 
Health Proposals Working Group 

 

2.5 Current legislation places a duty local NHS bodies to make arrangements to involve 
and consult patients and the public in planning service provision, the development 
of proposals for changes, and decisions about changes to the operation of services.   

 
2.6 The requirement to consult on service changes and/or developments, includes a 

duty to consult the Health Scrutiny Board where the NHS body is considering any 
proposals relating to substantial changes and/or development of local health 
services.   

 
2.7 In recent years, to help the Scrutiny Board maintain a focus on changes and/or 

developments of local health services, while maintaining the Board’s capacity to 
undertaken detailed inquiries, the Scrutiny Board has established a Health 
Proposals Working Group to: 

 

• Consider, at an early stage, any future proposals for service changes and/or 
developments of local health services, including: 
o Whether or not the relevant Trust’s plans for patient and public engagement 

and involvement seem satisfactory1; and, 
o Whether the proposal is in the interests of the local health service. 

 

• Maintain on overview and on-going involvement in current service change 
proposals and associated  patient and public engagement and involvement 
activity, including details of any stakeholder feedback and how this is being 
used to shape the proposals. 

 

• Refer any matters of significant concern to the Health Scrutiny Board for 
consideration. 

 

2.8 Within these arrangements it has always been recognised that the statutory duty to 
consider substantial changes and/ or development of local health services remains 
the responsibility of the Health Scrutiny Board itself.  

 
2.9 As such, and in line with practice from previous years, revised  draft terms of 

reference for a Health Proposals Working Group is attached at Appendix 2 for the 
Board’s consideration. 

 
2.10 In considering the attached revised  draft terms of reference, Members’ attention is 

drawn to the following proposed activity of the Health Proposals Working Group: 
 

• Review the implementation of any agreed service change and/or development, 
including any subsequent service user feedback. 

 
2.11 This addition seeks to further develop the role of the Working Group, not only to 

oversee proposed changes and the associated levels of patient and public 
engagement, but also to consider the implementation of agreed changes, to help 
ensure the anticipated improvements are delivered. 

 

                                                
1
  This early engagement with Scrutiny will allow the Working Group to discuss and agree the proposed degree 
of variation, prior to the commencement of any patient and public engagement and involvement activity 

Page 92



2.12 The Board is asked to consider establishing a Health Proposals Working Group in 
line with the attached draft terms of reference (subject to any identified and agreed 
amendments) and determine the membership of the working group (if appropriate).      

 
Work Programme 

 

2.13 Having considered the range of written information presented and discussed 
relevant issues with those present at the meeting, the Board is now asked to 
consider formulating a draft work programme.  

 
2.14 In formulating its work programme the Scrutiny Board shall consider and determine; 

 

• how the proposed inquiry meets criteria approved from time to time by the 
Scrutiny Advisor Group (Appendix 3) 

• whether the programme can be adequately resourced and timetabled 
(Appendix 4) 

 
2.15 In addition, Executive Board minutes from 13 May 2009 and 17 June 2009 are 

attached for the information.  These might usefully inform the development of the 
Board’s work programme. 

 
3.0 Recommendations 
 
3.1 Members are requested to: 
 

3.1.1 Consider, amend as necessary, and agree the draft Protocol between the 
Scrutiny Board (Health) and NHS bodies in Leeds (Updated June 2009); 

 
3.1.2 Establish a Health Proposals Working Group in line with the attached draft 

terms of reference (subject to any identified and agreed amendments) and, if 
appropriate,  determine the membership of the working group; 

 
3.1.3 Determine the Board’s priorities and agree an outline work programme for 

2009/10. 
 
4.0 Background Papers 
 

Council’s Constitution  - Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules 
Protocol between the Scrutiny Board (Health) and NHS bodies in Leeds (agreed 
April 2003) 
 
 
 

Page 93



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Scrutiny Board (Health) 

 
 

 
Protocol between the Scrutiny Board (Health)  

and NHS Bodies in Leeds 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Updated: June 2009 
  

Page 95



 

2 

Purpose 
 

The purpose of this protocol is to provide guidance and a common understanding on 
how Health Scrutiny will operate in Leeds and provide a framework for the scope and 
style of Scrutiny in the City.   In so doing the aim for all parties is to help ensure that 
Scrutiny remains a positive and challenging process. 
 
Background 
 

The overview and scrutiny function was established through the Local Government 
Act 2000, which introduced new models of governance and decision-making 
arrangements for local authorities in England and Wales.  In these arrangements, the 
overall role of the overview and scrutiny function is  to hold the Executive Board to 
account for its decisions and to contribute to evidence-based policy development in 
the Council. 
 
The Health and Social Care Act 2001 first introduced the concept of Local Authority 
scrutiny of health and required: 
 

• NHS bodies to consult health local authorities about proposed substantial 
variations to or substantial developments of health services within their areas; 
and, 

 

• those local authorities with social services responsibilities to establish an 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to respond to consultations by local NHS 
bodies on proposed substantial variations to or developments of services. 

 
Building on the powers to promote community well-being contained in the Local 
Government Act 2000, the Health and Social Care Act 2001 provides explicit powers 
for local authorities to scrutinise health services within their areas as part of their 
wider role in reducing health inequalities.   Currently, the Health Scrutiny Board has 
been designated to act as Leeds City Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
responsible for undertaking the health scrutiny role 
 
To assist with the planning and development of effective overview and scrutiny of 
health and health services, the Department of Health published its guidance 
‘Overview and Scrutiny of Health – guidance’ in July 2003.  This guidance is 
available from the Department of Health’s website.  It should be noted that the 
Department of Health is currently undertaking a review of its guidance to reflect 
identified good practice and developments and changes to the legislation. 
 
Scrutiny Boards (general) 
 

The overall role and function of scrutiny is to hold decision-makers to account and 
secure improvements in local practice for local people via a contribution to policy 
development and review.  As such, Scrutiny Boards do not have decision-making 
powers.   
 
Scrutiny Boards will comprise of Elected Members selected to represent the political 
balance of the local authority.  These Members will be the only members of the 
Board with voting rights and will be selected to serve for a period of 12 months.  The 
membership of the Board will seek to avoid conflicts of interest and where potential 
for this exists interests of those Members will be declared and subject to the 
Council’s procedures on these matters1. 
 

                                            
1
 Leeds City Council Constitution - Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules Section 2 

Page 96



 

3 

Scrutiny Boards may seek nominations from other representative groups to act as 
co-opted members of the Board.  These nominations may be for the duration of a 
municipal year and/or on an inquiry by inquiry basis, as set out in the Scrutiny Board 
Procedure Rules, Leeds City Council Constitution. 
 
Support arrangements 
 
The Scrutiny Support Unit  is the primary source of support for, and co-ordination of, 
the work of the Council’s Scrutiny Boards.  In summary, the role of the Scrutiny 
Support Unit is to: 
 

• Provide a research and intelligence function to individual Scrutiny Boards 
(each of which has been allocated a different area of specialism) 

• Manage programmes of Inquiries for each of the Scrutiny Boards  

• Manage the presentation of witnesses, research and reports to Scrutiny 
Boards  and/or carrying out research and reports “in house” as appropriate 

• Assist Scrutiny Boards to prepare reports of their Inquiries and steering 
recommendations through the Council’s decision making arrangements  

• Lead the continuing development of the Overview and Scrutiny function 

 
HEALTH SCRUTINY IN LEEDS 
 
Overview 
 

Scope 
 
Health scrutiny in Leeds covers all aspects of health and health related services 
provided to the population of Leeds; this includes the planning, provision and 
operation of services2 commissioned and provided by NHS bodies and the local 
authority in Leeds.  The primary aims of the health scrutiny function are to identify 
whether: 

 

• health services reflect the views and aspirations of local communities; 

• all sections of local communities have equal access to services; 

• all sections of local communities have an equal chance of a successful 
outcome from services; and, 

• any proposals for substantial service changes are reasonable. 
 
NHS Trusts 
 
The Scrutiny Board will not manage the performance of NHS Trusts in the City, or 
provide another form of inspection.  Such functions will be undertaken by other 
external bodies such as, the Commission for Quality Care,  the Strategic Health 
Authority, the National Institute for Clinical Excellence and the Commission for Health 
Improvement.  However, it should be recognised that performance data will often 
usefully inform Scrutiny inquiries and support the work of the Scrutiny Board in 
considering the delivery of the objectives of the Local Area Agreement (LAA).   
 

Health Scrutiny will be distinctive in being undertaken by lay, elected representatives 
and focussed on improving health and well being across Leeds. 
 
 

                                            
2
  This includes all internally and externally provided services that contribute to the overall health and 
well-being of the residents and working population of Leeds 

Page 97



 

4 

 
Local Involvement Network 
 

The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 gave a duty to all 
150 local authorities in England with social services responsibilities, to enable the 
formation of a Local Involvement Network (LINk).   
 

LINks will act as the successor to local Patient and Public Involvement Forums 
(PPIF) but with an extended remit covering social care, and have been established to 
give communities a stronger voice in how their health and social care services are 
delivered.   
 

Regulations that established the health scrutiny function3 state that Scrutiny Boards  
should take account of all relevant information available.   Under provisions in the 
Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, this now includes 
information identified and provided by the LINk.  As such, the relationship between 
the LINk and the Council’s Scrutiny Boards will be key.   
 

An important power of the LINk is the ability to refer relevant matters to the 
appropriate Scrutiny Board4. In turn, this places responsibility on the appropriate 
Scrutiny Board to acknowledge any such referrals and keep the LINk informed about 
the progress of any agreed actions.  The process for dealing with such referrals is set 
out in a separate guidance note5. 
 
A separate guidance note is currently being produced that will set out a common 
understanding for how the Health Scrutiny Board will work with Leeds LINk.  This will 
provide a framework for the scope and style of this relationship.  In broad terms, the 
Health Scrutiny Board will not seek to duplicate the advocacy role of the LINk and, 
wherever possible, will seek to avoid any unnecessary duplication within its work 
programme. 
 
Work programme  
 

Although some matters may arise at short notice the Health Scrutiny Board will 
publish a forward work programme.  The work programme will be considered and, 
where necessary, revised on a monthly basis.  It will subsequently be widely circulate 
to all key stakeholders.     
 
Where the production of a specific report is requested and/or necessary for a 
particular Scrutiny Board meeting, then sufficient notice will be given for the 
preparation of that documentation. 
 
Information to be supplied to the Board 
 

The work of the Health Scrutiny Board will involve a combination of maintaining an 
overview of local health issues, including developing awareness of what health 
bodies are doing, and undertaking in-depth inquiries. 
 

To support the work of the Scrutiny Board, it is likely that members of the Board will 
require a range of information from NHS bodies, including:  
 

• minutes and reports from Trust Board meetings open to the Public; 

                                            
3
  The Local Authority (Overview and Scrutiny Committees Health Scrutiny Functions) Regulations, 
 2002, HMSO 
4
  As set out in the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 and the Local 
Involvement Networks Regulations 2008 

5
  Scrutiny Guidance Note: Requests for Scrutiny, Including Councillor Call for Action (CCfA), Local 
Crime and Disorder Matters, and Health and Social Care Matters. 

Page 98



 

5 

• advance notification of proposals for substantial development or 
reconfiguration6 of local services;  

• notification of current and/or planned service monitoring and review activity 
within Trusts across the City;  

• information of sufficient detail to enable the Board to discharge its scrutiny role 
and function. 

  
Where confidential information has been requested by the Health Scrutiny Board in 
connection with their inquiries it is incumbent upon NHS bodies to take all reasonable 
steps to anonymise this information.  Where this is not possible the public must be 
excluded from the meeting whilst the Scrutiny Board considers the confidential 
information provided.   
 
NHS Officers  
 

It is acknowledged that NHS officers are responsible to a range of bodies.  These 
include NHS Trust Boards, the Strategic Health Authority, the Department of Health 
and the emerging local involvement network (LINk).    
 

As an integral and essential method for publicly holding local NHS bodies to account,  
representatives of NHS bodies will answer questions openly and honestly and 
provide all information that will assist the Scrutiny Board in its consideration of 
specific matters, including scrutiny inquiries. 
 
The Director of Public Health (DPH) 
 

The DPH role is one of advocacy and leadership that integrates the three domains of 
health protection, health improvement and health and social care quality.  The DPH 
has responsibility for producing an independent Annual Report on the health of the 
local population and is charged with working with primary care and local communities 
to develop their public health capacity and capability. 
 

To assist the Health Scrutiny Board discharge its role and function, the Directors of 
Public Health is likely to be a key source of information and is likely to be requested 
to assist the Scrutiny Board in matters under investigation – both in general terms 
and where the Scrutiny Board is undertaking a particular inquiry.  In cases relating to 
specific inquires, this input will usually be outlined in Terms of Reference for an 
inquiry.  In all cases, notification of any input will be given well in advance. 
 
Attending Scrutiny Board Meetings 
 
Prior to Scrutiny Board meetings 
 

Prior to Board meeting, the Chair receives a briefing from the Scrutiny Support Unit 
on items to appear on the forthcoming agenda.  On occasion NHS officers may be 
requested to attend this or a separate session to enable the Chair of the Scrutiny 
Board to be briefed ahead of the Scrutiny meeting. 
 
Scrutiny Board meetings 
 

Scrutiny Board meetings are usually held monthly in a committee room in the Civic 
Hall.  However, from time to time meetings will be arranged at different venues – 
often dictated by the nature of the inquiries taking place.  
 

Where attendance at a Scrutiny Board meeting is required, a reasonable notice 
period will be provided for NHS bodies to respond.   This period will be at least 15 
working days notice of the meeting at which attendance is being requested.  Where 

                                            
6
  Further guidance on the definition of Substantial is provided within this protocol 

Page 99



 

6 

attendance will require the production of a report then sufficient notice will be given 
for the preparation of that documentation. 
 

Where the Health Scrutiny Board requests a response from a local NHS body to 
whom it has made a report or recommendation, that body will respond to the Board in 
writing within 28 days of the request. 
 

For all Scrutiny Board meetings the Scrutiny Support Unit will endeavour to give 
approximate times for when items are likely to be discussed.  However, as items may 
over run, there may be a short waiting time. 
 
Conduct at Scrutiny Board meetings 
 

A separate Member/Officer protocol 7 has been agreed by the City Council.  This will 
be used as the basis for the conduct of Scrutiny Board Members in their dealings 
with officers from NHS bodies. 
 
Conduct of Scrutiny Board Inquiries 
 
The role of Terms of Reference  
 

The majority of Scrutiny Inquiries have agreed terms of reference.  These identify the 
subject areas members of the Board wish to pursue and are used to inform 
departments of the Council and NHS bodies of the emphasis of a particular inquiry.    
 

Officers in the Scrutiny Support Unit will liaise with relevant officers of the Council 
and NHS bodies during the preparation of Terms of Reference to ensure that the 
focus of the inquiry is relevant and the timing of it appropriate. 
 

Draft Terms of Reference are usually presented to the Scrutiny Board via a written 
report.   This will provide a basis for discussion between officers and the Scrutiny 
Board.  The Scrutiny Support Unit will advise on the particular information required.  
 
Gathering Evidence 
 

The evidence to be gathered will be outlined in the Inquiry’s Terms of Reference.  
This material may be considered at full Scrutiny Board meetings, which are open to 
the public, and/or by a small working group of Scrutiny Board, tasked with 
undertaking a specific evidence gathering task.  In the latter case Board Members 
will report their findings to an appropriate full meeting of the Health Scrutiny Board. 
 

The Scrutiny Support Unit will endeavour to give guidance on what will be asked and 
sometimes possible question areas will be passed on to allow some time for 
preparation before the meeting.  However, Members may follow a related line of 
discussion and ask other questions on the day. 
 
Preparation of Reports 
 

At the conclusion of an inquiry,  where considered appropriate, the Scrutiny Board 
will produce a preliminary report.  This will be drafted by the Scrutiny Support Unit in 
conjunction with the Scrutiny Board Chair and agreed by the Board.  This report will 
provide a summary of the evidence submitted, along with the Scrutiny Board’s 
conclusions and recommendations.  Where the Health Scrutiny Board  is considering 
making recommendations to the Council and/or an NHS body, it will invite advice 
from a relevant Chief Officer prior to finalising its report and recommendations.  
 
 

                                            
7
 Leeds City Council Constitution - Section 5 

Page 100



 

7 

Publication of Report Findings 
 

Once it has completed an inquiry, the Health Scrutiny Board may make reports and 
recommendations to the Board of the NHS bodies scrutinised and/or relevant 
decision-makers with the City Council.  Any reports made will also be copied to: 
 

• All witnesses/ organisation that supplied information to the Scrutiny Board 
during the inquiry 

• The appropriate member(s) of the Council’s Executive Board  

• Leeds Director of Public Health 

• Local MPs and MEPs 

• The Strategic Health Authority (Yorkshire and the Humber) 

• Leeds Local Involvement Network (LINk) 

• Local voluntary organisations and/ or other organisations that have expressed 
an interest in the issues dealt with in the report. 

• A copy of the report should also be placed in local libraries, on local authority 
and Strategic Health Authority websites and made available to other local 
networks so as to be widely available to members of the public. 

 
Response to Reports 
 

Where the Health Scrutiny Board has sent a report to an NHS body, the NHS body 
concerned will be required to send its response to the Board within 28 days. The 
reply should set out the general views of the NHS body on the recommendations, 
alongside any proposed action or reasons for inaction in response to each specific 
recommendation made. The NHS response should also be copied to: 
 

• All witnesses/ organisation that supplied information to the Scrutiny Board 
during the inquiry 

• The appropriate member(s) of the Council’s Executive Board  

• Leeds Director of Public Health 

• Local MPs and MEPs 

• The Strategic Health Authority (Yorkshire and the Humber) 

• Leeds Local Involvement Network (LINk) 

• Local voluntary organisations and/ or other organisations that have expressed 
an interest in the issues dealt with in the report. 

• A copy of the report should also be placed in local libraries, on local authority 
and Strategic Health Authority websites and made available to other local 
networks so as to be widely available to members of the public. 

 
Consultation with the Scrutiny Board (Health) by NHS Bodies in Leeds 
 
The Health and Social Care Act (2001), subsequently reinforced by the NHS Act 
2006 and the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act (2007), places 
a duty  local on NHS Trusts, Primary Care Trusts and Strategic Health Authorities to 
make arrangements to involve and consult patients and the public in planning service 
provision, in the development of proposals for changes, and in decisions about 
changes to the operation of services.   
 
The requirement to consult on service changes and/or developments, includes a duty 
to consult the Health Scrutiny Board where the NHS Body has under consideration 
any proposal for: 
 

• a substantial development of the health service; or, 

• a substantial variation in the provision of such a service in the local authority 
area. 

Page 101



 

8 

 

However, levels of service variation and/or development are not defined in legislation 
and it is widely acknowledged that the term ‘substantial variation or development of 
health services’ is subjective, with proposals often open to interpretation.  To assist 
all parties concerned, the following locally developed definitions and examples of 
service change/ development have been agreed:   
 

• Category 1 – ongoing improvement (e.g. proposals to extend or reduce 
opening hours) 

• Category 2 – minor change (e.g. change of location within same hospital site) 

• Category 3 – significant change (e.g. changing provider of existing services) 

• Category 4 – substantial variation (e.g. introduction of a new service) 
 
In seeking to determine whether a development or variation is substantial, the NHS 
body concerned and the Health Scrutiny Board  will have regard to issues such as 
(but not limited to): 

 

• the number of people likely to be affected,  

• whether changes in the accessibility of services will result; and, 

• whether changes in the deployment of the workforce will be necessary. 
 
In addition, any substantial variations or developments of local health care services 
need to be in the best interests of the local health service and the people it serves, 
and any consultation with stakeholders needs to be adequate prior to any final 
decision being made.  Where the Health Scrutiny Board has concerns regarding any 
agreed substantial service changes / developments,  there is provision within current 
legislation for the Health Scrutiny Board to refer matters to  the Secretary of State for 
Health. 
 
Any such referral must be relating to a substantial service change and/or 
development and should be seen as an action of last resort.  The Health Scrutiny 
Board can refer matters to  the Secretary of State for Health where the Scrutiny 
Board: 
 

• Is concerned that consultation on substantial variations/ developments has 
been inadequate; and/or,  

• Considers that any proposal is not in the interests of the local health service. 
   
 

Page 102



 
APPENDIX 2 

 
SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH)  

 

HEALTH PROPOSALS WORKING GROUP 
 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
1.0 Background 
 

1.1 The Health and Social Care Act (2001), subsequently reinforced and amended by 
the NHS Act (2006) and the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 
(2007), places a duty  local on NHS Trusts, Primary Care Trusts and Strategic 
Health Authorities to make arrangements to involve and consult patients and the 
public in: 
 

• Planning service provision; 

• The development of proposals for changes; and,  

• Decisions about changes to the operation of services. 
 

1.2 The requirement to consult on service changes and/or developments, also includes 
a duty to consult the Health Scrutiny Board where the NHS Body has under 
consideration any proposal for: 
 

• a substantial development of the health service; or, 

• a substantial variation in the provision of such a service in the local authorities 
area. 

 

2.0 Scope 
 

2.1 The levels of service variation and/or development are not defined in legislation and 
it is widely acknowledged that the term ‘substantial variation or development of 
health services’ is subjective, with proposals often open to interpretation.   

 
2.2 To assist Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees, and to help achieve some 

degree of consistency, the Centre for Public Scrutiny (CfPS) published a scrutiny 
guide, Substantial Variations and Developments of Health Services1.  Based on this 
guidance, and through discussions between NHS Leeds and the Health Scrutiny 
Board,  the following locally developed definitions and examples of service change/ 
development have been agreed and  are summarised in Table 1 (below).   

 

Table 1: Summary of levels of change 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                            
1
 Published in December 2005 and available from the publications section of the CfPS website: http://www.cfps.org.uk/  

Degree of variation 
Colour 
code 

Contact with 
Scrutiny 

Category 4 – substantial variation 
(e.g. introduction of a new service) 

Red Consult 

Category 3 – significant change 
(e.g. changing provider of existing services) 

Orange Engage 

Category 2 – minor change 
(e.g. change of location within same hospital site) 

Yellow Inform 

Category 1 – ongoing improvement 
(e.g. proposals to extend or reduce opening hours) 

Green No 

Page 103



 
 
 
 
2.3 The definitions of reconfiguration proposals and stages of engagement/consultation 

are detailed in Appendix 1.   
 
 

2.4 The overall purpose of the Working Group is to provide an environment that allow 
local NHS bodies to have an on-going dialogue with Scrutiny, regarding changes 
and development of local health services.  Therefore, the role of the working group 
can be summarised as follows: 

 

• Considering, at an early stage, any future proposals for service changes and/or 
developments of local health services, including: 
o Whether or not the relevant Trust’s plans for patient and public engagement 
and involvement seem satisfactory2; and, 

o Whether the proposal is in the interests of the local health service. 
 

• Maintaining on overview and on-going involvement in current service change 
proposals and associated  patient and public engagement and involvement 
activity, including details of any stakeholder feedback and how this is being 
used to shape the proposals. 

 

• Reviewing the implementation of any agreed service change and/or 
development, including any subsequent service user feedback. 

 

• Referring any matters of significant concern to the Health Scrutiny Board, for 
consideration. 

 
2.5 It should be recognised that the statutory duty to consider substantial changes 

remains the responsibility of the Health Scrutiny Board itself.  As such, any 
substantial changes and/or variations identified will automatically be referred to the 
Health Scrutiny Board for consideration.   

 
2.6 Where a substantial change and/or development is identified, the view of the 

Working Group on the relevant Trust’s plans for patient and public engagement and 
involvement, and on whether the proposal is in the interests of the local health 
service will usefully inform the deliberation of the Health Scrutiny Board when 
considering such matters.  

 
3.0 Frequency of meetings 
 

3.1 It is initially proposed that the Working Group will routinely meet as follows: 
 

• July 

• September 

• December 

• March 
 

3.2 However, due to the nature of the work and the potential timing of proposed service 
changes and/or developments, it is recognised that the Working Group will adopt a 
flexible approach to meeting dates and, as such, may choose to meet outside this 
timetable.   

 
 

                                            
2
  This early engagement with Scrutiny will allow the Working Group to discuss and agree the proposed degree of 
variation, prior to the commencement of any patient and public engagement and involvement activity 

Page 104



 
 
 
 
4.0 Membership 
 
4.1 The membership of the Health Proposals Working Group for the duration of the 

current municipal year (2009/10) is as follows (TBC):  
 

• To be confirmed 
 
 
 
5.0 Key stakeholders  
 
5.1 The following key stakeholders have been identified as likely contributors to the 

Working Group: 
 

• Leeds Primary Care Trust (PCT) 

• Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust (LTHP) 

• Leeds Partnership Foundation Trust (LPFT) 

• Director of Adult Social Services 
 
6.0 Monitoring arrangements  
 
6.1 The full Health Scrutiny Board will be kept appraised of the activity of the Working 

Group and regular updates, including report from the Working Group, will be 
provided. 

 
 
June 2009 
 

Page 105



APPENDIX 1 
 

 

Definitions of reconfiguration proposals and stages of engagement/consultation 

Stages of involvement, engagement, consultation 
Definition & examples 
of potential proposals  

Informal Involvement Engagement Formal consultation 

 

Substantial variation 
or development 
Major service 
reconfiguration – 
changing how/where 
and when large scale 
services are delivered.  
Examples: urgent care, 
community health centre 
services, introduction of 
a new service, arms 
length/move to CFT 

   Category 4 
Formal 
consultation 
required 
(minimum twelve 
weeks) 
 

(RED) 

Significant variation 
or development  
Change in demand for 
specific services or 
modernisation of 
service.  Examples: 
changing provider of 
existing services, 
pathway redesign when 
the service could be 
needed by wide range of 
people 

  Category 3 
Formal 
mechanisms 
established to 
ensure that 
patients/service 
users/ carers and 
the public are 
engaged in 
planning and 
decision making 
 

(ORANGE) 

 

Minor change  
Need for modernisation 
of service.  Examples: 
Review of Health 
Visiting and District 
Nursing (Moving 
Forward Project), patient 
diaries 

 Category 2 
More formalised 
structures in 
place to ensure 
that patients/ 
service users/ 
carers and 
patient groups 
views on the 
issue and 
potential 
solutions are 
sought 
 

(YELLOW) 

  

Ongoing 
development  
Proposals made as a 
result of routine 
patient/service user 
feedback.  Examples: 
proposal to extend or 
reduce opening hours  

 

Category 1 
Informal 
discussions with 
individual patients/ 
service users/ 
carers and patient 
groups on 
potential need for 
changes to 
services and 
solutions 
 

(GREEN) 

   

 
Note: based on guidance within the Centre for Public Scrutiny Substantial variations and developments of health services, a guide 

O
S
C
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 

O
S
C
 m
a
y
 b
e
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 

Information 
& evidence 
base 

Information 
& evidence 
base 

Information 
& evidence 
base 

Page 106



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 17th June, 2009 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY, 13TH MAY, 2009 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor A Carter in the Chair 

 Councillors R Brett, J L Carter, R Finnigan, 
S Golton, R Harker, P Harrand, J Procter, 
S Smith and K Wakefield  
 
Councillor J Blake – Advisory Member 

 
 

254 Exclusion of the Public  
RESOLVED – That the public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the agenda designated exempt on the 
grounds that it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted 
or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public were present 
there would be disclosure to them of exempt information so designated as 
follows: 
 
(a) Appendix 1 to the report referred to in minute 258 under the terms of 

Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the grounds that 
the appendix provides a brief overview of the anticipated costs and 
identified funding associated with the proposed acquisition.  It is 
considered not to be in the public interest to disclose this information at 
this point in time as it could undermine the Council’s position in 
negotiating with the building owner. The release of this information 
could also prejudice the Council’s interests in relation to this or other 
similar transactions in that the land owner of this or other similar 
properties would have information about the nature and level of 
consideration which may prove acceptable to the Council.  It is 
considered that whilst there may be a public interest in disclosure, 
much of this information will be publicly available from the  Land 
Registry following completion of any transaction and consequently the 
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information at this point in time. 

 
(b) Appendices 1, 2 and 4 of the report referred to in minute 261 under the 

terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the 
grounds that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs 
the public interest in disclosing the information by reason of the fact 
that:- 

 
(i) Appendices 1 and 2 – The success of the scheme could 

potentially be prejudiced by speculative investors acquiring 
properties in advance of the Council’s action; 

(ii) Appendix 4 – The costs attributed to the purchase of private 
properties are purely estimates at this stage and their disclosure 

Page 107



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 17th June, 2009 

 

could prejudice the Council’s ability to reach an agreement on 
the purchase price with owners. 

 
255 Declaration of Interests  

Councillor Smith declared a personal and prejudicial interest in the item 
relating to the Health and Wellbeing Partnership Plan 2009-2012 (minute 266 
refers) due to his position as a Director of a Health and Wellbeing Centre. 
 
Councillor Blake declared a personal interest in the item relating to the Health 
and Wellbeing Partnership Plan 2009-2012 (minute 266 refers) due to being a 
member of Leeds NHS Primary Care Trust. 
 

256 Minutes  
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 1st April 2009 be 
approved. 
 
DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 
 

257 Football World Cup 2018  
The Director of City Development submitted a report advising of the invitation 
received from the English Football Association for the City of Leeds to bid to 
become a ‘host city’ for the football World Cup 2018. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That Leeds investigate the submission of a Leeds City Region bid to 

become a host city for the Football World Cup 2018; 
(b) That the governance structure proposed in the submitted report be 

approved; 
(c) That the proposed Leeds City Region representatives for the Host City 

Briefing to be held in London on 18th May 2009 be noted; 
(d) That a report be brought back to this Board as soon as the likely 

human and financial resource implications of the project are known; 
(e) That dialogue with the City Region partners be opened at the earliest 

opportunity. 
 

258 West Leeds Gateway Site - 2 Branch Road  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on an in 
principle proposal that Compulsory Purchase powers be used to achieve the 
acquisition of 2 Branch Road, Armley subject to a further report being brought 
to the Board for final approval. 
 
Following consideration of appendix 1 to the report designated as exempt 
under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) which was considered in 
private at the conclusion of the meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED – That the contents of the report be noted and that in principle 
approval be given to the use of Compulsory Purchase powers to achieve the 
acquisition of 2 Branch Road, should this be necessary, subject to a further 
report to this Board seeking full approval. 
 

Page 108



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 17th June, 2009 

 

259 Response to the City Development Scrutiny Board's Inquiry into the 
A660 Corridor Transport Issues  
The Director of City Development submitted a report in response to the 
recommendations from the recent Scrutiny Board (City Development) inquiry 
concerning A660 Corridor Transport Issues. 
 
RESOLVED – That the proposed responses to the Scrutiny Board’s 
recommendations, as contained in the report, be approved. 
 
NEIGHBOURHOODS AND HOUSING 
 

260 Response to the Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships) Inquiry 
into the role of the voluntary, community and faith sectors in Council led 
community engagement  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report in 
response to the recommendations from the Scrutiny Board (City and Regional 
Partnerships) with regard to the role of the voluntary, community and faith 
sectors in Council led community engagement. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships) 
inquiry report into the role of the voluntary, community and faith sectors in 
Council led community engagement be referred to Scrutiny Board (Children’s 
Services) and Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care) for consideration, with a 
further report being submitted to Executive Board in due course. 
 

261 Regeneration of the Garnets,  Beeston  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on 
options for the regeneration of the Garnets area and on the proposed 
commencement of acquisition and clearance of 112 properties within the 
Garnets by utilising £3,000,000 of confirmed funding during 2009/11. 
 
The report presented and appraised the options of: 
 
(a) doing the minimum to meet legal conformity; 
(b) undertaking group repair and internal remodelling; 
(c) property acquisition and redevelopment of the site. 
 
Following consideration of appendices 1, 2 and 4 to the report, designated as 
exempt under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) which were 
considered in private at the conclusion of the meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That scheme expenditure to the amount of £3,000,000 be authorised. 
(b) That the option of acquisition and site redevelopment be progressed. 
(c) That a further report be brought to this Board when further funding is 

made available through successful bids for the residual £1,300,000 of 
funding. 

(d) That the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods and Director of 
City Development authorise and promote any Compulsory Purchase 
Orders which may become necessary. 

Page 109



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 17th June, 2009 

 

 
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor Wakefield 
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on this decision) 
 

262 Update on Council Rents - 2009/10  
Further to minute 236 of the meeting held on 1st April 2009, the Director of 
Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report providing an update on 
the rent changes for 2009/10, and the cost implications for this change. 
 
RESOLVED – That the contents of the report be noted together with the 
change in the 2009/10 average rent increase for Council dwellings from 6.2% 
to 3.1%. 
 
CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
 

263 School Calendar 2010 - 2011  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report on the process of 
setting the school calendar in Leeds, providing an update on the consultation 
process and proposing one option for the approval of the Board. 
 
The three options which had been the subject of the consultation were: 
 
Option 1: The Easter bank holiday weekend falls at the end of the two-week 
school break.  This option coincided with the recommendations of the Local 
Government Association. 
 
Option 2:  The Easter bank holiday weekend falls in the middle of the two 
week school break.  Schools would not return to school until the day after May 
Day bank holiday, reducing the number of split weeks in school.  However, 
the term would not be split equally resulting in a very short first half term after 
Easter. 
 
Option 3: Schools have a separate Easter bank holiday weekend. They would 
experience three four-day weeks due to the occurrence of the May Day bank 
holiday the week after Easter Monday. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the extensive consultation undertaken to consider the implications 

for the 2010/11 school calendar in Leeds be noted. 
(b) That the school calendar dates associated with option 3, and as 

detailed in annex 3 to the report, be approved. 
(c) That subject to (d) below, the proposal for a fixed break between terms 

2 and 3, irrespective of when Easter falls, with a corresponding 
adjustment to the summer vacation which ensures a two week 
Christmas break, be approved in principle; 

(d) That following the conclusion of the 2010/11 academic year, a report 
be submitted to the Board reviewing the success of the implementation 
of the school calendar schedule as detailed at option 3. 

 
 

Page 110



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 17th June, 2009 

 

264 The Achievement of Looked After Children  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report outlining the 
achievement of Looked After Children in Leeds and on strategies for the 
improvement of outcomes. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the main findings of the report and its conclusions be noted. 
(b) That a further update report be brought to this Board in Autumn 2009. 
 
LEISURE 
 

265 Leisure Centre Refurbishment and Free Swimming Capital 
Modernisation  
The Director of City Development submitted a report on proposals for the 
DCMS Free Swimming Capital Modernisation Programme, refurbishment of 
changing rooms at Scott Hall Leisure Centre, installation of sound and light 
systems in the pool halls at Scott Hall, John Smeaton and Pudsey Leisure 
Centres and the extension of the Bodyline Gym at Scott Hall. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That approval be given to the injection of £572,300 into the Capital 

Programme consisting of DCMS Free Swimming Capital Modernisation 
Programme pot 4 (£410,000), Prudential Borrowing (£30,000) and 
Leeds City Council budgets (totalling £132,300). 

(b) That authority be given to spend in the following amounts: 
 - £512,300 on the refurbishment of the changing rooms at Scott Hall 

Leisure Centre 
 - £90,000 on the installation of sound and light systems in the pool 

halls at Scott Hall, John Smeaton and Pudsey Leisure Centres, thus 
achieving the criteria set by DCMS for the award of this funding 

 - £30,000 on the extension of the Bodyline Gym at Scott Hall Leisure 
Centre through Prudential Borrowing 

 
ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE 
 

266 Health and Wellbeing Partnership Plan 2009 to 2012  
The Director of Adult Social Services and Director of Public Health submitted 
a joint report presenting the final draft of the Leeds Health and Wellbeing 
Partnership Plan 2009 to 2012 for comment and agreement that it be 
submitted to Council for approval as part of the Budget and Policy  
Framework. 
 
RESOLVED – That the final draft of the Health and Wellbeing Partnership 
Plan be agreed for submission to Council for approval. 
 
(Having declared a personal and prejudicial interest in relation to this item due 
to being a Director of a Health and Wellbeing Centre, Councillor Smith 
withdrew from the meeting room during the consideration of this item) 
 
 

Page 111



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 17th June, 2009 

 

267 Carers' Strategy for Leeds 2009-2012: 'Every Carer Counts'  
The Director of Adult Social Services submitted a report on the content of the 
Leeds Carers Strategy 2009-2012 and presenting the strategy for approval for 
its publication and dissemination. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Carers’ Strategy for Leeds 2009-2012 ‘Every Carer 
Counts’, as appended to the report, be approved for implementation, subject 
to an addition which reflects the Board’s comments concerning the provision 
of advice and guidance available to carers in Leeds.  
 
CENTRAL AND CORPORATE 
 

268 Response to the Central and Corporate Functions Scrutiny Board 
Inquiry into Member Development  
The Chief Democratic Services Officer submitted a report in response to the 
recent Scrutiny Board (Central and Corporate Functions) Inquiry into Member 
Development. 
 
RESOLVED – That the proposed responses to the Scrutiny Board’s 
recommendations, as contained within the report, be approved. 
 

269 Response to the Central and Corporate Functions Scrutiny Board 
Inquiry into Attendance Management  
The Director of Resources submitted a report in response to the recent 
Scrutiny Board (Central and Corporate  Functions) Inquiry into attendance 
management. 
 
RESOLVED – That the proposed responses to the Scrutiny Board’s 
recommendations, as contained within the report, be approved. 
 

270 Response to the Central and Corporate Functions Scrutiny Board 
Inquiry into Procurement of Services  
The Chief Procurement Officer submitted a report in response to the recent 
Scrutiny Board (Central and Corporate Functions) Inquiry into the 
Procurement of Services. 
 
RESOLVED – That the proposed responses to the Scrutiny Board’s 
recommendations, as contained within the report, be approved. 
 

271 Councillor Blake and Councillor Smith  
Councillors Blake and Smith were both thanked for their services to the 
Board, as it was noted that this would be the last meeting in which both would 
be in attendance as Executive Board members. 
 
 
 
DATE OF PUBLICATION:  15TH MAY 2009 
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN: 22ND MAY 2009 (5.00 PM) 
 

Page 112



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 17th June, 2009 

 

(Scrutiny Support will notify Directors of any items called in by 12.00 noon on 
26th May 2009) 
 
 

Page 113



Page 114

This page is intentionally left blank



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY, 17TH JUNE, 2009 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor R Brett in the Chair 

 Councillors A Carter, J L Carter, 
R Finnigan, S Golton, R Harker, P Harrand, 
K Wakefield and J Monaghan 

 
   Councillor R Lewis – Non-Voting Advisory Member 
 
 

1 Chair's Announcement  
In opening the meeting the Chair welcomed Councillor Monaghan to his first 
meeting as a member of the Board and Councillor R Lewis to his first meeting 
in his new role. 
 

2 Exclusion of the Public  
RESOLVED – That the public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the agenda designated exempt on the 
grounds that it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted 
or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public were present 
there would be disclosure to them of exempt information so designated as 
follows: 
 
(a) Appendices 1 and 2 to the report referred to in minute 5 under the 

terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(2) and on the 
grounds that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs 
the public interest in disclosing the information by reason of the fact 
that 

 
(i) Appendix 1 identifies each property address that it is proposed 

be leased to LHC and as such could be used to identify the 
supported tenants who already live at those addresses 

(ii) Appendix 2 identifies each property address that it is proposed 
to be leased to GIPSIL and as such could be used to identify the 
supported tenants who already live at those addresses. 

 
(b) Appendix 2 to the report referred to in minute 16 under the terms of 

Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the grounds that 
it contains detailed sensitive information about the financial position of 
the Council and it is considered that the public interest in maintaining 
confidentiality outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information 
because release of this information at this time could prejudice the 
ongoing negotiations with the vendor. 

 
(c) Appendix 1 to the report referred to in minute 7 under the terms of 

Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the grounds that 
the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 

Page 115



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

interest in disclosing the information because it refers to the Invitation 
To Qualify document which sets down the minimum requirements of 
FIFA which host cities must meet, England 2018 advises that the 
contents of the Invitation To Quality must not be made public and that 
Applicant Host Cities in breach of this condition may be disqualified 
from the Host City bidding competition, accordingly some of the 
information provided for Members is contained in the exempt section of 
this report on the basis that disclosure could prejudice the  outcome of 
the bid and the commercial interests of the Council. 

 
(d) Appendix A to the report referred to in minute 10 under the terms of 

Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the grounds that 
it is considered not to be in the public interest to disclose this 
information at this point in time as it could undermine the Council’s 
position in negotiating with the building owner, the release of this 
information could also prejudice the Council’s interests in relation to 
this or other similar transactions in that the land owner of this or other 
similar properties would obtain information about the nature and level 
of consideration which may prove acceptable to the Council. It is 
considered that whilst there may be a public interest in disclosure, 
much of this information will be publicly available from the Land 
Registry following completion of any transaction and consequently the 
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing this information at this point in time. 

 
3 Declaration of Interests  

Councillor Wakefield declared a personal interest in the item relating to the 
Outline Business Case for the West Leeds Academy as a governor of Leeds 
City College. 
 

4 Minutes  
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 13th May 2009 be 
approved. 
 
NEIGHBOURHOODS AND HOUSING 
 

5 Lease at Less Than Best Consideration - Agreement to Lease 28 
Miscellaneous Properties to GIPSIL and Leeds Housing Concern on a 25 
Year Lease Agreement  
The Director of Neighbourhoods and Environment submitted a report on a 
proposal to grant a long lease at less than best consideration for 28 Council 
owned miscellaneous properties to GIPSIL and LHC, for the purpose of 
refurbishment and improvement for accommodation for vulnerable tenants. 
 
The report presented the option of the Council retaining the properties with 
the only alternative of open market disposal in the absence of funding to 
renovate them. 
 

Page 116



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

Following consideration of appendices 1 and 2 to the report designated as 
exempt under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(2) which were 
considered in private at the end of the meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED – That the 28 properties listed in appendices 1 and 2 to the 
report be leased to GIPSIL and Leeds Housing Concern, at a peppercorn rent 
for a 25 year period at less than best consideration and that authority be given 
for formal negotiations to complete the leasing arrangements. 
 

6 Area Committee Roles for 2009/2010  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report outlining 
the proposed delegated Area Functions and other roles for the ten Area 
Committees during 2009/10. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the Area Functions and Well Being Function be delegated to Area 

Committees for 2009/10 as summarised in the submitted report. 
(b) That the enhanced roles of Area Committees as summarised in the 

report and the newly defined roles as detailed in Appendix 1 be 
endorsed. 

(c) That this information be reported to the Area Committees at the next 
cycle of meetings. 

(d) That the Area Functions referred to be incorporated into the Council’s 
Constitution at the next available opportunity. 

(e) That a report be brought to a future meeting of the Board with regard to 
the issue of advertising on lampposts. 

 
DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 
 

7 Football World Cup 2018  
The Director of City Development submitted a report providing an update on 
the new information received from the Football Association and seeking 
approval from the Board to take forward the bid response. 
 
Following consideration of appendix 1 to the report designated as exempt 
under the terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and 
considered in private at the conclusion of the meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the additional information provided by England 2018 in relation to 

the Host City bidding process be noted. 
(b) That a bid from Leeds be formulated on the basis that the City wishes 

to be selected as a Host City for World Cup 2018. 
(c) That all necessary steps be taken to publicise the Leeds bid and to 

seek support from the community for the bid, in particular by 
encouraging all those in favour to register their support on the England 
2018 website. 

(d) That the Director of Resources identify an appropriate revenue budget 
to facilitate the delivery of the Leeds bid document by the end of 
October 2009. 

Page 117



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

(e) That the Chief Executive commence dialogue with City Region partners 
to establish how they wish to be involved in the Leeds bid. 

(f) That, in view of the fact that the deadline for submission of the (draft) 
Outline Bid will not allow for the submission of a further report to this 
Board, the Chief Executive be authorised, in consultation with the 
Leader of the Council, to approve the submission. 

 
8 Planning Appeals at Royds Lane, Rothwell and Fleet Lane, Oulton  

The Director of City Development submitted a report on the outcome of recent 
planning appeals on greenfield sites at Royds Lane, Rothwell and Fleet Lane, 
Oulton, and the implications, if any, for the Council’s approach to greenfield 
developments. 
 
The report presented the following options:-  

(a) accepting the need for greenfield release recognising a deficit in the 
5 year housing land supply; and  

(b) concluding that greenfield release, in the circumstances outlined 
within the report, would be inappropriate. 

 
RESOLVED – That option (b), as detailed within paragraph 8.11 of the 
submitted report and as detailed above, be approved. 
 

9 South Leeds Regeneration Area Governance Arrangements  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods and the Director of City 
Development submitted a joint report outlining a proposal to establish a 
governance framework for an informal partnership covering the regeneration 
of a large area of South Leeds. 
 
In presenting the report, Councillor A Carter reported receipt of a message 
from the Chair of Renew on the day of this meeting and undertook to address 
the comments made in that message. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the opportunities for regeneration and investment in South Leeds 

and the findings outlined in the work already undertaken be noted. 
(b) That the establishment of appropriate governance arrangements in 

order to co-ordinate the Steering Group be approved. 
(c) That officers be authorised to establish the Management/Investors’ 

Group, Partnership Engagement Group with MPCL and other 
interested private sector organisations. 

(d) That the joint working with MPCL and the production of an Investment 
Strategy for South Leeds be supported. 

(e) That the Executive Member for Regeneration and Development be 
appointed as Chair of the Steering Group and that the Member 
Management Committee be requested to appoint four further political 
representatives from the South Leeds Area to the Steering Group. 

 
 
 
 

Page 118



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

10 47-57 Chapel Hill, Morley: Acquisition, Demolition and Development  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report outlining 
the proposed scheme design and related expenditure for the acquisition of 47-
57 Chapel Hill, Morley and 1-8 Bank Court, Bank Street, Morley. 
 
Following consideration of Appendix A to the report designated as exempt 
under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) which was considered at 
the conclusion of the meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the project brief and scheme design as presented be approved 

and that the Asset Management Board be authorised to approve the 
final detailed design of Phase 2. 

(b) That authority be given to spend the amount referred to in exempt 
Appendix A to the report and that the Director of Resources be 
authorised to approve expenditure of the balance remaining shown in 
exempt Appendix A in the Town and District Regeneration Scheme 
12154/MOR/000. 

 
CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
 

11 Playbuilder Initiative  
The Director of Children’s Services submitted a report on the Playbuilder 
Project and the intended programme to build or significantly refurbish twenty 
two playgrounds or informal play spaces across the City. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That approval be given for the injection of £1,145,914 into the Capital 

Programme (capital scheme no: 15390) fully funded by DCSF grant. 
(b) That authority to spend be given in respect of the sixteen play sites 

identified in appendix 2 to the report. 
(c) That approval be given to the Play Partnership recommendation to 

seek working solutions for the development of the remaining six sites 
with partners in the Council. 

(d) That a further report be brought to the Board recommending the 
location and provider of the remaining six sites. 

 
12 Proposal to Add Specialist Community Provision at Whitkirk Primary 

School for Pupils with Complex Physical Difficulties and Medical Needs  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report on a proposal to 
establish specialist community provision at Whitkirk Primary School for pupils 
with complex physical difficulties and medical needs. 
 
RESOLVED – That approval be given for consultation on a proposal to make 
a prescribed alteration to Whitkirk Primary School so as to establish a 
resourced base for primary age children with complex physical needs. 
 
 
 
 

Page 119



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

13 Submission of the Outline Business Case for Leeds West Academy  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report on the Outline 
Business Case for Leeds West Academy as part of the Council’s Wave 1 
Building Schools for the Future Programme and on associated expenditure. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That approval be given to the Outline Business Case for Leeds West 

Academy of the Council’s Wave 1 Building Schools for the Future 
Programme and authority be given for its submission to the 
Department for Children, Schools and Families and to Partnerships for 
Schools. 

(b) That approval be given to the injection of additional expenditure of 
£17,018,000 financed by additional BSF Capital Grant Funding from 
DCSF into the Capital Programme, arising from the change from 
school to academy status as detailed in section 8 of the report. 

(c) That scheme expenditure of £31,128,000 from capital scheme number 
15414 for Leeds West Academy be authorised. 

(d) That approval be given to the application of the previously approved 
City Council contribution of £2,529,000 to be committed elsewhere in 
the Leeds BSF Wave 1 Programme. 

(e) That the Board notes that further reports relating to 14-19 provision will 
be submitted to Executive Board for consideration, including a report to 
the next meeting on confederation arrangements. 

 
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor Wakefield 
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on this matter)  
 

14 Children and Young People's Plan 2009/14  
The Director of Children’s Services submitted a report presenting the 2009-
2014 Children and Young People’s Plan for approval, prior to its submission 
to Full Council and Government Office. 
 
RESOLVED – That Council be recommended to adopt the Children and 
Young People’s Plan for Leeds 2009-2014, as attached to the report, as part 
of the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework. 
 

15 Expanding Primary Place Provision  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report on trends in  
population growth and the changing context for planning primary school 
places in Leeds; on the proposed immediate response to the pressures for 
additional reception places in 2010/2011; and outlining planning 
arrangements to ensure sufficient places to meet future needs. 
 
In presenting the report Councillor Harker indicated that he had requested that 
this matter should be the subject of Scrutiny. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the changing context for the provision of primary school places 

and the potential  demands on capital programmes in the future be 
noted. 

Page 120



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

(b) That approval be given to communications with relevant stakeholders 
and the Schools Adjudicator and the DCSF as outlined in section 6 of 
the report. 

(c) That further reports be brought to the Board on proposed expenditure 
and future planning proposals, including a report to the next meeting of 
the Board regarding the arrangements being made to manage the 
provision of reception places required for September 2010. 

 
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor Wakefield 
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on this matter)  
 
 
ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE 
 

16 Roundhay Road Relocation Project  
Further to minute 198 of the meeting held on 12th March 2008 the Director of 
Adult Social Services submitted a report providing an update on the proposed 
accommodation solutions in place, and the costs associated with the 
implementation of these, to support the relocation of remaining services from 
the Roundhay Road site to alternative ‘fit for purpose’ accommodation. 
 
Following consideration of Appendix 2 to the report designated as exempt 
under the terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) which was 
considered in private at the conclusion of the meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the contents of the report and the proposed accommodation 

solutions outlined in Appendix 1 be noted. 
(b) That expenditure of £1,100,000 on this scheme as outlined in the 

exempt appendix 2 to the report be approved. 
(c) That the Roundhay Road site be declared surplus to  requirements 

subject  to the completion of the acquisition of the property at 
Killingbeck. 

(d) That the demolition of the building be approved subject to the 
completion of the appropriate option appraisal taking into account both 
the potential impact on the asset value and the ongoing costs of 
security. 

 
17 Response to Council Deputation - Provision of Changing Place Toilets in 

Leeds  
The Director of Adult Social Care submitted a report in response to the 
deputation to Council by the ‘All Means All’ organisation on 22nd April 2009. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the actions being taken to provide city centre based changing 

places toilets be noted. 
(b) That the work undertaken to agree a specification for a changing 

places toilet be noted. 

Page 121



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

(c) That a further report be brought to this Board in six months time which 
will recommend a strategy for the provision of changing places toilets in 
Leeds. 

(d) That a further report be submitted to the Board providing an update on 
the current position prior to the end of this year. 
 

CENTRAL AND CORPORATE 
 

18 Taxi and Private Hire Licensing: Age Criteria Proposals - Deputation to 
Council  
The Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) submitted a report in 
response to the deputation to Council from the GMB Trade Union on 22nd 
April 2009. 
 
RESOLVED – That the contents of the report, the rationale behind the 
proposals and the information that will be available to the decision makers be 
noted. 
 

19 Financial Performance Provisional Outturn 2008/09  
The Director of Resources submitted a report on the Council’s financial 
outturn position for 2008/09, including both revenue and capital and the 
Housing Revenue Account. The report also detailed revenue expenditure and 
income compared to the approved budget, and reported on the outturn for 
Education Leeds and the ALMOs. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the report be noted. 
(b) That the transfer of £4,800,000 to general reserves be agreed in 

accordance with paragraph 3.8 of the report. 
(c) That the carry forward of £1,300,000 Area Based Grant be agreed as 

outlined in paragraph 3.7 of the report. 
(d) That contributions to and the use of Housing Revenue Account 

Reserves be agreed as outlined in the report. 
 
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor Wakefield 
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on this matter)  
 

20 Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11 Refresh: Amendments to Partnership 
Agreed Indicators  
The Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Planning and Improvement) submitted 
a report proposing a number of amendments to the partnership agreed targets 
in the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11, the Local Area Agreement for Leeds. 
 
RESOLVED – That appendix 1 to the report be approved as the Council’s 
proposed revisions and additions to the partnership agreed targets in the 
Leeds Strategic Plan. 
 

21 Annual Report on Risk Management  
The Director of Resources submitted a report providing an overview of the key 
risk management developments for the Council over 2008/09, reporting on the 

Page 122



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

corporate risk register and highlighting future areas of work to improve the 
Council’s risk management arrangements. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report and the progress made on further embedding 
risk management across the authority be noted. 
 

22 Review Process for the Gambling Act 2005 Statement of Licensing 
Policy  
The Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) submitted a report 
providing information on the review process for the Gambling Act 2005 
Statement of Licensing Policy and advising of the methodology and timeframe 
for the final approval of the revised Policy, taking into account the statutory 
requirements for consultation and the expressed expectations of Full Council. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the methodology and timeframe for the adoption of the gambling 

policy be noted. 
(b) That the draft policy be referred to Full Council for Members to 

comment on the draft as part of the initial consultation process with 
stakeholders. 

(c) That the Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) be 
authorised to undertake public consultation as outlined in the report. 

(d) That the revised policy and the results of any subsequent consultations 
on the draft policy be referred to Scrutiny Board (Central and 
Corporate) with a request that Scrutiny report back to the Executive 
Board on the 9th December 2009. 

 
23 Procurement of a Corporate Interactive Voice Response (IVR) Solution  

The Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Planning and Improvement) submitted 
a report providing an update on the steps taken to date to procure a corporate 
IVR solution, providing responses to the recommendations of the Scrutiny 
Board (Central and Corporate Functions) and seeking support for the release 
of the funding necessary for this project to continue. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the development of a corporate IVR solution for the Corporate 

Contact Centre be approved. 
(b) That authority be given for the allocation and expenditure of £262,000 

from the ICT capital development pot to support the development of a 
corporate IVR solution. 

 
(Under the provision of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor Wakefield 
required it to be recorded that he voted against the decisions taken in this 
minute) 
 
(The matters referred to in this minute were responding to a previous Call In 
decision, and were therefore not eligible for further Call In)  
 
 
 

Page 123



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

 
 
DATE OF PUBLICATION:  19TH JUNE 2009 
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN: 26TH JUNE 2009 
 
 
(Scrutiny Support will notify Directors of any items called in by 12.00 noon on 
29th June 2009) 
 
 

Page 124



APPENDIX 3 
 
 

SCRUTINY BOARD PROCEDURE RULES GUIDANCE NOTE 7 
 

INQUIRY SELECTION CRITERIA 
 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules require Scrutiny Boards, before deciding to 

undertake an Inquiry, to: 
 

Consider how a proposed Inquiry meets criteria approved from time to time; and 
 
Consult with any relevant Director and Executive Member 

 
1.2 This is to ensure that Scrutiny Boards, when agreeing to undertake an Inquiry, have 

considered carefully the reasons for that Inquiry, its objectives, whether it can be 
adequately resourced  in terms of Member and Officer time and have sought the 
views of the relevant Director and  Executive Member. 

 
1.3 The decision whether to undertake an Inquiry or not rests with the Scrutiny Board. 
 
2.0 INQUIRY SELECTION CRITERIA  
 
2.1 At the time of deciding to undertake an Inquiry, the Scrutiny Board will refer to the 

Inquiry Selection Criteria within this Guidance Note and formally identify which of 
the agreed criteria the proposed Inquiry meets.  The Board will also record the 
comments of the relevant Director and Executive Member.   This process will be 
recorded in the Scrutiny Board minutes. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 125



INQUIRY SELECTION CRITERIA 

 

Scrutiny Board   ______________________________ 

 
Inquiry Title   ______________________________ 
 
Anticipated Start Date ______________________________ 
 
Anticipated Finish Date ______________________________ 
 
 

 The Inquiry meets the following criteria 
 

● It addresses the Council’s agreed Strategic outcomes by  reviewing the  
effectiveness of policy to achieve strategic outcomes as defined by the Leeds  
Strategic Plan 

● Shaping and developing policy through influencing pre-policy 
      discussion  
 
It fulfils a performance management function by 
 

● Reviewing  performance of significant parts of service    
 
● Addressing a poor performing service                                                   
 
● Addressing a high level of user dissatisfaction  with the service 
 
● Addressing a pattern of budgetary overspends 
 
● Addressing matters raised by external auditors and inspectors 

 
 
 
 

● Addresses an issue of high public interest           
 
● Reviews a Major or Key Officer decision 
 
● Reviews an Executive Board decision 
 
● Reviews a series of decisions which have a significant impact  

 
● Has been requested by the Executive Board/Full Council/Scrutiny 

 Advisory Group  
 

● looks at innovative change 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments of relevant Director and Executive Member (Attach additional sheet if necessary)  
 
 
 
Date  
 

Page 126



 

Scrutiny Board (Health)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

 

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

Meeting date – 30 June 2009 

Legislation and 
Constitutional Changes 

To receive and consider a report of the 
Head of Scrutiny and Member 
Development on proposed changes to the 
Council's Constitution in relation to 
Scrutiny. 

 B 

Co-opted Members  
To receive and consider a report of the 
Head of Scrutiny and Member 
Development on Co-opted Members. 

 B 

Input into the Work 
Programme 2009/10 - 
Sources of Work and 
Establishing the Board's 
Priorities 

To receive and consider various inputs to 
inform the development of the Scrutiny 
Board’s work programme for 2009/10. 

 B 

KPMG Audit Report 

To receive and consider a report of the 
Head of Scrutiny and Member 
Development on a scrutiny review by 
KPMG as at May 2009. 

 PM/B 

Leeds Local Involvement 
Network (LINk) – Annual 
Report 

To receive and consider the first annual 
report of the Leeds Local Involvement 
Network (LINk). 

 B 

P
a
g
e
 1

2
7



 

Scrutiny Board (Health)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

 

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

Determining the Work 
Programme 2009/10  

To identify the Scrutiny Board’s priorities 
and determine its work programme for 
2009/10. 

 B 

    

Meeting date – 28 July 2009 

Quarterly Accountability 
Reports 

To receive quarter 4 performance reports  PM 

Recommendation 
Tracking 

To monitor progress against the 
recommendations agreed following 
previous Scrutiny Board inquiries. 

 MSR 

    

Meeting date – 22 September 2009 

Improving Young Peoples 
Sexual Health 

To consider the initial response to the 
Boards inquiry published in April 2009. 

 RP 

P
a
g
e
 1

2
8



 

Scrutiny Board (Health)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

 

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

Quarterly Accountability 
Reports 

To receive quarter 1 performance reports  PM 

Recommendation 
Tracking 

To monitor progress against the 
recommendations agreed following 
previous Scrutiny Board inquiries. 

 MSR 

    

Meeting date – 20 October 2009 

    

    

Meeting date – 24 November 2009 

    

    

P
a
g
e
 1

2
9



 

Scrutiny Board (Health)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

 

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

Meeting date – 15 December 2009 

Quarterly Accountability 
Reports 

To receive quarter 2 performance reports  PM 

Recommendation 
Tracking 

To monitor progress against the 
recommendations agreed following 
previous Scrutiny Board inquiries. 

 MSR 

    

Meeting date – 19 January 2010 

    

    

Meeting date – 16 February 2010 

    

P
a
g
e
 1

3
0



 

Scrutiny Board (Health)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

 

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

    

Meeting date – 16 March 2010 

Quarterly Accountability 
Reports 

To receive quarter 3 performance reports  PM 

Recommendation 
Tracking 

To monitor progress against the 
recommendations agreed following 
previous Scrutiny Board inquiries. 

 MSR 

Annual Health Check 

To receive and consider the local NHS 
Trusts self assessment against the 24 
“core standards” set by Government under 
the domains: 

• Safety; 

• Clinical and Cost Effectiveness;  

• Governance; 

• Patient Focus; 

• Accessible and Responsive Care; 

• Care Environment and Amenities; and, 

• Public Health 

Precise timing and scope to be confirmed PM 

P
a
g
e
 1

3
1



 

Scrutiny Board (Health)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

 

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

    

Meeting date – 27 April 2010 

Annual Report 
To agree the Board’s contribution to the 
annual scrutiny report 

  

    

P
a
g
e
 1

3
2



 

Scrutiny Board (Health)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

 

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Working Groups 

Working group Membership Progress update Dates 

    

    

    

P
a
g
e
 1

3
3



 
Scrutiny Board (Health)  
Work Programme 2008/09  

 

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

 

Unscheduled / Potential Items 

Item Description Notes 

Clinical Services Reconfiguration – 
Children’s Hospital Services 

To maintain an overview on the service 
reconfiguration. 

Clinical Services Reconfiguration – 
Children’s Hospital Services: 
Implications for Adult Medicine 

To maintain an overview on the service 
reconfiguration, particularly in terms of 
the implications to service provision on 
adult medicine. 

Subject to the Board re-establishing the 
Health Proposals Working Group, refer 
the matter to the Working Group for on-
going monitoring. 

Specialised commissioning 
arrangements 

To consider the current arrangements for 
specialised commissioning within the 
region and the role of scrutiny. 

The planned Department of Health (DoH) 
consultation on developing / strengthening 
Health Scrutiny may have an impact. 

Hospital Discharges 

To consider a follow up report on 
progress against the recommendations 
detailed in the Independence, Wellbeing 
and Choice inspection report 

Consider report in September/ October 
2009. 

Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust – 
foundation status  

To consider the process and implications 
of the Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS 
Trust bid to achieve foundation hospital 
status. 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

3
4


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 28th April 2009
	7 Co-opted Members
	8 Legislation and Constitutional Changes
	Constitutional changes (appendix)

	9 Input into the Work Programme 2009/2010 - Sources of Work and Establishing the Board's Priorities
	Input into work programme - Appendix 1 Scrutiny Board (Health) - Terms of Reference
	Input into work programme - Appendix 2a Leeds Strategic Plan exec summary
	Input into work programme - Appendix 2b Extract from Leeds Director of Public Health Annual Report (2007_08)
	Input into work programme - Appendix 2c Previous scrutiny reports

	10 KPMG Audit Report
	KPMG final report

	11 Leeds Local Involvment Network (LINk) - Annual Report
	12 Determining the Work Programme 2009/2010
	Work Programme (June 2009) Appendix 1 Health Scrutiny Protocol (Draft (June 2009))
	Work Programme (June 2009) Appendix 2 Health Proposals Working Group (draft Terms of Reference (June 2009))
	Exec Board Minutes 13.5.09
	Exec Board Minutes 17.6.09
	Work Programme (June 2009) Appendix 3
	Work Programme (June 2009) Appendix 4 OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME


